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CERTAIN DEFINITIONS
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Unless the context indicates otherwise, the terms “Avantair”, “the Company
and, where appropriate, its subsidiary. The term “Registrant” means Avantalr, Inc.

t1] :s 11 13

our” and “us” refer to Avantair, Inc.

INFORMATION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 0K contains forward-looking statements relating to future events and the future performance of the Company,
including, without limitation, statements regarding the Company’s expectalions, beliefs, intentions or future strategies that are
signified by the words “expects,” “anticipates,” “intents,” “believes,” or similar language. You should read statements that contain
these words carefully because they:

. discuss future expectations;
- contain information which could impact future results of operations or financial condition; or
. state other “forward-looking” information,

We believe it is important to communicate our expectations to the Avantair stockholders. However, there may be events in
the future that we are not able to accurately predict or over which we have no control and which could cause our actual results to differ
materially from the information contained in the forward-looking statements contained in this document. The risk factors and
cautionary language discussed in this document provide examples of risks, uncertainties and events that may cause actual results to
differ materially from the expectations described by Avantair in its forward-looking statements, including among other things:

(f) our inability to generate sufficient net revenue in the Suture:

(2) our inability to fund our operations and capital expenditures;

(3 cur inability to acquire additional inventory of aircraft;

{4) the loss of key personnel;

(5) our inability to effectively manage our growth;

(6) our ina..bilz'ty to generate sufficient cash flows to meet our debt service obligations;
{7) ' ' competitive conditions in the fractional aircraft ffrdustry;

{8) extensive gove;'nmen! regulation;

9 the failure or disruption of our computer, communications or other technology systems;
(10) increases in fuel costs; .

(11 changing economic conditions; and

{1 2). our failure fo attract and retain qualified pilots and other operations personne?.

You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward- looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this
document.

All forward-looking statements included herein attributable to Avantair or any person acting on Avantair’s behalf are
expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained or referred to in this section. Except to the extent required




by applicable laws and regulations, Avantair undertakes no obligations to updaté these forward-looking statements 1o reflect events or
circumstances aftér the date of this document or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

You should be aware that the occurrence of the events described in the “Risk Factors” section and elsewhere in this

document could have a material adverse effect on Avantair, L -
) e .
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Item L. BUSINESS . . - T T
Overview . . ) L N e S o o
Avantair is éngaged in the sale and management of fractional ownershlps of professionally plloted El]l'CI'cﬂ. for personal and
business use. Accordmg to AvData, Avantair is the fifth largest company in the North American fractional hircrafi mdustry ‘As of
June 30, 2008, Avantair operated 49 aircraft (whlch includes 5 company owned “core™ aircraft) with 60 addmonal Plagglo Avanti 11
aircraft on order. Avantair operates fixed flight based operations (FBO) in Camanllo California and, effective August 1, 2008, in
Caldwell, New Jersey. The Company also provides aircraft mamtenance concierge and other services to customers and services to the
Avantair fleet from hangars and office locations in Clearwater Florida, 'Camarillo; Cahfomla and Caldwell, New lersey.
Avantair generates revenues primarily through the sale of fractional ownership shares of aircraft, by providing operations,
maintenance and management services related to these aircraft, and from the sale of time cards’providing 25 hours of flight time per
- year of access to its aircrafl fleet without the requirement of purchasing fractional ownership share_s. The Company markets and sells
fractional ownership interests to individuals and businesses with a minimum share size of a 1/16 ® ownership interest. Under
maintenance and management agreements with fractional owners, Avantair prowdes pilots, maintenance, fuel and hangar space for the
alrcraft . . - ‘ .

[
. L

Avantair pres';éntly sources all of its aircraft from a single manufacturer, Piaggio America, Inc. As of June 30, 2008, Avantair
‘ had contractual commitments to purchase 60 additional Piaggio aircraft through 2013 at wholesale pricing for an aggregate of

| approxlmately $349 million from this manufacturer. The Company has been ablé to defer aircraft deliveriés to bring, them in line with
 sales expectations based upon existing econdmic conditions and the contract prov1des flexibility to defer aircraft d= liveries i in the

| future. At Jine 30, 2008, the Company had 26 fractional alrcraft shares avallable for sale. In addition to the cost o acqumng aircrafi,

| Avantair's primary expenses have been rélated to fuel, aircraft reposmonmg (ie. movmg an alrcraft to another tocation to
accommodate a customer’s néed and demonstratior flights for sales purposes), maintenance, charters and insurance.

‘ As a relatively new Company, Avantair has expended funds necessary to establish the operations and business ilnf‘rastructurc
required of a fractional airline and has not generated sufficient cash from operations to fund its growth. Therefore, the Company raised

additional funds through equity offerings, debt financing and the sale of assets to fund operations. In connection with future financing

- of growth, and dependmg upon the Company’s generahon of cash from operations, the Company may obtain addit |ona1 funds through

| equity f’mancmg, including the sale of additipnal shares of common stock, assets sales, ‘accelerated payments of mdlntenance and
management, fees, debt financing, or a combination thereof, :

| . N 3. . 1 Lo

| In order to achieve profitable income from operations before depreciation and amortization, mén:a'gement currently estimates

' that the Company will need to have 45 fully fractionalized aircraft. At June 30, 2008, the Company had 41.3 fractionalized aircraft.

| Therefore, Avantair’s primary growth strategy is to continue to increase the number of fractional share owners ana aircraft under _
management. The Company believés income from operatlons before deprecnauon and amortization is useful to investors as it excludes
certain non-cash expenses that do not dlrectly relate to the’ operation of fractionalized aircraft. This measure is a supp]ement to
* generally accepted accountmg principles (GAAP) used to prepare the Company’s ﬁnancml statements and should not be viewed as a
substitute for GAAP measures. In addition, the Company’s non-GAAP measure may. not be comparable to non-GAAP measures of

- other companies. Income from operauons according to GAAP would include depreciation and amortization expene, esnmated to be
approximately $330,000 per monlh at the time of fully fractlonallzmg the 45 ™ aircrafi.

1 !

Recent Developmems

'
tar ! - '

On June 17, 2008 the Company fileéd with'the Secuntles and Exchange Comm1551on a post-effective ‘amendment on Form
S-3 to the Company s Registration Statement on Form $-1 (No. 333-121028). Upon effectiveness of the amendment, the registration
statement will be available for the issuancé of shares of common stock upon exercise of the Company s outstandmg publicly traded
“warrants. The Company also approved a warrant retirement program, pursuant to which it will offer the holders of its 13,800,000
“publicly traded warrants the opportunity to exercise those warrants on amended'terms for a limited time, The Company is modifying
the 13,800,000 warrants to reduce the per-share exercise price from $5.00 to $3.00. In addition, for each warrant exercised by a holder
at the reduced exercise price, the holder will have the option to engage in a cashless exercise by exchanging ten additional warrants for
one additional share of common stock. Warrants tendered for cashless exercise may only be tendered in groups of ten and no
fractional shares will be issued for odd lots of nine or less. The Company has filed a Tender Offer Statement on Schedule TO and
related materials as a pre-commencement communication. The Tender Offer has not commenced and the Company and its agents are
not currently accepting tenders at this time. The Company will issue a press release announcing the commencement of the tender offer
once it has begun. -
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On June 20, 2008, Avantair assigned its rights and obligations to purchase twenty Embraer Phenom 100 aircraft positions to
Share 100 Holding Co., LLC (Share 100), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Avantair. On the same date, Avantair entered into a
membership interest purchase agreement with Executive Air Shares Corporation (EAS), in which EAS purchased the Class A -
membership of Share 100 and Avantair retained the Class B membership. EAS, as Class A member, has the rights and obligations to
purchase the Phenom 100 aircraft with positions one through eighteen and to fund payments due in connection with these aircraft.
EAS paid Share 100 approximately $2.5 million in connection with these transactions and will make an additional $750,000 capital
contribution to Share 100 on or before December 1, 2008 all of which has or will be, respectively, immediately distributed to o
_ Avantalr Avantalr as Class B member, has the nghts and obhganons to purchase am.raft take out nineteen and twenty and to fund
payment due in connection with thesé aircraft. EAS has the option to piirchase aircraft nineteen and twenty, which must be exercised
by October 1, 2010; if exercised, EAS shall reimburse Avantair for all payments made relative to these aircraft and provide all
remaining funds required. In the event that EAS does not exercise the option to purchase a:rcraft nineteen and twenty by October 1,
2010, Avantair will have the rlght and obligation to purchase the nineteenth and twentieth aircraft. If EAS defaults under its
obligations to purchase the aircraft positions, EAS will forfeit all deposits paid for the undelivered aircraft, inctuding the funds
distributed to Avantair. Avantair will then be résponsible for the rights and obhgatlons of the remaining undelivered aircraft. If
Avantair defaults under its obllganons to purchase the last two alrcraﬁ posmons any depos1ts paid by Avantalr in connection with the
undelivered Class B Aircraft will be forfeited.. ' W , S ‘ .
In July 2008, the Company repaid the Promissory Note (“Note”) with Century Bank F:S.B. (“Lender”) which provided
financing to the Company in the amount of $5,200,000 to be used towards the purchase of a new Piaggio P-180 aircraft. The Company
paid the following fees for the Note: (1) $37,500 on the effective date of the Note and (2) $75,000 on the 30 ™ day of the each month
thereafter until repayment in full of the principal amount of the Note (“Term’ ) The prmcrpal amount of the Note was to be paid in full
within 120 days from the effective date of the Note The Company was to also make pamal payments to the Lender in $325,000
increments upon the closing of each fractional interest and the Lender was to provide parual lien releases as to the respective
fractional intgrests sold Addltlonally, the Company would pay a fee of $52,000 at the time of repayment in full of the principal
amount of the Note, constituting a fee of 1 % of the prmc1pal amount. Since the Company repa:d the note in full in .Iuly 2008 (within
90 days after the effective date of the note), the fee was reduced to 0. 5% of the prmcrpal amount or $26 000
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Industry Overview

s

Fractional aircraft ownershipprovides customers with the ¢onvenierice and flexibility of private air service without the
more significant costs associated with sole ownership of an aitcraft. Commercial flight delays can be costly and tiresome, commercial
hubs are increasingly‘crowded, major commercial airports may be far from final destinations and commercial air travel is increasingly
subject to threats and security-related inconveniences, For businesses and high net worth individuals, fractional ownership often offers |

a balance between convenience and cost. . o . -

A fractional aircraft company assembles a fleet of planes with each of these planes avallable fora certain number of |
revenue generating flight hours per year. Those Jhours are thén divided into partial ownershlp shares and these partial ownership shares
are sold to individuals and businesses. Avantair’s customers typically purchase one- slxteenth or one-eaghth shares in an aircraft,
although in some cases the purchases are one- quarter shares or more. The purchase of a one-erghth share means that the owner will
pay approximately one-cighth of the aircraft retail price initially and receive 100 flight hours (50 flight hours for each one-sixteenth |
share) for the term of the contract, which is typically five years. An Avantalr fractional share owner agrees to pay Avantair an |
additional predetermmed monthly fee to cover the various costs of maintaining and operatmg the aircraft. Avantair is responsible for
all of these services. The fractional shareowner contacts Avantair’s flight scheduling personnel to schedile use of the plane.

According to AvData and JetNet, the North American fractionally owned aircraft fleet has grown from 8 aircraft in 1986
| to an aggregate of 1,073 aircraft as of Apnl 2008, and the number of fractional share owners has grown to 5,902 in that same period.
According to AvData and JetNet, there are only five companies which have 3% or more of the total ‘market for fractional aircraft,
based upon the units in operation - NetJets, Flight Options, FlexJet, CitationShares, and Avantair, with NetJets having a market share
of approximately 50% and Avantair’s threc largest competitors having a combmed markel share of over 80%. According to JetNet, as
of April 2008, Avantalr had.an apprommate market share of 7%.

v r - -




The general aviation industry builds and sells aircraft ranging from single passenger, single engine propeller planes to
multimillion dollar transoceanic jets costing $50 million or more. The fractional aircraft industry has primarily concentrated on the
middle to upper end of that market. Most fractionally owned aircraft have a capacity of between four and seven passengers and a
minimum range of 1,250-1,500 nautical miles. The list prices of these types of aircraft aré generally $35 million =0 $50 million. There .
are numerous manufacturers and models in most catégories of aircraft. Both providers of fracnonal aircraft shares and purchasers of
these shares consider the choice of aircraft based upon a variety of factors including:

. _ ) price; ,

PR . . ‘ ) . !
. . . availability;
. - - . operating costs; ) o
. ., reliability;
. : T speed; ' ‘
.' . ' 1 . 3 rangel;

. . L A v
. _ , . , _cabin size and features;
. safety features and record;
[ N , | . i , . B
. .. o o ‘ efficiency;
' L ' ' oo maintenance cost;
Wt
. ’ manufacturer; and .
. P s i ' +

. . 4 s

. runway requirements. .
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Some of Avantair’s principal competitors are owned by aircraft manufacturers, which have resulted ir. their fleets bemg
largely comprised of aircraft built by their respective parent companies. Avantair, however, is not owned by any manufacturér, giving
it a greater level of flexibility in future aircraft seiectlons than most of its competitors, . ‘ C .

Fractlonal operators must have sufﬁcicnt numbers of aircraft in the fleet to provide the service required. Since fractional
share buyers desire to enter the program as soon as possible after purchasing shares, operators are obligated to provide access to
aircraft when the sharcowner requests it. If the operator does not have ample capacity available, it must charter that capacity, a
practice that can be very costly. As a result, fractional operators’ strategy is to place orders for aircraft in advance, and only sell shares
within a few weeks prior to taking delivery of the aircraft. Fractional operators may also offer card programs which provide a certain
number of* ﬂlght hours to be used during a specific period of time, generally one year. .

The capital 1equirements of the fractional aviation business are less intensive than other segments of the aviation industry.
Ordering aircraft requires the operator to place deposits well in advance of receiving its planes. Progress payments are made:as certain
milestones are achieved. The amounts of the deposits and progress payments are a function of several factors including the price of the
underlying plane, the creditworthiness of the buyer, and the time until detivery. The majority of the payments are generally made upon
delivery. The fractional operator’s strategy is to sell the plane in advance, so that the title transfers to the fractional shareowner within
hours or days after title transfers from the manufacturer to the fractional operator. As a consequence, the fractional operator would
receive the funds from the share owners virtually at the same time as the bulk of the payments are paid to the manufacturer.
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How Avantair's Fractional Ownership Program Works

" Each of Avantair’s current aircraft is available to fractional owners for a total of 800 flight hours per year. Those hours are
then divided into blocks of ownership, beginning at fifty hours per year (a one-sixteenth share of the aircraft), and these partial
ownership. shares are sold to buyers A share of an aircraft currently can be purchased from Avantair starting at the list price of
$425,000 for a one-sixteenth share. Purchase prices for larger interests maybe slightly discounted. Each fractional owner must enter
into a Management and Dry Lease Exchange Agreement with Avantair as part of the purchase of shares in the Avantair program. A
monthly maintenance and management fee, currently $9,650, is assessed per 1/16th share owned. This fee covers any direct costs in
operating and maintaining the aircraft, other than fuel surcharges which are based on actual aircraft usage. This is unlike most other
fractional programs, which generally charge fractional owners an occupied hourly rate for use of the aircraft. All programs have fuel
surcharges, but due to the efficiency of the Piaggio Avanti and the way Avantair calculates its management fee, Avantair’s surcharges
are less than those charged by its competitors. Any landing fees, excess catering fees, applicable international fees and taxes are billed
to the owner. Monthly fees are adjusted upwards on each anniversary date using a calculation based on the current Consumer Price
Index, but will not exceed the then-current published rate offered to new share owners,

Each fractional owner is allocated a certain number of flight hours per year based on the size of their ownership interest. The
owner may exceed the number of annual allocated hours by up to 20%, to the extent that the owner did not use all of their allocated
hours in the prior year and/or as an advance use of the next year's allocated hours.

Each share owner owns an “undivided interest” that cannot be affected or encumbered by the financial actions of other
owners. In order to avoid scheduling conflicts, each share owner throughout Avantair’s fleet agrees to exchange use of such owner’s
airplane with the other share owners in the fleet. Avantair must move planes to the necessary destinations to meet the fractional
owners’ needs. Avantair keeps a certain number of core aircraft in the fleet in order to have enough planes to meet demand.

Aircraft Usage and Scheduling

Attempting to divide the use of a plane among multiple parties to maximize its value can be logistically challenging. A
fractional share owner is required to provide a minimum of 24 hours notice to Avantair prior to the scheduled take-off time when
scheduling the first leg of a trip during non-peak travel times. During peak travel times, requests for use by owner of an aircraft must
be made at least 72 hours prior to the scheduled departure date of the first leg. No later than January 1st of each year, Avantair will
notify all of its fractional owners of the impending year’s peak travel days, which will not exceed 25 days for each calendar year.

For all flights outside of the Primary Service Area (PSA), comprised of the continental United States, certain airports in the
Bahamas and Cabo San Lucas, fractional owners must request an aircraft at least 7 days prior to the scheduled date of the first leg of
the trip. All such requests are filled on a first-come first-served basis, provided that, for each such request, the fractional owner has
provided sufficient information regarding the trip to enable Avantair to schedule the trip.

Chartering N ’ ' C B

Whenever possible, Avantair will schedule an aircraft from its fleet for each request for use by a fractional owner. In the
event that none of Avantair’s aircraft are available, Avantair will charter a comparable aircraft for use by the owner, provided that the
fractional owner has complied with all applicable notice requirements and all other program provisions. Avantalr will oitly charter
aircraft that satisfy the Aviation Research Group US (ARG/US) Go]d or Platinum rating.

1

Expiration of the Progmm

Upon lhe expiration of the term of Avantair’s agreement with a fractional owner, the owner shall have the option to (i) sell
the owner’s interest in the aircraft and cease to participate in the Avantair program, (ii} sell the owner’s interest and purchase an
interest in a new aircraft that participates or will participate in the Avantair program or (iii) retain this interest and renew their
participation in the program. . .

.
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Sales and Marketing

* Avantair’s sales department is comprised of a senior executive vice president of sales and marketing, a vice president of
sales and regional salcs directors supported by an inside sales department and a marketing department. Avantair’s sales staff is.
compensated wrth a base salary plus commissions. TR !

‘Avantair targets customers based on demographic data, including net worth, household income, job title and age. Avantair
has just recently focused its sales efforts on a natlonal basis, whereas prewously market efforts were fotused regmnally

Avantalr uses a varlety of methods to rnarket and advemse its fractronal ownership program mc]udmg prmt advemsmg,
direct mail, events, website and online and referral incentives. In fiscal 2008 approximately half of Avantair’s marketing budget was
allocated to print advertising. Advertising placement is based on historical data and demographlcs

Avantair’s direct mail advertlsmg con51sts of several mallmgs and e-malhngs per year to targeted prospc,ctlve customers to
coincide with promotions, price increases, etc. Avantair also participates in live events, mcludmg events at fixed base operators

attended by owners and prospective owners. The events are targeted geographmally

As part of its marketing, Avantalr maintains a web site at www,avantair.com. All of Avantair’s collaterzl and print
marketing materials, lirect mail, email and vrdeo materials direct prospectlve buyers to its web site along with the sales phone
number. :

Public relations efforts are driven by editorial opportunities and news pitches to key editors. Recent editorial placements
include magazines such as Robb Report, Fortune, Forbes, as well as, travel and aircraft industry publications. An owner newsletter,
Contrails, is published quarterly with pertinent news, purchase reinforcement and any new programs. Contrails is also sent to all
competitive owners, cistributed at events, placed in aircraft, and put in packages that are sent to prospects at first i mqun’y into the
fractional program.

AR ¥ I AN U . . e

An important element of Avantair’s marketing strategy is referral incentives. Approximately 50% of new' share sales during
2006, 2007 and 2008 have been generated from referrals from existing share owners. Under Avantair’s referral incentive program, a
fractional owner who refers a customer to Avantair receives a total of two additional allocated hours of flight time. !

One internal measurement used to assess future sales is leads generated by both the sales force and the cther marketing
methods described above, The number of Avantair’s sales leads has nearly doubled over the past year. While many leads do not tum
into sales, they provide the basis for future sales, Another important indicator is demonstration fhghts A very high percentage of
potential buyers of sh ares will request a demonstratlon flight on one or more aircraft types and on one or more products from different
fractional operators. Avantair’s demonstration flights cost the potential buyer approximately ‘$4,500 per hour with the owner
receiving a credit towards the purchase price of the new aircraft interest at a rate of $4,500 per demo ﬂlght hour, r.ot to exceed three
(3) flight hours or $12,500. If at any time a previously owned share is purchased, a credit, not to exceed two (2) flight hours or $9,000
is given:'Avantair’s management believes that ,i‘n excess of 80% of demonstration flights convert into sales of fractional shares.

The Avantair Edge Card Program '~ “ o ' o cen R

In 2006, Avantair introduced a card program that allows a purchaser to access Avantair’s aircraft by purchasing either 15 or
25 hours of flight time without the requirement to purchase ownership shares in an aircraft. “The card holder. purchases the entire card
amount in advance and receives the same service as a fractlonal owner. After the card holder has exhausted the heurs purchased the
holder has no-further obligations to ‘Avantair. The program offers an option for individuals and businesses seeking; to expefience
fractional ownership, without any long term commitment. Avantair’s management considers its card program to be an effective means
of introducing potential purchasers to its fractional ownership program. In December, 2007, we discontinued sales of the 15 hour eard
Avantalr s card program currently is prlced at 115, OOO for a 25 hour card (excluding Federal Excise Tax). '

[ " e 5 oL : . i




Fleet

As of June 30, 2008, Avantair’s-fleet consisted of 49 aircraft, of which approximately 41.3 were fractionalized; 26 shares
were available for.sale, and 5 core aircraft operate to. provide additional capacity. Currently, all of the fractional aircraft in Avantair’s
fleet are Praggro Avanti P-180 turboprops.

Avantair.is the sole fractional operator in North America of the Piaggio Avanti P-180 aircraft. The Piaggio Avanti has a
unique design that uses forward wing technology which the Company believes allows it to.both provide the fastest speed of any
turboprop and yet have an unusually large cabin relative to aircraft in its category. The Piaggio Avanti also compares favorably to
light jets as the Piaggio Avanti has the lowest fuél usage in the category. This aircraft also allows access to a greater number of
airports than'most of the jets in its category since it has the capability to land on shorter runways -

The Piaggio Avanti has several very attrac_trve features to fractional shares owners:

. Stand-up Cabin - A stand-up cabin and a private lavatory, which is unique in its category.
. Flying Capdcity - Ability to fly 1,300 nautical miles with five passengers, luggage and a full fuel toad. -
. Speed - Fastest turboprop manufactured, with jet-like speed of 458 mph. '
. Runway capability - Ability to land on shorter runways allowing access to a greater number of airports.
. . - . - e .
. Comfortable Ride - Sound daml)ening interior and rear mounted props, Whlch’h'elp deliver a quiet ride.
. Safety - Since its introduction in 1989, ‘there has not been a fatal accident mvolvmg a Pragglo Avanti P-180. In addition,

the Avanti’s wing design reduces the effects of turbulence and its de-icing system reduces the impact of inclement weather
.on aircraft operatron

[ 3 ' ' ¢
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The pricing structure afforded by utilizing the Piaggio Avanti allows Avantair to attract'a customer desiring quality at a
lower price point. Offering the cabin cross section of a mid-size aircraft and fuel efficiency of a turboprop, along with nio hourly fees,
allows Avantair to lower the cost of fractlonal ownership to a broader range of consumers.

. A fractronal owner is enutled to board a plane at the location of his/her choosmg The costs of movmg aplane, or
reposrt10n1ng it, are borne by Avantalr These costs have been very significant due o fuel, pilots and crew and maintenance costs
arising from increased overall usage of the aircraft. As the number of planes in Avantair’s fleet increases, Avantair believes that the
relative amount of reposrtromng should decline. As the size of Avantair’s fleet reaches a critical mass, aircraft will be positioned in
strategic locatlons based on travel patterns. Those locations. are frequently determined through the usage of a software optimization
program. In addmon Avantair incurs costs associated with pilots and crew, such as transportation to flight departure locations, per
diems, meals and hotel expenses. As Avantair’s fleet expands, crews will be domiciled in cities frequented by fractional owner flights.
This presents an opportunity for Avantair to leverage more favorable discounts for air and hotel due to volume as well as making
more efficient use of pilot and crew work hours. -




Avantair believes that operating a very limited number of aircraft models provides it with cost and operating advantages
relative to other fractional aircraft operators that may operate as many as 135 different alrcraﬂ models. Among the advantages of
operating a limited number of alrcraﬂ models are:

. Maintenance - Reduces costs of repair and maintenance by enablmg nearly every member of Avantal s maintenance staff
to service all of its aircraft, plus reduced repositioning of an aircraft results in fewer flight hours and therefore less
frequent inaintenance; _ 4 ’

i

. Pilot Training - Pilots need to be certified for a given aircraft model, therefore the operation of a limited number of
models means that nearly all employed pilots are available to operate-any aircraft in the fleet. In January 2007, Avantair
contracle(l with “Flight Safety” fora penod of 5 years for pllot trammg on their Piaggio Avanu ﬂ:ght 51mulator

[
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. Rotable Farts Inventory — Fewer parts need to be inventoried which reduces the overall cost of rotable parts inventory.
Due to the uniformity of the fieet, Avantair is exposed to tower capital investment and inventory due 10 mterchangeablhry
of parts and the greater ease of troubleshootmg e w : . e
Flight Operations . : . _ .. _ ‘

Avantair’s QOperations Control Center is made up; of four depaﬁments that all play a role in a fractional cwner’s trip from the
first phone call to completion of the trip at the final destination: - , o

LB

. Owner Services

. Filot Services
+  Flight Specialist
. Flight Following,

Aﬂer a fractional share is sold to a customer, a fractional owner IS a551gned an Qwner Serwces team Th.s team assists the
fractional owner in scheduling flights and making necessary arrangements based on the owner s flight requiremens, mcludmg
coordinating with Avantair’s Operations Control Center.

The flight scheduling process begins when a fractional owner contacts the owner’s Owner Services team. When a fractional
owner contacts Avantair to schedule a ﬂlght an assigned Owner Services team member handles the request. The t:am member will
ask for all details of the proposed trip, including airport of departure and arrival as well as FBO preference, This department also
handles any ground transportation and/or catering orders.

The trip request is subject to an approval process with the Flight Specialist. After approval, the frip is enteredirito Avantair’s
FlightOps computer system by Owner Services. The trip request is then delivered to the fractional owner for approval This is used as
a quality control so that Avantair is sure it has all the correct details of the fractional owner’s trip. After a signéd confirmation is
received from the fractional owner, Owner Services will confirm this trip reservation in FlightOps. The night before and the morning
of the trip, Owiier Services reconfirms all ground and/or catering requests for quality control.

The day befcre the trip, the flights will be assigned to an Avantair aircraft by the Flight Specialist. The F'ight Specialist then
confirms the availabilizy and location of the aircrafi for the next day in an effort to ensure that the fractional owner gets the optimal
schedule with the least amount of repositioning titne. This confirmation process also takes into consnderanon the ciew duty, rest and
flight time regulations. ‘ : ' Co

| The job of Pilot Services is to schedule pilots for.flights and arrange accommeodations for pilots away from their base of
operations. Pilot Services is also responsible for the crew schedulmg of all aircraft.

v

Flight Following tracks all current flights that are in progress through dlrect contact with the crew and through FlightQOps.
‘ Flight Following monitors weather conditions and other situations which may lead to delays, and works with the fl-ght crews and the
Operations Control Center to resolve delays as quickly as possible.
7




Pilot Hiring and Training e .

Avantalr selects and hires pilots based on a detalled screemng process, including, mterwews assessments of the candidate’s
knowledge of Avantair’s aircraft, applicable regulations and fiight skllls and background checks. All pilots are initially hired into first
officer positions, Minimum requlrements for initial hires include:. ce e

. 2,500 hours of total flight time;

1,000 multi-engine flight hours; and
. 250 ﬂight hours within the previous 12 months. - oo N

All pilots must complete FAA required and approved ground and flight training prior to flying any aircraft in the Avantair
fleet. Further, all of Avantair’s pilots must fulfill ongoing training requ1rements Avantair’s pilots each have an average of over 6,200
hours of tota! flight time.

Aircraft Maintenance f -

Avantair aircraft maintenance follows a schedule of inspections based on the numbers of hours flown at the recommendation
of the aircraft manufacturer and approval of the FAA. This schedule consists of four levels of inspection - A, B, C and D checks. An A
check occurs at every 150 flight hours; a B check at every 600 flight hours; a C check at every 1,500 flight hours; and a D check at
every 3,000 flight hours, The scheduled maintenance events, as well as unanticipated events, result in an average downtime of one day
for A checks, two days for B checks, fivedays for C checks and twenty-one days for D checks. As a condition of employment, all of
Avantair’s maintenance technicians must have an FAA license and are subject fo a background check and drug screening prior to
employment. Avantair’s Lead Technicians and Supervisors attend the FAA-approved Piaggio factory training program at Flight
Safety, In addition, Avantair’s Lead Technician’s receive training provided by Rockwell Collins as well as Pratt & Whitney
Powerplant {engine}. Avantair’s main maintenance base and its Maintenance Control Center, which oversees and coordinates all
maintenance activity on Avantair’s aircraft, is located in Clearwater, Florida and is staffed 24 hours a day and seven days a week. The
average years of experience is over 17 years for Avantair’s maintenance technicians, 25 years for its maintenance controllers and over
25 years for its maintenance quality control staff.

From April 2006 through April 2008, there was an Airframe Maintenance contract and from June 2007 through the current
date, an Engine Maintenance contract, both with JSSI. In connection with Avantair and JSSI entering into a payment arrangement and
a $5.6 million promissory note in April 2008, the parties terminated the Airframe Maintenance contract, but continue their refationship
pursuant to the existing Engme Maintenance contract. Avantair will manage the Airframe Maintenance’ Program on an internal basis.

Competition

'

Avantair faces competition from other fractional aircraft providers. Avantair’s primary competitors are NetJets, a subsidiary
of Berkshire Hathaway, Flight Options, FlexJet, a Bombardier subsidiary, and CitationShares, which is 75% owned by Cessna Aircraft
Company, a wholly-owned Textron subsidiary. None of these competitors are stand-alone, publicly traded entities like Avantair and
all of these competitors are significantly larger than Avantair and with more resources. Some of these companies are subsidiaries of
business jet manufacturers, which Avantair’s management believes may hamper their flexibility in purchasing aircraft, Accordlng to
AvData and JetNet, there are only five companies which have 3% or more of the total market for fractional aircraft, based upon the
units in operation - Netlets, Flight Options, FlexJet, CitationShares, and Avantair, with NetJets having a market share of
approximately 50% and Avantair’s three largest competitors having a combined market share of over 80%. According 10 JetNet, as of
April 2008, Avantair had an approximate market share of 7%.

. Avantair and other fractional airlines also face competition from charter airlines, air taxis and commercial airlines. Some of
these competitors offer greater selection.of aircraft (including jet aircraft), some of which permit owners to fly greater distances or at
greater speeds, travel with a greater number of passengers and on shorter advance notice before flying.

Avantair’s management belicves that fractional aircraft operators compete on the basis of aircraft model and features, price,
customer service and scheduling flexibility. Avantair’s management believes that customers are generally willing to continue to use
the same fractional aircraft operator so long as such operator provides satisfactory service with competitive pricing. Avantair’s
management believes that the quahty of its aircraft and service, and the value it prowdes to its customers enables it to compete
effectively against its larger competitors.




Information Technology : ' : ' . : . »

.

Avantair’s core software application, FlightOps, is desagned developed and lrcensed by Bitwise Solutions, Inc. for use in
Avantair’s Operations Control Center to plan, schedule and track fractional.owner trips as well as manage its fleel. thhtOps uses .
Oracle as its database server. The Flight Systemn consists of three components The first component is the user interface called “Flrgh_t
Ops.” The second cotnponent is the Oracle Database which is managed, monitored and backed up by Cintra, Cint:a was founded in -
1996 by former Oracle Exccutives. The third component is the optimizer, the core piece of which is the CPLEX engine designed by
ILOG who is a leading provider of optimizers. - o , : o

Avantair has invested in an efficient high-performance computing environment that includes Dell Power[dge servers with .~
the latest commercially available Windows-based operating system. In addition, Avantair has approximately 118 Fujitsu Tablet PCs
that are used as part of its pilots’ Electronic Flight Bag. These PCs are equrpped with core software appllcatlons taat melude
navigational aids, flight charts, and arrcraﬁ manuals

Avantair currently-has two agreements with Application Servrces Providers:

i

. Salesforce Customer Relationship Management Sales Force Automatron and
. Corridor - Enterprise Resource Management Aviation Service Software (Mamtenar ce, [nventory and
. FBOs)." . ,

Government and Other Regulations . - .

-

Avantair, li%e all air carriers, is subject to extensive regulatory and legal compliance requirements, both domestically and
internationally. In addition to state and federal regulation, airports and municipalities enact rules and regulations that affect aircraft
operations. The FAA regulates Avantair’s activities, primarily in the areas of flight operations, maintenance, and other safety and | .
technical matters. FAA requirements cover, among other things, security measures, collision avoidance systems, airborne windshear
avoidance systems, noise abatement and other environmental concerns, and aircraft safety and maintenance procedures. Specifically,
the FAA may issue mandatory orders, relating to, among other things, the grounding of aircraft, inspection of aircraft, installation of
new safety-related items and removal and replacement of aircraft parts that have failed or may fail in the future.

The FAA also has authority to issue air carrier operating certificates and aircraft airworthiness certificates and regulate pilot.
and other employee baining, among other responsibilities. Avantair’s management of fractional aircraft is regulatzd by the FAA under
Part 91, subpart K of the Federal Aviation Regulations (“FARs”™), and the FAA has issued Management Specifications reflecting
Avantair’s authority to manage such aircraft. In some cases, including all current international operations, the FAA deems Avantair to
transport persons or property by air for.compensation, Such “charter” operations are regutated under Part 135 of the FARs, and .
Avantair’s authority 10 conduct those operations is reflected in-an Air Carrier Operating Certificate with operating; specifi ications. Both
types of FAA authority potentialty are subject to amendment, suspension or revocation. From time to time, the FAA issues rules that
requrre aircraft operators to take certain actions, such as, the inspection or medification of arrcraft and other equrprnent Y e

! " !

Avantarr s charter operatrons under Part l35 also are subject to economic regulatron by. the U.S. Department of | :
Transportation (“DOT™). To retain its. DOT registration as.an air taxi, Avantair must remain a U.S. citizen; that is, U.S. ertrzens must
actually control Avantair, at least 75% of Avantair’s outstanding voting stock must be owned and controlled by LS. citizens, and the
President and two-thirds of the directors and other managing officers must be U.S. citizens. Avantair’s organizational documents
provide for the automatic reduction in voting power of common stock owned or controlled by non-U.S. citizens if necessary to
maintain U.S. citizenship. If Avantair cannot maintain its U.S. crtrzenshrp, it would lose its ability to conduct its charter operatlons

~ (though not its fractional program manager operations). » - . o . :

Aircraft operators also.are subject to various other federal, state and local laws and regulations. The Department of

- Homeland Security (“DHS”™) has jurisdiction over virtually all aspects of civil aviation security and arrivals into and departures from

the United States. Avantair is also subject to mqulrres by the DOT the FAA, and other U.S. and international regulatory bodies.

' 1 ' [

Environmental Regulatton . ) .. . . S . : ' .
Many aspe: ts of Avantair’s opt‘:ratidns also are subject to increasingly stringent federal, state local and foreign laws and
regulations protectiny; the envrronment concerning emissions to the air, discharges to surface and subsurface waters, safe drinking

- waler, and the management of hazardous substances, oils, and waste matérials. Future regulatory developments in the U.S. and abroad

could require aircraft operators to take additional action to maintain compliance with applicable laws. For example potential future
actions that may he taken by the U.S. govemment, foreign governments, or the International Civil Aviation Orgamzatron to limit the
emission of greenhouse gases by the aviation sector are unknown at this time but could requ1re significant act1on from a1rcraft
operators in the futur=. .




Avantair is also subject to other environmental laws and regulations, including those that require it to remediate soil or
groundwater to meet certain objectives. Under the federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act
(commonly known as “Superfund”) and similar environmental cleanup laws, generators of waste materials, and owners or operators of
facilities, can be subject to liability for investigation and remediation costs at facilities that have been identified as requiring response
actions. Certain operations of Avantair are also subject to the oversight of the Occupational Safety and Health Administration
“OSHA” concerning employee safety and health matters. Avantair also' conducts voluntary remediation actions: Environmental
cleanup obligations can arise from, among other circumstances, the operatior of fueling facilities, and primarily involve airport sites.
Future costs associated with these activities are not expected to have a material adverse effect on Avantair’s business.

Risk of Loss and Liability Insurance

The operation-of any fractional aircraft business includes risks such as mechanical failure, physical damage, property loss or
damage due to events beyond the operator’s control. Avantair carries an all-risk aviation insurance policy (subject to standard aviation
exclusions and pravisions) which offers protection for physical damage to the hull, bodily injury to passengers, as well as third party
bodily injury and property damage. While Avantair believes that its present insurance coverage is adequate, not all risks can be
insured, and there can be no guarantee that any spec1f' tc claim will be paid, or that Avantair will always be able to obtain adequate
insurance coverage at reasonable rates. v
Employees ,

As of June 30, 2008, Avantair had approximately 403 full-time employees, 31 of whom were management and 372 of whom
were operational. Avantair believes that it has good relations with its employees.

[tem 1A, RISK FACTORS

" You should carefully consider the risks described below before making a decision to buy our common stock. If aiy of the
foliowmg risks actually occurs, our business, financial condition and resulis of operanons could be harmed. In that case, the trading
price'of our common stock could decline and You might lose all or part of your investment in our common stock. You should also refer
to the other information set forth in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including our financial statements and the related notes.

Risks Related to Our Business c : . .

Avantair has a hlstory of losses and to date has not been able to generale sufficlent net revenue from its business to
achieve or sustain profitability. - - . . : _ | ‘

Avantair has incurred losses since inception. To date, Avantair’s revenues have largely come from sales of fractional
interests in aircraft and monthly management fees. Avantair’s primary expenses - cost of aircraft, cost of flight operations and
overhead - have increased over the past several years and significantly exceeded revenues. Successful transition to profitable
operations is dependent upon obtaining a level of sales adequate to support the Company’s cost structure and an uninterrupted delivery
of aircraft. In order to achieve profitable income from operations before depreciation and amortization, management currently
estimates that the Company will need to have 45 fully fractionalized aircraft. At June 30, 2008, the Company had 41.3 fractionalized
aircraft, Therefore, Avantair’s primary growth strategy is to continue to increase the number of fractional share owners and aircraft
under management. The Company’s recurring losses have resulted in an accumulated deficit of approximately $77 million and a
working capital deficiency of approximately $30.2 million as of June 30, 2008. Therefore, depending on the Company’s generation of
cash from operations the Company may obtain additional funds through equity financing, including the sale of additional shares of
common stock, asset sales, accelerated payments of maintenance and management fees, debt financing, or a combination thereof, in
order to allow the Company to sustain operanons for the foresecable future.-

Avantalr is dependent upon key personnel whose loss may adversely impact Avantair’s business.

Avantair depends on the expertise, experience and continued services of its senior management employees, especially
Steven Santo, its Chief Executive Officer, Richard A. Pytak Jr., its Chief Financial Officer and Kevin Beitzel, its Chief Operating
Officer. Santo has acquired specialized knowledge and skills with respect to Avantair and its operations and most decisions
concerning the business of Avantair will be made or significantly influenced by him. Avantair does not maintain life insurance with
respect to Santo, Pytak or Beitzel or any other of its executives. The loss of any of Santo, Pytak, Beitzel or other senior management
employees or an inability 10 attract or retain other key individuals, could materially adversely affect us. We seek to compensate and
incentivize our key executives, as well as other employees through competitive salaries and bonus plans, but there can be no
assurance that these programs will allow Avantair to retain key employees or hire new key employees. As a result, if Messrs. Santo,
Pytak and/or Beitzel were to leave Avantair, we could face substantial d1fﬁculty in hiring qualified successofs and could experience a
toss in productivity while any such successors obtain the necessary training and experience. On September 29, 2006, Avantair entered
into an employment agreement w1th Santo. However there can be no assurance that the terms of this employment agreement will be
sufficient to retain Sanito,
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~ increased competitive environment, and ifi Avantair fails to'do so, its business could be harmed. .

Avantair’s inanagement systems and personnel may not be-sufficient to effectively manage its gfov*thg .

‘Avantair’s growth strategy involves increasing the number of fractional share owners, aircraft under ma nagement and fixed
base operations. Achi2ving Avantair’s growth strategy is critical in order for its business to achieve economies of scale and to achieve
profitability. Any condition that would deny, limit or delay its ability to acquire additional aircraft, sell fractional shares and open.
additional fixed base operations in the future will constrain Avantair’s.ability to grow. Acquiring additional aircraft, selling fractional
shares and opening fixed base operations requires Avantair.to commit a substantial amount of resources. Expansion is also dependent
upon Avantair’s abilily to maintain a safe and secure operation and will require additional personnel,-equipment and facilities.

. . : .. L VT , [
An inability to hire.and retain personnel, timely secure the required equipment and facilities in a cost-effective manner,
efficiently operate Avantair’s expanded facilities, or obtain the necessary regulatory approvals may adversely affect Avantair’s ability

to achieve its growth strategy. There can be no assurance that Avantair will be able to successfully expand its bus:niess in this

Expansion of Avantair’s business will also strain its existing management resources and operational, financial and
management information systems to the point that they may no longer'be adequate to support its operations, requiring Avantair to
make significant expenditures in these areas. Avantair will need to:.develop further financial, operational and management reporting
systems and procedures to accommodate future growth and reporting requirements (including pursuant.to applicable securities laws).-
There can be no assuance that Avantair will be able to develop such'additional systems or procedures to accommodate its future -
expansion on a timely basis, and the failure'to do so could harm its business. I ' :

- . r

Material weaknesses in internal controls over financial reporting may adversely affect Avantair’s ability to comply
with financial reporting laws and regulations and to publish accurate financial statements. = - . - -

Management has made its evaluation of'our disclosure controls and procedures as of June 30, 2008, Avantdir is aware of the
existence of a materizl weakness in the design and operation of Avantair’s internal control over financial reporting that could
adversely affect its ability to record, process, and summarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in
the financial statements. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim‘financial
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

The material weakness first began with the independent audit of the fiscal years June 2004, 2005 and 2006. The auditors’
letter on material weakness states the following: ST ‘

vt

. Avantair’s accounting files for fiscal 2004 were incompleté, which required significant mocifications of
accounting data for that period. )
. . Costs of fractional shares and revenue on certain contracts during the years ended June 30,2006, 2005 and 2004
were not recognized properly due to errors made on the electronic worksheets for reporting this information.

AN Vil v . U IR T

. " There was an insufficientinumber of accounting staff with the appropriate level of knowledge; which
contributed to errofs and'deficiencies in financial reporting and disclosures. e T
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Avantair is addressing the concerns stated in the auditor letter on internal controls and is making appropriate.changes as an’
attempt to remedy concerns over internal controls and reduce the possibility of a misstatement of the Avantair’s tinancial statements.
The actions taken include the hiring of a Chief Financial\Officer, Assistant Controller, Senior Accountant and a Director of Financial
Reporting and Sarbanes Oxley Compliance. In addition, Avantair has modified its business processes to include enhanced controls
over its core processis, the more significant of which are described below. Avantair continues to educate the senior accounting staff

on the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. ' g
- . . . Tt Lo 1

v

. Y . .

During fiscal 2008, Avantair has taken action to address the recommendations contained in the auditor:' letter. In fiscal" .
2008, Avantair imple mented a new back-office accounting-software package which we anticipate will further improve the accounting
process and related internal controls, In addition, the Company has begun to review and document the processes >f each department to
implement internal controls over financial reporting in complidnce with the Sarbanes Oxley 'Act of 2002. -, o

A ' oo : . : o, - . .

Because Avantair has not completed our remediation plan, management has concluded that a material weakness in the
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures continues to exist at June 30, 2008. Any failure to effectively address a material
weakness or other control deficiency of Avantair or implement required new or'improved controls, or difficulties encountered in'their
implementation, could disrupt Avantair’s ability to process key components of its result of operations and financial condition timely

and accurately and ciuse Avantair to fail to meet its reporting obligations under rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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The aviation industry has inherent operational risks that may not be adequately covered by Avantair’s.insurance.

Avantair maintains insurance-on its aircraft'for risks commonly insured against by aircraft owners and operators, including
hull physical damage liability, third-party liability, airport premises liability, war risk liability and ground hangar keepers liability
coverage. Avantair can-give'no assurance that Avantair will be adequately insured against all risk’s or that its insurers will pay a
partticular claiin. Even if its insurance coverage is adequate to cover its losses, Avantair may not be able to timély obtain a replacement
aircraft in'the event of a loss, Furthermore, in the future, Avantair may not be able to obtain adequate insurance coverage at reasonable
rates for its fleet. Avantair’s insurance policies will also contain deductibles, limitations and exclusions which, although we believe
such policies are standard in the aviation industry, may nevertheless increase its costs. Moreover, certain accidents or other
occurrences may result in 1ntang1ble damages (such as damages to reputatlon) for which insurance may not pr0v1de an adequate
remedy . PR PR - [ . TR .
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A default under Avantair’s indebtedness may have a material adverse effect on Avantair’s financial condition.

In the event of a default under certain of Avantair’s indebtedness, the holders of the indébtedness generally would be able to
declare all,of such indebtedness, together with-acerued interest, to-be due and payable. In addition, borrowings under certain of
Avantair’s indebtedness afe secured by a first priority lien on 4ll of its assets, and, in the event of a default, the lenders generally
would be entitled to seize the collateral. In addition, default under certain debt instruments could in turn permit lenders under. other
debt instruments to declare borrowings outstanding under those other instruments to be due and payable pursuant to cross default
clauses. Accordingly, the occurrence of a default under any debt instrument, unless cured or waived, would likely have a material
adverse effect on Avantalr s business and Avantalr s results of operatlons

’1. + [ v . T
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Avantalr s loan agreements contam restnctwe covenants that will llmlt its liquidity and corporate activities. '

Avantalr s loan agreements nnpose operating and ﬁnancaa‘r restrictions that will limit Avantalr s abilityto:
i ’ P . (L f " \ v
“ o . create addmonal llens on its assets;, . - .

. ‘ma'ke mvestments;

» engage mergers and acquisitions;
b T BT s - A VAL e .

. pay d1v1dends and A G ) .

.., * i sell any of Avantair’s aircraft or;any other assets outside the ordinary course of business. .
1 . '

Therefore, Avantair will need to seck permission from its lender in order for Avantair t6 engage in some corporate actions.
Avantair’s lender’s interests may be different from those of Avantair, and no assurance can be given that Avantair will be able to
obtain its lender’s pemnssmn when needed. This.may prevent Avantair from takmg actions that are in its best interest.
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Avantalr s dependence on the Piaggio Avantl aircraft manufacturer poses a s1gnlficant risk to its business and

prospects.

Avantair has historically sold and flown only Piaggio Avanti aircraft. The type of aircraft sold and operated by Avantair is
the product of a single manufacturer. If the Piaggio Avanti, manufacturer faced production delays due to, for examptle, natural disasters
or labor strikes, Avantair may experience a significant delay in the delivery of previously ordered aircraft, which would adversely
affect its revenues and profitability and could jeopardize its ability to meet the demands of its customers. Avantair has limited
a]tematwes to find alternate sources of‘ new alrcraft SR o o e
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. . Avantair’s dependence on the lmportatlon of forelgn alrcraft poses-a significant rlsk to its busmess prnspects
Avantalr s revenue and proﬁtablhty are based in part on current laws and regulatlons regardmg the exportatlon from the

country of manufacture ‘and importation into the United States of the aircraft. Current laws and regulations, do not preclude the
exportation from the subject manufacturers’ countries of operation or 1mportat10n of the aircraft into the United States, provided that
all applicable statutory and regulatory requirements are satisfied. Modification of such statutes and regulations by any foreign
government or any agency thereof with respect to, the exportation of the aircraft or modification of such statutes and regulations by.the
federal government of the United States or any agency thereof affecting the importation of the aircraft, could pose a significant risk to
Avantair’s business operations. The risks for Avantair associated with the modification of the exportation and importation. statutes and
regulations are increased due-to Avantair’s current dependence on the 1mp0rtat10n of fore1gn aircraft for the sale of fractional interests
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. Avantair’s reputation and financial results‘could be harmed.in the event of an aecrdent OF, 1nc1dent mvolvmg its
aircraft. o B TR U R PP o O fy
; An accrdent or mcrdent inyolving one of Avantalr ] alrcraft could mvolve 51gn1ﬁcant potennal clarrns of m_]ured passengers
or others in addition to repair or replacement of a damaged alrcraft and 1ts consequentlal temporary, or permanent .0ss from service.
Although Avantair believes it currently mamtams liability insurance. in, amounts and of the type generally consnstent w1th 1ndustry
practice, the amount of such coverage may not be adequate and Avantanr may be forced to,bear substantial. losses from an acc:dent
Substantial claims resultmg Trom an accident in excess of Avantairs related insurance coverage would harm its business and ﬂnanc1al
results. Moreover, any aircraft accident or incident, even if fully insured, could cause a public perceptlon that Avantair is less safe or
reliable than other competltors which would harm Avantair’s business,, -
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The fractmnal alrcraft mdustry is competltlve. e LI Y o

. Avantair competes with national airlines, regional airlines, charter carriers, other fracgonal aircraft ownership gperators, and
particularly on shorter routes, ground transportauon Accordmg to AvData and JetNet there are only five companies wluch have 3%
or more of the total market for fractional aircraft, based upon the units in operation - NetJets Flight Options, FlexJet, C1tat1onShares
and Avantair, with NetJets having a market share of approximately 50%-and Avantair’s three largest competitors, javing a combined
market share of over §0%. According to-JetNet, as of April 2008, Avantair.had an approximate market share of 794 Many of  «
Avantair’s competitots have been in business far’longer than Avantair and have significantly greater financial stability, access to. -
capital markets and nime recognition. In addition, some of our competitors offer a larger selection of aircraft (including jet aircraft),
some of which permit owners to fly.greater distances or at greater, speeds;travel with a greater number of passengers and on shorter
advance notice before flying. Unanticipated shortfalls in-expected revenues as a result of price competition or in delivery delays by
suppliers would negatively impact our,financial results and. harm Avantair; s busrness There is no assurance that Avantair wrll be able,
to successfully compete in this mdustry SR e e U B T T T Y PR
) I AT U B - - '
Restnetron on forelgn 0wnersh1p and possuble requrred drvesuture of stock '
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In some cases, mclud1ng all current 1nternat10nal operatlons Avantalr is deemed to transport persons or property by air for
compensation, and Avantair accordingly is regulated by the FAA and the US. Department of Transportatron as an air taxi operator.
Therefore, to comply with restrictions imposed by LI.S. aviation laws,on, foreign ownership of air carriers, our cer: ificate of
incorporation and bylaws have been amended to reflect that at least 75% of our voting stock is requ1red to be held by U.S. citizens.
Although Avantair’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation contains provisions ]1m1t1ng non-cmzen ownershlp of its voting
stock, Avantair could lose its operating certificate, which allows it to conduct aircraft operations in the U.S., if such provisions prove
unsuccessful in mamtarmng the required level of citizen ownership. Such loss would have a material adverse effect on Avantair. If
Avantair determines that pérsons .who are not citizens of the U:S:.own:more than the permitted percentage, currently 25%, of
Avantair’s voting stock, Avantair may redeem such stock or,.if redémption is noispermitted:by applicable law or Avantair’s Board of
Directors, in its discretion, elects not to make such redernptlon we may restrict the voting rights of such excess shares. The required
redemption would be at a price equal to the average closing price during the preceding 10 trading days, which price could be
materlally different from the current price of tl}e common stock, or at a price at which the non-citizen acquired the: voting stock, or at a
price equal to the fair market value as determined by Avantair’s Boatd of Directors; plus the amountsof any dividends or other
distributions which may be owed to the stockholder. If a non-citizen purchases the voting stock, there can be no assurance that his
stock will not be redezmed, which redemption could result in a material loss, or that he will be able to exercise fu'l voting rights with
respect to such voting stock. Such restrictions and redemption rights may make Avantair’s equity securities less aitractive to potential
investors, which may result in Avantair’s publicly traded voting stock having a lower market price than it might have in the absence of
such restrictions and redemption rights. K

Future acquisitions of businesses or other assets by Avantair would subject:Avantair'to-additional business,
operating and industry ]‘lSkS, the lmpact of which cannot presently be evaluated, and could adversely rmpact Avanta:r $
capltalstructure. Tabe e SN BT L T L . :
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While Avantair is not presently pursuing any addltlonal acquisitions, the Company ‘may in.the future co ns1der acquisitions of
businesses:or other assets. Accordingly, there is-no current basis to evaluate the possible merits or risks of the parvicular business or.
assets that Avantair may acquire, or of the industry in which such:business.operates. If Avantair.acquires a business in an industry
characterized by a high level of risk, it may be affected by the currently unascertainable risks of that industry. Altiough Avantair’s
management will endeavor to evaluate the risks inherent in.a particular industry or target business, there can be no assurance that

Avantair will properl:/ ascertain or assess all of the significant risk factors.
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In addition, the financing of any acquisition could ddversely impact-Avantair’s capital structure as any such financing would
likely include the issuance of additional equity securities and/or the borrowing of funds. The issuance of additional equity securities
may significantly reduce the equity interest of existing stockholders and/or adversely affect prevailing market pnces for Avantair’s
common stock. Tf Avantair i Incurs mdebtedness it could increase the' risk of a default that would entitle the holder to declare such
indebtedness due and payablée and/or td seize any collateral securing the indebtedness. In addition, default under one debt instrument
could in turn pem‘ut lenders under other debt instruiments'to dectare borrowmgs outstanding under those other instruments to be due
and payabte pursuant to cross default clauses. Accdrdmgly, the fmancmg of” future acqu1smons could adversely impact the ‘capital
structure and equlty interest in Avantarr ' : "

' it . A LT . “ PR

Except as réquired by law or the rules of any securities exchange on which Avantair’s securities might be listed at the time
Avantair seeks to consummate an acquisition, shareholders will not be asked to vote on any proposed acqulsltron and will not be
entitled to exercise conversion rights in connection with: any such acquisition: :

Avantair’s businessis subject to extensive government regulatlon, which can result in mcreased costs, de]ays, lrmlts on
its operating flexibility and competrtlve dlsadvantages feos T '
Commercial aireraft operators are-subject to extensive regulatory requ1rements Many of these requirements result in
significant costs. For example, from time to-time the Federal ‘Aviation Administration (FAA) issues directives'and other regulations
relating to the maintenance and operation of aircraft, and compliance with those requirements drives significant expenditures.

; , . “ o,y T [ n o

Moreover, additional laws, regulations, taxes and airport rates and charges have been enacted from time to timé that have' -
significantly increased the costs of commercial aircraft operations, reduced the demand for air travel or restricted the way we can
conduct our business. For example, the Aviation and Transportation Security Act, which became law in'2001, mandates the
federalization of certain airport security procedures and imposes additional security requirements on airlines. Similar laws or
regulations or other governmental actions in the future may adversely affect Avantalr 5 busmess and ﬁnancral results.

PR PR A

Avantair’s results of operatlons may be affected by changes in law and future actrons taken by govemmental agencres
havrng _|ur15d1<:t1on over Avantalr 5 operatlons mcludmg
. v . + RS i . e .
v changes in the law which affect the services that can be offered by commercral aircraft operators in’
' pamcular markets and at partrcular arrports C
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.. restnctrons on competltlve practices (for example court orders Or agency regulatlons or orders, that would

curtail a commercral aircraft operator’s ability to respond to a competrtor)

1
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o - the adoptron of regulatlons that impact customer servrce standards (for example new passenger secunty
. standards) or. = . :
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« the adoption of more restrictive locally-imposed tioise restrictions.

Also, Avantair i is subject to various federal and state environmental statutes.
. Ji 2 -

The FAA has Jurrsdlctron over many aspects of Avantalr ] busmess mcludmg personnel alrcraﬁ and ground facilities.
Avantair is required to have an FAA Air Carrier Operating Certificate to transport personnel and property for compensanon in aircraft
it operates directly. The FAA certificate contains operating specrﬁcations that allow Avantair to'conduct its present operations, but it
is potentially subject to amendmeént, suspension 6r revocation in accordance with procedures set forth in federal aviation laws. The
FAA is responsible for ensuring that Avantair complies with all: FAA regulations relating to the operation of its aviation business, and
conducts regular inspections regarding the safety; training and general regulatory complrance of its aviation operatlons Addttlon'dly,
the FAA requires Avantair to file reports confirming our eontmued compliance. - L
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Avantair could be adversely affected by a failure or disruption of its computer, communications or other technology

systems.

. : . .- . .
Avantair is highly dependent on its computer systems and call center software to opcrate its business. Tlre systems and
software on which Avantair relies to manage the scheduling and monitoring of its flights could be disrupted due to events beyond
Avantair’s control, including natural disasters, power failures, terrorist attacks, equipment failures, software failurzs and computer
viruses and hackers. Eurther, the vendor of Avantair’s scheduling software is a small business and highly dependent on'the services of
its founder. Any substantial or repeated failure of Avantair’s systems or software could impact Avantair’s operaticns and customer
service, result in a disruption.in flight scheduling, the loss of.important data, loss of revenues, increased costs and generally harm its *
business. Moreover, a catastrophic failure of certain of Avantair’s vital systems could limit its ability to operate ﬂlghts for an
indefinite period of tirne, which would have a matenal adverse lmpact on Avantalr s business. . - - |

Avantair may not be able to obtam acceptable customer contracts covering all of the fractlonal interests of its new ;
airplanes which cculd adversely affect our profi tablllty' e ‘ . oo '

L -

Avantair intends to subslanually expand its fleet of a1rplanes and has contractual comm:tments to purchase 60 addmonal
Piaggio aircraft. through 2013. Although the contract provides flexibility to defer aircraft clellverles in the future, the fractional ,
interests of Avantair’s new alrplanes may not be fully sold when they are placed into serv1ce As a result Avantair’s financial
performance could be adversely affected if Avantair is unable o sell all of the fractional interests in these alrcraft As of June 30,
2008, the Company had 26 fractional a1rcraf‘t shares available for sale. _ o PR - , .
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Sales of fractional interests in excess of avéjlhble ﬂeet capacity could adversely affect Avantair’s business.

Since fractional shareowners generally desire td enter a fractional program when they make their decision to purchase a
fractional share, it is difficult for a fractional operator to pre-sell many shares in advance of receipt of additiona! aircraft. An aircraft
fleet prowdes a finite level of capacity, and the additiofi of sighificant additional share owners to the tisage base- ‘may require an
increase in charter usage, which may not be economical. If Avantair does not adequately manage the sales process and sells shares in
excess of its available capacity, its busmess could be adversely affected :

. i . ®
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Avantair’s busmess could be adversely affected by a fallure to attract and retain quallﬁed pilots and nther operatlons
personnel. DR v

Avantair’s ability to attract and retain qualified pilots, mechanics, and other highly trained personnel wil! be an important
factor in determining Avantair’s future success. Many of Avantair’s customers require pilots of aircraft that service: them to have high
levels of flight experience. The market for these experienced and highly trained personnel is extremely competitive. If Avantair is
unable to attract and retam such persons, flight operations may be dlsmpted whlch could have a negatwe effect on our results

! I (7 R

Avantair’s husmess is affected by many changing economic condltmns beyond its control whlch may ad\ ersely affect,
its results of operations. . . ‘ . o L - e L , ,

Ownershtp offractlonal shares is hkely con51dered a luxury.item to consumers, espec;ally compared to the COSts assocaated
with commercial air travel. As a result, a general downturn in economic, busmess and f'mancral conditions, including recession,
inflation and higher interest rates, could have an adverse effect on consumers’ spendmg habits and could cause thein to travel less
frequently and, to the extent they travel, to travel usmg commercial air carriers or other me¢ans considered to be more economlcal than

via a fractionally owned aircraft. - SR

The operation of aircraft is dependent on the price and availability of fuel. Continued pericds of historically high fuel‘
costs may materially adversely affect Avantair’s operating results,

Avantair’s operating results may be significantly impacted by changes in the availability or price of fuel sor aircraft operated
by Avantair. Fuel prices have increased substantially since 2004. Although Avantair is currently able to obtain adequate supplies of
fuel, it is impossible to predict the price of fuel. Political disruptions or wars involving oil-producing countries, changes in government
policy, changes in fuel production capacity, environmental concerns and other unpredictable events may result in fuel supply
shortages and additional fuel price increases in the future. Furthermore, Avantair bears the entire cost of fuel when repositioning
aircraft. There can be no assurance that Avantair will be able to fully recover its increased fuel costs by passing these costs on 1o its
customers. In the event that Avantair is unable to do so, Avantair's operating results will be adversely affected.

Avantair’s reliance on current laws and regulations with respect to the opportunity to conduct sales with foreign
customers and flights to currently permitted areas poses a significant risk to its business prospects.

Avantair’s revenue and profitability are based in part on current laws and regulations by the federal goveinment of the
United States and the agencies thereof, including but not limited to the Department of Homeland Security, the Department of State,
the Department of Commerce and the Department of the Treasury, allowing sales to and provision of services for foreign persons and
flights to foreign locations that are permissible under current laws and regulations. Modification of such statutes and regulations could
pose a significant risk to Avantair’s business operations by reducing the pool of potential customers through the pre clusion of foreign
persons and the locations of permissible flights.
5




Risks Related to Our Common Stock, Warrants, and Units *

There will be a substantial number of shares of our common stock available for resale in the future that may be
dilutive'to ouir current stockholders and may cause a decrease in the market price of our common stock.

1
1

AL present we have 15,286,792 shares of common stock outstandmg, all of which shares of common stock are freely
tradable.: In addition, 2,951,457 shares of common stock undetlying the Company's Series A Convertible Preferred Stock were
registered pursuant to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-152036) declared effective on August 1, 2008. On
June 17, 2008, the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission a post-effective amendment on Form S-3 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Forim S-1 (No. 333-121028).Upon effectiveness of the amendment, the registration statement
will be available for the issuance of shares of common stock upon exercise of the Company's outstanding publically traded warrants.
The Company also approved a warrant.retirement program, pursuant to which it will offer the holders of its 13,800,000 publically
traded warrants the opportunity to exercise those warrants on'an amendéd term for a limited time. The Company is modifying the
13,800,000 warrants o reduce the per-share exercise price from $5.00 to $3.00. In addition, for each warrant exercised by a holder at
the reduced exercise price, the holder wiil have the option to engage in a cashless exercise by exchanging ten additional warrants for
one additional share of common stock. Warrants tendered for cashless exercise may only be tendered in groups of ten and no
fractional shares will bé issued for'odd lots of nine o less. The Company filed a"Tender Offer Statement on Schedule TO and related
materials as a pre-commencement communication. The Tender Offer has not commenced and the Company and its agents are not
currently acceptmg tenders at this time. The Company will issue a press release announcmg the commencement of the tender offer
once it has begun. In addition to the 13,800,000 warrants above, there dre also 346,000 additional warrants outstanding which are not
eligible to participate in the program indicated above. All of these warrants are presently exercisable, and all of our common stock
issuable upon exercise of the wairants is available for Tesale upon exercise. There is also the possibility of the future issuance of up to
an additional 4,774,873 shares of our common stock based upon the company’s financial performance and the trading price-of our
common stock: The Avantair stockholders who will receive the balance of the shares of our commeon stock issued in the acquisition -
have agreed that their shares cannot be sold until a spemﬁed period of time after the filing of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Also, 1,500 000 shares of our common stock was purchased by our initial stockholders prior to our
initial public offermg and were held in éscrow until February 24 2008, at which time they were released from escrow and be eligible
for resale in the public market subject to compliance with appllcable law. Qur initial stockhelders are entitied to demand that we
register the resale of their shares of common stock at any,time after the date on which,their shares are released from escrow. The
presence of these additional shares of common stock eligible for trad\ng in the public market may have an adverse effect on the market
price of our common stock. -
As a result of contingent deferred purchase price payments payable to Old Avanta:r stockholders, our stock price
may be adversely affected. ... o : L :

; e e . L
Under the terms of the Stock Purehase Agreement Old Avantalr s stockholders are eligible to receive contmgent deferred
purchase price payments: If at'any'time after the closing-of the acquisition, but prior to February 23, 2009, the closing trading price on
the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board (or on a national securities market on which our common stock is then quoted for trading) of our
common stock for 20 trading days within any 30 trading day period equals or exceeds $8.50 per share, the Company will issue to Old
Avantair’s stockholders an aggregate of 4,774,873 additional’ shares of our common stock. If any of these deferred purchase pnce
. payments are made to Old ‘Avantair’s stockholders 0ur stock price may be adverse]y affected.

! L3
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Our shares of common stock are subject to the SEC’s penny stock rules, broker-dealers may experience difficulty in
completing customer transactions and trading activity in our securities may be adversely affected.

We have net tangible assets of $5,000,000 or less and our ordinary shares have a market price per share of less than $5.00,
transactions in our ordinary shares may be subject to the “penny stock™ rules promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
Under these rules, broker-deaters who recommend such securities to persons other than institutional accredited investors must:

. make a special written suitability determination for the purchaser;
. receive the purchaser’s written agreement to a transaction prior to sale,
|
| . provide the purchaser with risk disclosure documents that identify certain risks associated with investing

| ‘ & in “penny stocks” and that describe the market for these “penny stocks” as well as a purchaser’s legal
remedies; and . G .

. obtain a signed and dated acknowledgment from the purchaser demonstrating that the purchaser has
actually received the required risk disclosure document before a transaction in a permy stock™ can be
completed. \

"Shares of our common stock are subject to these rules, broker-dealers may find it difficult to effectuate customer
trangactions and trading activity in our securities may be adversely affected As a result, the market price of our s curitics may be
depressed, and you may find it more d1ff' cult to sell our securities.

1

We have been unable to receive a listing of our securities on NASDAQ or another national securities exchange, and
this may make it more difficult for our stockholders to sell their securities.

"Shares of our common stock, warrants and units are currently traded in the over-the-counter market and quoted on the
OTCBB. Our common stock, warrants and units are not currently eligible for inclusion in The NASDAQ Stock Market. The listing of
our common stock, warrants and units on The NASDAQ Stock Market or another national securities exchange was not a condition of
the acquisition and there is no assurance that this listing will be obtained. If we are unable to receive a listing or approval of trading of
securities on NASDAQ or another national securities exchange, then it may be more difficult for stockholders to sell their securities.

An effective registration statement may not be in place when an investor desires to exercise warraats, thus
precluding such investor from being able to exercise his, her or its warrants and causing such warrants to be pracncally
worthless.

No warrant will be exercisable and we will not be obligated to issue shares of our common stock unless, at the time a holder
seeks to exercise such warrant, a prospectus relating to the common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrant is current and the
common stock has been registered or qualified or deemed 10 be exempt under the securities laws of the state of residence of the holder
of the warrants. Under the terms of the warrant agreement, we have agreed to use our best efforts to meet these coaditions and to
maintain a current prospectus relating to the common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants until the expiration of the warrants.
However, we cannot assure you that we will be able to do so, and if we do not maintain’a current prospectus related to the common
stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants, holders will be unable to exercise their warrants and we will not be required to settle any
such warrant exercise. If the prospectus relating to the common stock issuable upon the exercise of the warrants is not current or if the
common stock is not qualified or exempt from qualification in the jurisdictions in which the holders of the warranis reside, the
warrants may have no value, the market for the warrants may be limited and the warrants may expire worthless.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments -~ + - . .
None,
Item 2. Facilities .-

Avantair currently leases the following principal properties:

. approximately 125,000 square feet of office and hangar space at 4311 General Howard Drive, Clearwater, FL
33762, under a lease that expires April 30, 2020,

. apprommately 63,258 square feet of office and hangar space at 575 Aviation Drive, Camarillo, California under a
lease that expires on August 1, 2021; and

¢ effective August 1, 2008, approxtmately 17,752 square feet of hangar, shop and office space at Essex County
Airport, in Caldwell, New Jersey under a lease that is month to month.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

- Avaniair is not involved in any legai proceedings which it believes will have a significant effect on its business, financial
position, results of operations or liquidity, nor are we aware of any proceedings that are pending or threatened which may have a
significant effect on its business, financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

From time to time, Avantair may be subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of business, involving
prlnc1pally commercial charter party disputes. It is expected that these claims would be covered by insurance if they involve liabilities
such as arise from collision, other casualty, death or personal i injuries to crew, subject to customary deductibles. Those claims, even if

lacking merit, could result in the expenditure of significant financial and managerial resources. '

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders '

No matters were submitted to a vote of our security holders through the solicitation of proxies or otherWISe during the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2008.
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PART I
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Ejuity Securities
MARKET PRICE OF AND DIVIDENDS ON COMMON STOCK

Our units, common stock and warrants are traded on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board under the symbols AAIRU, AAIR
and AAIRW, respec:ively. The following table sets forth the range of high and low closing bid prices for the uni‘s, common stock and
warrants for the periods indicated since such common stock and warrants commenced public trading on March 8, 2005. The over-the-
counter market quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission and may not necessarily
reflect actual transactions. : '

Common Stock(1) ' Warrants(1) - Units(2)
High Low High ~  Low High  ~ Low
2005 . . - .- . R .- . e e - P
First Quarter S 520 5.12 070 - 065 660 630
Second Quarter 5.20 490 0.64 052 635 5.95
Third Quarter , o 5.15 4.90 0.64 C046 630 ST5
Fourth Quarter _ 523 506 059 041 627 590,
2006 ) S _ S L -
First Quarter _ o548 519 v 078 050 706 . 613
Second Quarter 545 5.30 077 043 688 620
Third Quarter N 531 s29 048 036 620 6.00
Fourth Quarter o L 551 5331 070 035 670 6.02 .
2007 (3 S - C . ] _
Third Quarter(®) s 430  _ o080 05 715 638
Fourth Quarter o 530 431 08 053 68 545,
2008 Ll e oo el
First Quarter .. .s2s 447 015 04 68533
Second Quarter <. - 5§30 423 084 053 . 650 505
Third Quarter 51528 o8t 014 625 301
Fourth Quarter ' .. 3.00 194 . 0.8 0.06 298 2.30

(1} Commencing March 8, 2005

(2) Commencing February 25, 2005
(3) On February 22, 2007, Avantair changed its fiscal year
(4) Commencing February 22, 2007, date of Reverse Merger

5

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never declared or-paid cash dividends on our common stock. We currently expect to retain all future eamings for
use in the operation and expansion of our business and do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foresceable future. The
declaration and payment of any dividends in the future will be determined by our board of directors, in its discretion, and will depend
on a number of factors, including our earnings, capital requirements and overall financial condition. '
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

The following table sets forth information regarding the Company’s Equity Compensation Plan as of June 30, 2008:

' v ‘ Number of securities
remaining available for
. Number of securities Weighted average future issuance under
to be issued upon exercise price of equity compensation
exercise of outstanding plans {excluding
_ , outstanding options, options, warrants securities
Plan category - warrants and rights and rights reflected in column (a))
T L . I ) B o b i )
fquily compensation plans approved by security
holders L B ) 150,000 § 534 . 1,136,000
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders o o - — —
Total 150.000 $ 5.34 1,136,000

The maximum number of shares of Avantair’s common stock issuable in connection with the 2006 Long-Term Incentive
Plan (which we sometimes refer to as the Plan} may not exceed 1,500,000 shares. There are 150,000 shares subject to issuance upon
exercise of outstanding stock options; 200,834 shares have been issued with respect to awards of restricted stock; and 1,149,166
remain available for future issuance under the Plan.

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

On November 14, 2007, pursuant to the terms of the Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, dated November 14, 2007, by
and among Avantair, Hummingbird Microcap Value Fund, Hummingbird Concentrated Fund LP, Hummingbird Value Fund LP, |
Hound Partners, LP and Hound Partners Offshore Fund, LP, Avantair issued 112,000 shares of its newly-created Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock for an aggregate purchase price of $11,200,000. The shares of Se'l"ies A Convertible Preferred Stock issued under the
Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and bear restrictive legends
that reflect this status. The securities were issued in a private placement in reliance on the exemption from registration provided by
Section 4(2} of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Avantair did not engage in any general solicitation or advertisement for the
issuance of thesc securities. These securities were purchased by a total of five (5) investors, which are comprised of two groups'of
affiliated cntities. In connection with this issuance, each of the investors represented that (i} it is an accredited investor as this term is
defined in Regulation D under the Securities Act, (ii) the securities it is acquiring cannot be resold except pursuant to a effective
registration under the Securities Act or in reliance on an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act, and that
the certificates representing such securities bear a restrictive legend to that effect and (iii) it intends to acquire the securities for
investment only and not with a view to the resale thereof.

On December 5, 2007, pursuant to the terms of the Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, dated December 5, 2007, by and
among Avantair, Potomac Capital Partners LP, Pleiades Investment Partners R LP and Potomac Capital International Ltd., Avantair
issued 40,000 shares of its newly-created Series A Convertible Preferred Stock for an aggregate purchase price of $4,000,000. The
shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock issued under the Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement were not registered under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and bear restrictive legends that reflect this status, The securities were issued in a private '
placement in reliance on the exemption from registration provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Avantair
did not engage in any general solicitation or advertisement for the issuance of these securities. These securities were purchased by a
total of three (3) investors, which are comprised of one group of affiliated entities. In connection with this issuance, each of the
investors represented that (i) it is an accredited investor as this term is defined in Regulation D under the Securities Act, (ii) the
securities it is acquiring cannot be resold except pursuant to a effective registration under the Securities Act or in reliance on an
exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act, and that the certificates representing such securities bear a
restrictive legend to that effect and (iii) it intends to acquire the securities for investment only and not with a view to the resale thereof.
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Effective August 1, 2008, 2,951,457 shares of common stock underlying the Company's Series A Convertible Preferred Stock
were registcred and are freely tradable pursuant to the declaration of the Company s Reglstratlon Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-
152036) filed by the Company on June 30, 2008, E

In addition, on June 17, 2008, the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission a post-cffective amendment
on Form S-3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-121028). Upon effectiveness of the amendment, the
registration statermnen: will be available for’ the issuance of shares of common stock upon exercise of the Company”’s outstanding
publically traded warrants. The Company also approved a warrant retirement program, pursuant to which it will offer the holders of its
13,800,000 publically traded warrants the opportunity to exercise those warrants on an amended term for a limited time. The Company
is modifying the 13,800,000 warrants to reduce the per-share exercise price from $5.00 to $3.00. In addition, for r:ach warrant
exercised by a holder at the' reduced exercise price, the holder will have the option to engage in a cashless exercise by exchanging ten
additional warrants for one additional share of common stock. Warrants tendered for cashless exercise may only be tendered in groups
-~ of ten and no fractional shares will be issued for odd lots of nine or less: The Company fited a Tender Offer Statement on Schedule.
TO and related materials as a pre- -commencement communication. The Tender Offer has not commenced and the Company and its
- agents are not currently accepting tenders at this time. The Company will issue a press release announcing the conmericement of the
' tender offer once it has begun. In addition to the 13,800,000 warrants above, there are also 346,000 additional warrants outstanding
which are not eligible to participate in the program indicated above. All of these warrants are presently exercisab.e, and all of our
common stock issuable upon”exercise of the warrants is available for resale upon exercise.

Item 6. Setected Financial Data ' ' . K

The following table presents our summary historical consolidated financial information. The summary consolidated
statements of operations data for each of the two fiscal years in the period ended June 30, 2008 and the consolidated balance sheet data
as of June 30, 2008 and 2007 have been derived from our audited consolidated financia! statements included elsewhere in this report.
The consolidated statement of operatlons data for each of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2006, 2005, and 2004 and the consolidated
balance sheet information as of June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was derived from our audited consolidated financial statements which
are not presented hetein. These historical results are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected,in any future period.

. [
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Avantair, Inc. and Subsidiaries \
-(Formerly Ardent.Acquisition Corporation) G

Consolidated Statement of Operations - .~
' g I - L .o " " " Years Ended June 30, -
' 2008 2007 - 2006 2005 ' 2004
Revenue e el )
Fragtional aicraftsold 7" T8 43426696 S 29,695,175 §_23756070°S 10,580,859 S _ 3,226,890
Ma[’ntenanc.e and management fees. 58211,457 38,787,596 22,824,940 11,645,999 3,463,810 .
Charter card and demonstration revenwé _ ' 10233232 6420336 - 1559907 984243 - ' 671,278
FBO and other revenues ___‘v‘ e 3,747,598 1,450,124 254,463 183,277 356,070
Total revenue . 115 618, 983 76,393,232 48,395,380 23,394,378 7,718,048
bperating expenses e o o
Cost of fractional aircraft sharessold .~ - 36 637 959 24,370, 988 19,166,722 9,318,013 2925978
Cost of flight operations _503058,692_‘“35263_6_5_52()_57_ 25,362,985 10,157,566 3,875,815
Costoffuel " _ . [ 116489422 " 10192406 6419835 4226802 1744270
Write-off of ah alrcraft tdeposit - 300000 - - -
General and administrative expenses- - . . 20,703,120 - 18,540,610 = 10,757,280 4,952 472 7 3,2]2,940_ .
Selling expenses 4670246 = 4333268  3672,754 97{_311_64_ 514,430
Depr_eciationu_am_i amorti__z_a@i_pr_l S 3,624,710 2,013,530 2,649,096 1,932,757 1,011,464
Total operating expenses 132,184,149 = 95415859 68028672 31,563,774 _ 13,284,897
Loss fromoperations __ ~~ ~ (16,565,166) (19,022,627) (19,633,292)  (8,169,396)  (5,566,849)

Other income (expenses)

Interestincome 482666 444179 SS57508 490591 237927
Other income . .. .. _s%blpe62 284723 437982 167,329 553,457
Interest expense (3,661,227)  (3,406,181) (2,110,119) (1,194,723) (269,036)
Total other expenses e (2316,899) (2,677.279)  (1,114,629) (536.803) 522,348
Net Loss o (18 882 065) (2] 699 ,906) (20 747 921) (8,706,199)  (5,044,201)
Preferred stock dlwdcnd o (903 851) - - - -

Net loss attributable to common stockhnlders B $ (19,785916)% (21,699,906)% (20,747.921)% (8,706,199 % (5,044 501)

Loss per com!rlon Shal:i?_: e . - ) o i ) )

Basic and diluted =~ 3 (1. 30) $ {2. 47) $ {6.31)% (2.65)8 (1.3
Weighted-average common shares outstanding: o A .
Basic and diluted 15,230 482 8,780,234 3,288,590 3.288.590 3,288,590
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Consohdated Balam € Sheet Data
Total Assets

Long-Term Obhgauons o

~ Stockholders? Deficit '+ °

As of June 30, C .

- § (3]651'546)$ (1!;959,024)'53 (35,030,607) § (l3,748,7(l0)$

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
S 204477455 $ 160,490,260 § 105,154,683 % 93,640,621 S 53,186,447
5123018837 § 112,509063 $ 72,844,665 § _ 57,777,196 § _ 24,356,483
(5,042,501)

)

ltem 7. Managemenl’s Dlscusswn And Analysm Of Fmanclal Condmon And Results OfOperanons o
iy oy B
The fol!owmg disciission should be read in conjunction wtlh the consolidated financial stalémenlv and related notes which
appear elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form [10-K. This discussion contains forward-looking statements-that involve risks and
uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of
various factors, including those discussed below and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, particularly under the heading
“Risk Factors.” | . L S . . Y

Overview S o

' - * v ‘ ) Lo ' o .‘. 1 . ] .

Avantair is engaged in the sale and management of fractional ownerships-of: professionally piloted aircraft for personal and

business use. According to AvData, Avantair is the fifth largest company in the:North American fractional airéraft industry:"As of
June 30, 2008, Avantair operated 49 aircraft (which includes 5 core aircraft) with 60 additional Piaggio Avanti 11 aircraft on order-
Avantair opetates fixzd flight based operations (FBO) in Camarillo, California and, effective August 1, 2008 in Caldwell, New Jersey.
The Company also provides aircraft maintenance, concierge and other services to customers and services to the Avantair fleet from
hangars and office locanons in Clearwater Florlda Camarillo, Cahfom:a and Caldwell New Jersey.

Avantatr generates revenues pnmanly through the sale of fractional ownershlp shares of alrcraft by pmv1dmg operatlons
maintenance and management services related to these aircraft, and from the sale of time cards provtdmg 25 flight time hours per year
of access 1o its aircraft fleet wuhout the’ reqmrement ‘of purchasing fractlonal ownersh1p shares. The Company mirkets and sells
fractional ownership mterests to individuals and businesses with a minimum share size of a 1/16 ® ownershlp interest. Under
maintenance and management agreements wnth fractlonal owners, Avantalr prowdcs pllots mamtenance fuel and hangar space for the
aircraft. .

LI L + " ¥ ¢

As a relatively new Company, Avantair has expended funds necessary to establish the operations and business infrastructure
required of a fractional airline and has not generated sufficient cash from operations to fund its growth. Therefore:, the Company raised
additional funds through equity offerings, debt financing and the sale of assets to fund operations. In connection w1th future fi Inancing
of growth, and depending upon the Company’s generation of cash from operations, the Company may obtain adcitional funds through
equity financing, including the sale of additional shares of common stock, assets sales, accelerated payments of raaintenance and
management fees, debt financing, or a combination thereof. :

3 L

Avantair presently sources all of its aircraft from a single manufacturer, Piaggio America, Inc. As of June 30, jO'OS, Avantair
had contractual commitments to purchase 60 additional Piaggio Avanti I1 aircraft through 2013 at wholesale pricing for an aggregate
of approximately $3:19 million from this manufacturer. The Company has been able to defer aircraft deliveries to bring them in line
with sales expectations based upon existing economic conditions and the contract provides flexibility to defer aircraft-deliveries in the
future: At June 30, 2008, the Company had 26 fractional aircraft shares available for sale: In addition to the cost.of acquiring aircraft,
Avantair’s primary expenses have been related to-fuel, aircraft repositioning (i.e., moving an aircraft to dnother location to !
accommodate a customer’s need and demonstration flights for sales purposes), maintenance, charters and insurance.

In order to achieve profitable income from operations before depreciation and amortization, manageme=nt currently estimates
that the Company will need to have 45 fully fractionalized aircraft. At June 30, 2008, the Company had 41.3 fractionalized aircraft.
Therefore, Avantair's primary growth strategy is to continue to incrcase the number of fractional share owners and aireraft under
managément. The Campahy believes income from operations before-depreciation and amortization is useful to investors as it excludes
certain non-cash expenses that do not directly relate to the operation of fractionalized aircraft. This measure is a’supplement to
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) used to prepare the Company’s financial statements and shonld not be viewed as a
substitute for GAA]’ measures, In addition, the Company’s non-GAAP measure may not be comparable to non- -GAAP ‘measures of
other companies. In:ome- from operations according to GAAP would include depreciation and amortization expense, estimated to be
approximately $330,000 per month'at the time of fully fractionalizing'the'45 ™ dircraft. See also further discussion at “Liquidity and
Capital Resources” section following..

o o
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Critical Accounting Policies _ .

Avantair’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations for the purposes of this document are
based upon its combined and consolidated financial statements, which have been preparcd in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. :

Avantair’s significant accounting policies are presented in Note 2 to its audited consolidated financial statements, and the
following summaries should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this
report. While all accounting policies affect the financial statements, certain policies may be viewed as critical. Critical accounting
policies are those that are both most important to the portrayal of the financial statements and results of operations and that require
Avantair’s management’s most subjective or complex judgments and estimates. Avantair's management believes the policies that fal
within this category are the policies related to revenue recognition, aircraft costs related to fractional sales, use of estimates, capital
assets, impairment of long-lived assets,.income taxes and loss per share.

Revenue Recognition . o ‘ L L. . S .

The Company sells fractional shares of aircraft and the related maintenance and management services that accompany
aircraft ownership. The aircraft are sold in 1/16th shares or multiples thereof, The purchase agreement grants the customer the right to
the use of the aircraft for a specified number of hours each year the aircraft is in service. When a customer purchases a fractional
share, they are also required to enter into a five-year management and maintenance agreement. Under the terms of the maintenance
and management agreement, the Company ag,rees to manage, operate and maintain the aircraft on behalf of the customer in exchange
for a fixed monthly fee.. P e

. [
H . .

4 oo . - .

F racrional Aircrafi Shares ‘

The Company does not have objective evidence to determine the fair value and l6cate fractional share revenué from that
generated from the management and maintenance agreement, and, as a result, has adopted the provisions of the Emerging Issues Task
Force (“EITF”} Issue No. 00-21 “Accounting for Rcvcnue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables” to account for the sale of
fractional shares of aircraft. Accordingly, as the sales of the fractional shares cannot be separated from the underlymg maintenance
and management agreement, fractional share sale revenue is recognized ratably over the’ ﬁvc-year tife of the mamlenance and
management agreement. The period in which revenue is recognized will be evaluated on a periodic basis. Factors that impact
management’s assessment of the most appropriate period of revénue recognition will include, but not be limited to, customer turnover,
terms and conditions of the related fractional share sale, maintenance arrangements as well as any other factor that could impact
revenue.

Management and Maintenance Agreement

Revenue earned in connection with the management and maintenance agreements is recognized ratably over the term of the
agreement or five yeats. If a customer prepays its management and maintenance fee for-a period of one year or longer, the prepayment
is recorded as unearned revenue and amortized into revenue on a monthly basis in accordance with the schedule provided for within
each agreement.

Aircraft Costs Related To F mcnonai Sales

v
'

The Company reﬂocts aircraft costs related to the salc of fractlonal aircraft shares. As-a result of the adoption of EITF 00-21,
the Company-recognizes revenue from the sale of fractional shares as income over the five-year period. The aircraft costs related to
sales of fractional shares consist of the cost of the aircraft and are recorded as an asset and recognized as the cost of atrcraft shares
sold over the five-year period.

Charter Card and Demonsfranon Revenues : .ot

Demonstranon revenues. The Company charges prospective new aircraft share owners on an hourly basis for each hour the
prospective share gwners are flown to demonsirate the quality and capabilities of the aircraft. The Company recognizes revenue
related to these demonstration flights when the flight is completed. :

Charter Card revenues. The Company sells access to its aircraft fleet through a 25 hour time card for flight time without the
requirement to purchase an ownership share in an aircraft. The card holder pays the Company the entire amount in advance-of access
to the aircraft fleet. The Company defers the entire amount paid and recognizes revenue on an incremental basis as aircraft are flown,

FBO and Other Revenue

FBO and other revenu is comprised primarily of revenue from the sale of fuel at the Company’s FBO facilities and rental of
hangar space at the Company’s operating locations. This revenue is recorded when goods are delivered or services have been
rendered.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated .
financial statements znd accompanying disctosures. These estimates and assumptions are based upon management’s best knowledge
of current events and actions that the Company may take in the future. The Company is subject to uncertainties such as the impact of*
future events, economic, environmental and political factors and changes in the Company’s business environment; therefore, actual
results could differ from these estimates. Accordingly, the accounting estimates used in the preparation of the Company’s financial
statements will change as new events occur, as more experience is acquired, as additional information is obtained and as the
Company’s operating, environment changes. Changes in estimates are made when circumstances warrant. Such changes in cstimates
and refinements in estimation methodologies are reflected in reported results of operations; if material, the effects of changes in
estimates are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated and combined financial statements. Significant estimates und assumptions by
management affect: the proper recording of revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables, the allowance for doubtful accounts, the
carrying value of long-lived assets, the amortization period of long-lived assets, the provision for income taxes and related deferred
tax accounts, certain accrued expenses and contingencies. ‘

' - e . Kl . v,

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost and consists principally of aircraft purchased which are not fractionalized and
" which provide additional capacity to the Company to meet customer demand. Depreciation and amortization is computed using the
straight-tine method over the following useful lives: - - :

- ' TR

Aircraft

_ _ 7 years
Office equipment and furniture and fixtures 5.7 y ears
Flight management software/hardware - 5 years - " ,
Vehicles . o S o 5 ye‘ars. TR ' .
Improvements ) Lesser of estimated .useful life or the term of the lease

f * - J : . . }
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs of property and equipment are expensed as incurred. Major improvements are
capitalized. : c -

The Company’s capitalized interest costs relating to borrowings made for the acquisition of aitcraft are as fotlows:

.
. '

T 2008 L 2007 2006 .
Total interestcosts $ 3,661,227 § 3952087 § 2,610,119
Less: amount capitalized — °~ — 545,907 500,000
:Interestgxpganse o , $ 3,661,227 § 3,406,1¢0 § 2,110,119

T T it

Long-lived Assets ¢

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144, “Accounting for Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets,” the Company reviews long-lived assets to be held-and-used for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. If the carrying amount of in asset exceeds its
estimated future undiscounted cash flows the asset is considered to be impaired. Impairment losses are measured as the amount by
which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the -
carrying amount or Tair value less costs to sell. As a result of the analyses, no impairment charges were required for long-lived assets
during the year ended June 30, 2008.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes.” Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between
the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax
credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation allowanc: is established to
reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts expected to be realized.
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Loss Per Share

. Basic loss per share is computed by dividing-loss available to common stockholders by the weighted average common
shares outstanding for the period: Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other.
contracts to issue common stock were éxercised or converted into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that then
shared in the eamings of the entity. Since the effect of outstanding options and warrants is antidilutive due to the losses incurred by the
Company, they have been exctuded from the Company’s computation of net loss per share for all years presented. A total of
14,496,834 of potentially dilutive securitics were excluded.from the calculation of diluted loss per share for the year ended June 30,
2008 and were comprised of 14,146,000 warrants to purchase one share of the Company’s common stock, 200,834 shares of restricted
stock and 150,000 outstanding options.- The total number of potentially dilutive securities excluded from the calculation of diluted loss
per share for the year ended June 30, 2007 was 14,510,000-which were comprised of 14,146,000 warrants to purchase one share of the
Company’s common stock, 214,000 share§ of restricted stock and 150,000 outstanding options. .

[ HETEN. s (N t

Stock-Based Compensation”’ o - o

The Company accounts for share-based compensation to employees and directors in accordance with SFAS 123(R) “Share-
Based Payment,” which requires the recognition of compensation expense for employee stock options and other share-based
payments. Under SFAS 123(R), expense related to employee stock options and other share-based payments is recognized over the
relevant service period based on the fair value-of each stock option grant. The stock option compensation expense was approximately
$151,000 for the year ended June 30, 2008. The Company issued 22,500 shares of restricted common stock to certain members of its
Executive Officers in June 2008 and 15,000 shares of restricted common stock to the non-employee members of its Board of Directors
in March 2008. One-third (1/3) of the 22,500 shares awarded in June 2008 will vest on the first anniversary date of grant and then one-
twelfth (1/12) on the date three months after the first anniversary date of the grant and on such daie every three months thereafier, such
that 100% of the shares will be vested on the third anniversary date so long as employment with the Company is continuous. One- third
(1/3) of the 15,000 shares awarded in March 2008 will vest on each date of the next three annual shareholders meetings at which
directors are elected and so long as the recipient remains a member of the Board of Directors. Compensation expense related to this
restricted stock 1s recognized ratably over the three years based on the fair value of the shares at date of grant, which was $1.94 and
$3.95 at June 30, 2008 and March 35, 2008; respectively. The compensation expense from restricted stock was approximately $333,000
for the year- ended June 30, 2008. The Company dld not issue warrants during the year- ended June 30, 2008,

Accountmg Jor Deri vcmve Instruments

The Company accounts for derivative instruments in accordance with SFAS-No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended, which establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and
hedging activities, including certain derivative instruments imbedded in other financial instruments or contracts. The Company also
considers the EITF 00-19, “Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to and Potentially Settled in, a Company’s Own
Stock,” which provides criteria for determining whether freestanding contracts that are settled in a company’s own stock, including
common stock warrants, should be designated as either an equity instrument, an asset or as a liability under SFAS No. 133. The
Company evaluates the conversion feature embedded in its Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (see Note 11 to the audited
consolidated financial statements) at each reporting period based on the criteria of SFAS No. 133 and EITF 00-19 to determine
whether the conversion feature would be required to be bifurcated from the Preferred Stock and accounted for separately as a
derivative. Based on management’s evaluation, the embedded conversion feature did not require bifurcation and derivative
accounting as of June 30, 2008.

Reclassifications : ' . '

Certain balances for the year ended June 30, 2007 were reclassified to conform to the classifications adopted in the current year.
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Recently Issued Pronouncements _ |

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” This.statement estab.ishes a single
authoritative definition of fair value, sets out a framework for measuring fair value, and requires additional disclosures about fair-
value measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines faif value as “the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measutement date”. For the Company; SFAS No. 157 is effective for the
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2008. Management is currently evaluating this standard to determine its impact, if any, on our
consolidated financial statements. - C B a R ' :

On February 15, 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Finaiicial Assets and Financial
Liabilities - Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” This standard permits an entity to'measure financial instruments
and certain other items at estimated fair value. Most of the provisions of SFAS No. 159 are elective; however, the amepdnient 10
FASB No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity’ Securities,” applies to all e'r.ftities that own trading and
available-for-sale securities. The fair value option created by Sf:AS No. 159 permits an entity 'to measure eligible items at fair value as
of specified election dates. The fair value option (a) may generally be applied instrument by instrument, (b) is irr 2vocable unléss a
new election date oci:urs, and (c) must be applied to the entire instrument and not to only a portion of the instrument. For the
Company, SFAS No. 159 is effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2008. Management is currently evaluating the impact of
SFAS No. 159, if anv, on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), "Business Combinations“'(“SFAS 1417). SFAS 141 -
requires an acquirer to measure the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assurned and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
at their fair values on the acquisition date, with goodwill being the excess value over the net identifiable assets acquired. SFAS 14}
also requires the fair value measurement of certain other assets and liabilities related to the acquisition such as. contingencies. SFAS
141 applies prospectively to business combinations and is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 135, 2008.
Management is currently evaluating the impact that SFAS 141 will have on the accounting for future acquisitions and our consolidated
financial statements. : :

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, "Non-controlling Interests in, Consolidated Financial Statements"
(“SFAS 160”). SFAS 160 requires that a non-controiling interest in a subsidiary be reported as equity in the consolidated financial
statements. Consolidated net income should include the net income for both the parent and the non-controlling interest with disclosure
of both amounts on the consolidated statement of income. The presentation provisions of SFAS 160 are to be applied retrospectively,
and SFAS 160 is eftective for fiscal years beginning on or after.December 15,.2008. Management is currently evaluating the impact
that SFAS 160 will have on our consolidated financial statements. -~ .- - — :

No other pronouncements have been recently issued that Avantair believes will have a material impact on Avantair’s
financial position and results of operations. - :
.o et T T
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Results of Operations
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 compared to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007

Revenues for the fiscal year - ended June 30, 2008 were $115. 6 mllllon an increase of 51.3% from $76.4 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2007. This.increase was the result of a 46.2% increasé in the revenue generated from the sale of fractional aircraft
shares to $43.4 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 from $29.7 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, an increase
of 50.1% in maintenance and management fees to $58.2 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 from $38.8 million for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, an increase of 59.4% in charter card and demonstration revenue to $10.2 million for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008 from $6.4 mutlion for the fisca) year ended June 30, 2007, and an increase of 151.5% in FBO and other revenue
to $3.7 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 from $1,5 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

. Revenue from the sale of fractional aircraft shares incréased due to a 32% increase in the fumber of fractiona} shares sold to
659 through the fiscal year ¢nded June 30 2008 fromi 499.5 fractional shares sold through the fiscal year ended Jung 30, 2007. The
sale of fractional shares dunng 2008 reflected the results of enhanced sales mltlatlves, including an empha51s on a national market and
the marketing of the fuel efﬁc1ency of the Piaggio alrcraft C

- The intrease in revenue from maintenancé and management fees increased primarily due to:

. an increase in the annual mamtemmce and management fee to $9,400 from $8 900 for new and renewing fractional share
owners; and

.

e an increase in the numbér of fractional share owners.

- Charter card revenue and demonstration revenue increased $3.8 million primarily due to a 94% increase in charter card
hours flown during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 over hours flown durmg the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 due to increased
marketing of charter cards in fiscal 2008.

FBO and other revenue increased $2.3 million primarily due to {i) an increase in fuel sales of $1.5 million due to an increase
in fuel prlces to match increased cost of fuel sold along with an increase in fuel volume sold; (ii) a $500,00¢ increase in rent revenue
and (iii) an increase of $300,000 in remarketing and other revenues.

- Operating expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 were 38.5% higher than during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2007, with total expenses of $132.2 million compared to $95.4 million, respectively. The cost of fractional aircraft shares sold
increased to $36.6 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 from $24.4 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, due to an
increase of 32 % in the number of fractional shares sold to 659 fractional shares sold through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 from
499.5 fractional shares sold through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. The cost of flight operations, together with the cost of fuel,
increased 45.1% to $66.5 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 from $45.9 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007,
primarily due to:

. an increase of $5.9 million in maintenance expenses, comprised primarily of an increase in maintenance salaries, parts
expense and maintenance insurance coverage due to an increase in fleet size;

. an increase of $7.4 million in fuel prices and flight fees (which includes landing fees, airport fees and ground
transportation fees) bome by Avantair for repositioning flights, demonstration flights and pilot training flights; and

. an increase of $7.6 million in pilot expenses due to hiring an additional 80 pilots, including salaries and related pilot
expenses, training, hotel expenses, pilot airfare and living expenses.

28 -




AVANTAIR, INC,

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To Be Held on March 4, 2009

TO THE STOCKHOLDERS:

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Avantair, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Avantait™), will be held on Wednesday,
March 4, 2009, at 12:00 p.m., local time, in the Avantair Executive Conference Room located at 4311 General Howard Dnive, Clearwater, Florida 33762 for the

following purposes:
1. To elect seven (7) directors to serve for the ensuing year or until their successors are duly elected and qualified,
2. To ratify the appointment of J.H. Cohn, LLP, as Avantair's independent registered public accountants for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009; and
3. To transuct such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting, including any adjournment thereof.

Avantair’s Board of Directors intends to present the following seven nominees for director at the Annual Meeting: Barry J. Gorden, Arthur H. Goldberg,
Steven Santo, Stephanie A. Cuskley, A. Clinton Allen, Robert I. Lepofsky and Richard B. DeWolfi. The foregoing items of business are more fully described in the
Proxy Statement accotnpanying this Notice, Only stockholders of record at the close of business on January 28, 2009 are entitled to notict: of and 10 vote at the Annual
Meeting.

A list of all stockholders entitled to vote at the 2009 Annual Meeting will be available for examination at the Office of General Counsel of Avantair, Inc., at
4311 General Howard Drive, Clearwater, Florida 33762, for the ten days before the meeting between 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., local time, and at the place of the Annual
Meeting during the Annual Meeting.

You have the option to receive future proxy materials electronically via the Internet. You may choose to do so by following the simple instructions contained
in this mailing. Offering electronic delivery of future annual reports and proxy statements is not only cost-effective for Avantair but is also friendlier to the
environment.

All stockholders are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting in person. However, to ensure your representation at the Annual Meeting, you are urged
to vote your shares using one of the following methods: (1) vote through the Internet at the website shown on the proxy card; or (2) mark, date, sign and return the
enclosed proxy as promptly as possible in the postage-prepaid envelope enclosed for that purpose. If you elected io receive the 2009 pro»y materials over the Internet,
you will not receive & paper proxy card and you should vote online, unless you cancel your enrollment or we discontinue the availability of our proxy materials on the
Internet. YOU MAY REVOKE YOUR PROXY IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED IN THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY STATEMENT AT ANY TIME BEFORE IT
HAS BEEN VOTED AT THE ANNUAL MEETING. ANY STOCKHOLDER ATTENDING THE ANNUAL MEETING MAY VOTE IN PERSON EVEN IF HE OR
SHE HAS RETURNED A PROXY.

FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF AVANTAIR, INC.

Allison Roberto

General Counsel and Secretary
Clearwater, Florida

January 29, 2009

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Stockholder Meeting
to be Held on March 4, 2009

The Proxy Statement and Annual Report to Stockholders are available at

http://www.cstproxy.com/avantair/2009
Information on our website, other than this Proxy Statement, is not a part of this Proxy Statement.




Quorum, Abstenuons Broker Non-Votes
= - oo o 1
A mnjonty of lhe shares of Avantair common slock oulstandmg on the Record Date must be presem or represented at the Annual Meeting in order o havc a
quorum for the transaction of business. Shares on which an abstention, 2 withheld vote or a broker non-vote has occurred will be counted as present for purpoeses of
determining the presence of a quorum. If you own shares through a broker, bank, or other nominee, you must instruct that party how to vote in order for your vote to be
counted.

Can | change my vote after 1 return my proxy card?
. T 1
Yes. At any time before the vote on a proposal;ycu can chahge your vote tither by giving-our corporate secretary a written notice revoking your proxy card
or by signing, dating, and returning to us a new proxy card. We will honor the proxy card with the latest date.

How are nominees for election to our hoard of directors selected? -~ - mm— e

Qur corporate governance and nominating committee recommend to our board of direclc;i's'individuals as nominees for eléction to our board of directors at
the annual meeting of stockholders and to fill any vacancy or newly created directorship on the board of directors. In identifying and evaluating nominees for director,
the board of directors considers each candidate’s independence, personal and professional integrity, financial literacy or other professional or business experience
relevant to an understanding of cur business, ability to think and act independently and with sound judgment and ability to serve our stockholders’ long term interests.

.Our Bylaws provide that the voting srandard for the election of our d:rccturs in uncontested elections is based ona majorlty voting standard. 1n contested
director elecuons, the plurality standard will apply We have rominated seven dlrectors for election at the Annual Meeting, and because we did not receive advance
notice under our Bylaws of any slockho]der nommees for directors, the 2009 election of dlrectors is an uncontested election. To be elected in an uncontested election,
the votes “for a director must exceed 50% of the volcs actually cast with respeét to the director’s election. Votes actually cast mclude votes where the authority to cast
a vote for the director’s élection is explicitly withheld and excludé absteritions with' respect to that director’s election, so abstentions and any broker non-votes will have
no effect on the election of directors. If an incumbent dircctor is not elected and no successor has been elected at the meeting, he or she shall promptly tendér his or her
conditional resignation following certification of the vote. The Nommanng and Corpgratc Govemancc Committee shall consider the resignation offer and recommend
to the Board of Directors whether to accept such offer. The Beard of Directors will endeavor to act on the recommendauon wnhln 90 days followmg the
recommendation.

The board of directors will consider stockholder nominations as nominees for election to our board of drrectors [n evaluating such nomlnauons the board of
directors will use the same selection criteria the board of directors uses to evaluate other potential nominees. Any stockholder iay suggest a nominee by sending the
followmg information to our bo:i\rd of directors: ([l) such stocil%holder s name,.mallmg address and lelephonc number; (2) the class and number of shares of the Company
“which are owned beneﬁcm]ly and o1 record by the stockholder; (3) the suggested nominee’s name, ma1lmg uddress and lelephonc number; (4} a statement whether the |
suggested nosinee knows that his or her name is being suggested by you; (5) the suggesled nominee’s resume of other descnptlon of his or her background and
experience; (6) such stockholder’s reasons for suggesting that the individual be considered; (7) whether such stockholder has any material interest in the election of such
nominee, and what such interest is; and {8) whether the stockholder intends to deliver a proxy statement and form of proxy to holders of at least a majority of our issued
and outstanding shares of common stock. The information should be sent to the board of directors addressed as follows: Board of Directors Nominations, Avantair, Ine.,
431] General Howard.Drive,‘Cliearwatcr, Florid.'_’.\‘3_3762. R
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Votes will be tabulated by the inspector of election appointed for the Annual Meeting, who will separately tabulate affirmative and negative VOLEs,

abstentions and broker non-votes.

Votmg Electromcally via the [nternet R et T T e : CoL D

For Shares D:recrly Regmcred i the Name of the Stockholder. Slockholders with shares reglstered dxrectly with Continental Stock Transfer (“Connnental“),
Avantair’s transfer agent, may vote by mailing in the proxy or on the Intemnet at the following address on the World Wide Web: www.continentalstock.com. Specific
instructions to be followed by any registered stockholder interested in voting via the Internet are set forth on the enclosed proxy card. Votes submmed vua the Internet
bya rcglstered stockholder must be received by 7:00 p.m. (Easlem Standard Time) on March 3, 2009, - .

For Shares Regtsrered m :he Name of a Brokerage or Bank A number of brokerage firms and bunks are pammpatmg ina program fot sharcs hcld in “street
name” that offers Internet voting opuons “This program is different from the program provided by Continental for shares registered in the name of the stockholder. if
your shares are held in an account at a brokerage firm or bank participating in the street name program, you may have already been offered the opportunity to elect to
vote using the Internet. Votes submitted via the Internet through the street name program must be received by 7:00 p.m. (Eastern Standard Time) 6n March 3, 2009. The

giving of such a proxy will not affect your right 1o vote in person should you decide to attend the Annual Meeting, .
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AVANTAIR, INC.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To Be Held on March 4, 2009

TO THE STOCKHOLDERS:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annuat Meeting of Stockholders of Avantair, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Avantair”), will be held on Wednesday,
March 4, 2009, at 12:00 p.m., local time, in the Avantair Executive Conference Room located at 4311 General Howard Drive, Clearwater, Florida 33762 for the
following purposes: '

1. To elect seven (7) directors to serve for the ensuing year or until their successors are duly elected and qualified:
2. To raufy the appointment of J.H. Cohn, LLP, as Avantair’s independent registered public accountants for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009; and
3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meetin‘g, including any adjournment thereof.

Avantair’s Board of Directors intends to present the foliowing seven nominees for director at the Annual Meeting: Barry J. Gordon, Arthur H. Goldberg,
Steven Santo, Stephanie A. Cuskley, A, Clinton Allen, Robert J. Lepofsky and Richard B. DeWolfe. The foregeing items of business are more fully described in the
Proxy Statement accompanying this Notice. Only stockholders of record at the close of business on January 28, 2009 are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual
Meeting.

A list of all stockholders entitled to vote at the 2009 Annual Meeting will be available for examination at the Office of General Counsel of Avantair, Inc., at
4311 General Howz:rd Drive, Clearwater, Florida 33762, for the ten days before the meeting between 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., local timie, and at the place of the Annual
Meeting during the Annual Meeting.

You have the option to receive future proxy materials electronically via the Internet. You may choose to do so by following the simple instructions contained
in this mailing. Offuring electronic delivery of future annual reports and proxy statements is not only cost-effective for Avantair but is also friendlier to the
environment.

All stocizholders are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting in person. However, to ensure your representation at the Annual Meeting, you are urged
to vote your shares using cne of the following methods: (1) vote through the Internet at the website shown on the proxy card; or (2} mark, date, sign and return the
enclosed proxy as promptly as possible in the postage-prepaid envelope enclosed for that purpose. If you elected to receive the 2009 proxy materials over the Intemnet,
you will not receive: a paper proxy card and you should vote online, unless you cancel your enrollment or we discontinue the availability of our proxy materials on the
Internet. YOU MAY REVOKE YOUR PROXY IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED IN THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY STATEMENT AT ANY TIME BEFORE IT
HAS BEEN VOTED AT THE ANNUAL MEETING. ANY STOCKHOLDER ATTENDING THE ANNUAL MEETING MAY VOTE IN PERSON EVEN [F HE OR
SHE HAS RETURNED A PROXY.

FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF AVANTAIR, INC.

Allison Roberto
General Counsel and Secretary
Clearwater, Florida

. January 29, 2009

Impeortant Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Stockholder Meeting
to be Held on March 4, 2009

The Proxy Statement and Annual Report to Stockholders are available at

http://www.cstproxy.com/avantajr/2009

Information on our website, other than this Proxy Statement, is not a part of this Proxy Statement.




IMPORTANT: WEETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL MEETING, YOU ARE REQUESTED TO COMPLETiE AND PROMPTLY
RETURN THE ENCLOSED PROXY IN THE ENVELOPE PROVIDED OR VOTE THROUGH THE INTERNET.

™ ‘ ’ AVANTAIR, INC,

PROXY STATEMENT
- FOR ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
: March 4, 2009

INFORMATION CONCERNING SOLICITATION AND VOTING

T

General

The enclosed proxy is solicited on behalf of Avantair, Inc., 4 Delaware corporation {except where the context otherwise requires, references herein to
“Avanair,” “we,” “our,” or “us” mear Avantair, Inc.), for use at the Annual Meeting of Stackholders to be held on Wednesday, March 4, 2009, at 12:00 p.m.,, local
time, and at any adj aurnment thereof, for the purposes set forth herein and in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The Annual Meeting will be
held in the Avantait Executive Conference Room located at Avantair's pnnc1pal locat:on at 4311 Genéral Howard Dnve Clearwater, Florida 33762 and its telephone
nuember at that location is (727) 539- 007]

These proxy solicitation materials, together with Avantair's Fiscal 2008 Annual Report to Slockholders were mailed on or about February 6, 2009 to all
stockholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting,

What if other matters came up at the nnnual' meeting? L .
The maters described in this proxy statement are the only matters we know will be votcd on at the annua! meeting. If other matters are ‘properly presemed at
the meeung the proxy holders will vote your shares as they determine, in thelr discretion,

Who can vote? . ‘ , ' - , . .

Stockhalders of record at the close of business on January 28, 2009 (the “Record Date™) are entitled to notice of and to vot: at the Annual Meeting. As of
Janvary 26, 2009 (the “Measurement Date™), 15,306,666 shares of Avantair’s common stock wete issued and outstanding. For information regarding security ownership
by management and by the beneficial owners of more than 5% of Avantair's common stock, see *Security Ownership of Certain Bencficial Owners and Management.
The enclosed proxy card shows the number of shares you can vote.

" 1 . .

How do 1 vote?

Follow the instructions on the enclosed proxy card to vote on each proposal to be considered at the annual meeting. Plzase prompily vote by internet, by
telephone or by signing and dating the proxy card and mall it back to us in the enclosed envelope. The proxy ho]dcrs named on thc proxy card will vote your shares as
you 1nstruct

, . I
Revocdbility of Proxies o

Any proxy glven pursuant to this solicitation may be revoked by the person glvmg it at any time before its use by delivering to Avantair’s Secretary a written

notice of revocalu-n ord duly execuied proxy bearing a later date (or voting v1a the lntemet at a later date) or by attendlng thie Annual Meeting and voung in person i

, - 1 . 47

What does it menn if 1 get more than one proxy card? . L . . .

It means you hold shares registered in more than one account. Sign and return alt proxnes to ensure that all your shares are voied.

Voting and Solicitation

Each stockholder is entitled to one vote for each share of common stock on all matters presented at the Annual Meeting. Stockholders do not have the right
to cumulate their votes in the election of directors,

The cost of soliciting proxies will be borne by Avantair. In addition, Avantair may reimburse brokerage firms and other persons representing beneficial
owners of shares for their expenses in forwarding solicitation materials to such beneficial owners. Proxies may also be solicited by centain of Avantair’s directors,
officers and regular employees, without additional compensation, personally or by telephone, telegram, letter or facsimile. While we have not chosen at this time to
engage the serviczs of a proxy solicitor to aid in the solicitation of proxies and to verify records relating to the solicitation, should we do so, we will bear all costs of
such solicitation of proxies. We anncnpate that if we retain the services of a proxy solicitor, we would pay that firm customary fees for those services, which we believe
would not be significant.




Quorum; Abstentions; Broker Non-Votes

A majority of the shares of Avantair common stock outstanding on the Record Date must be present or represented at the Annual Meeting in order to have a
quorum for the transaction of business, Shares on which an abstention, a withheld vote or a broker non-vote has occurred will be counted as present for purposes of
determining the presence of a quorum, If you own shares through a broker, bank, or other nominee, you must instruct that party how to vote in order for your vote to be
counted,

Can 1 change my vote after [ return my proxy card?

Yes. At any time before the vote on a proposal, you can change your vote either by giving our corporate secretary a written notice revoking your proxy card
or by signing, dating, and returning to us a new proxy card. We will honor the proxy card with the latest date,

How are nominees for election to our board of directors selected? - Tt o=

Our corporate governance and nominating committee recommend to our board of directors individuals as nominees for election to our board of directors at
the annual meeting of stockholders and to fill any vacancy or newly created directorship on the board of directors. In identifying and evaluating nominees for director,
the board of directors considers each candidate’s independence, personal and professional integrity, financial literacy or other professional or business experience
relevant to an understanding of our business, ability to think and act independently and with sound judgment and ability to serve our stockholders” long term interests,

Our Bylaws provide that the. voting standard for the election of our directors in uncontested elections is based on a majority voting standard. in contested
director elections, the plurality standard will upply W¢ have nominated seven directors for election at the Annual Meeting, and becaise we did not receive advance
notice under our Bylaws of any stockholder nominees for directors, the 2009 eleciion of directors is an uncontested election. To be elected in an uncontested election,
lhe votes “for” a director must exceed 50% of the votes actually cast with respect to the director’s election. Votes actually cast mclude votes where the authority to cast
a vote for the director’s clection is eXplicitly withheld and exclude abstentions with respect to that director’s election, so abstentions and any broker non-votes will have
no effect on the election of directors, If an incumbent director is not elected and no successor has been elected at the mecting, he or she shall promptly tender his or her
conditional resignation following certification of the vote. The Nominating and Corporate (jovernance Committee shall consider the resignation offer and recommend
to the Board of Directors whether to accept such offer. Thc Board of Directors will endeavor to act on the recommendation within 90 days following the
recommendation,

The board of directors will consider stockholder nominations as nominees for election te our board of directors, In evaluating such nominations, the board of
directors will use the same selection criteria the board of directors uses to evaluate other potential nominees. Any stockholder may suggest a nominee by sending the
following information to our board of directors: (1) such stocklholder s name,,mailing address and telephone number; (2) the class and number of shares of the Company

- which are owned beneficially and of record by the stockholder; (3) the suggested nominee’s name, mznlmg address and telephone number; (4) a statement whether the
suggested nominee knows that his or her name is being suggested by you; (5) the suggested nominee’s resume or other description of his or her background and
experience; (6) such stockholder’s reasons for suggesting that the individual be considered; (7) whether such stockhelder has any material interest in the election of such
nominee, and what such interest is; and (8) whether the stockholder intends to deliver a proxy statement and form of proxy te holders of at least 2 majority of our issued
and outstanding shares of common stock. The information should be sent to the board of directors addressed as follows: Board of Directors Nominations, Avantair, Inc.,
431} General Howard Drive, Clearwater, Florida 33762.

! M -
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Voting Results

Votes will be tabulated by the inspector of election appointed for the Annual Meeting, who will separately tabulate affirmative and negative votes,
abstentions and broker non-votes.

\-’otmg Electronically via the Internet " T . ,

.

For Shares Directly Regts{ered in the Name of the Stockholder. Slockholders with shares registered directly with Continental Stock Transfer (“Contmemal")
Avantair’s transfer agent, may vote by mailing in the proxy or on the Internet at the following address on the World Wide Web: www.continentalstock.com. 'Specific
instructions to be followed by any registered stockholder interested in voting via the Internet are set forth on the enclosed proxy card. Votes submitted via the Internet
by a registered stockholder must be received by 7:00 p.m. (Eastem Standard Time) on March 3, 2009. :

For Shares Registered in the Name of a Brokerage or Bank. A numbcr of brokerage firms and banks are participating in a program for shares held in “street
name” that offers Internet voting options. This program is different from the program provided by Continental for shares registered in the name of the stockhotder. If
your shares are held in an account at a brokeragé firm or bank participating in the street name program, you may have atready been offered the opportunity to elect to
vote using the Internet, Votes submitted via the Internet through the street name program must be received by 7:00 p.m. (Eastern Standard Time) on March 3, 2009. The
giving of such a proxy will not affect your right to vote in person should you decide to attend the Annual Meeting.
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These Internet voting procedures, which comply with Delaware law, are designed to authenticate stockholders’ identities, to allow stockholders to vote their
shares and to confirm that stockholders’ votes have been recorded properly. Stockholders voting via the Internet through either of these voting procedures should
understand that there may be costs associated with electronic access, such as usage charges from Internet access providers and telephone companies that must be bome
by the stockholders. Also, please be aware that Avantair is not involved in the operation of either of these Internet voting procedures and cannot take responsibility for
any access or internet service interruptions that may occur or any inaccuracies, erroneocus or incomplete information that may appear.

You may clect to receive future notices of meelings, proxy materials and annuai reports electronically via the Internet, if then made avaitable by Avantair. If
you have previously <onsented to electronic delivery, your consent will remain in effect until withdrawn. If you have not yet enrolled in Avantair’s [nternet delivery
program, we strongly encourage you to do so as it is a cost-effective way for Avantair 1o send you the proxy statement and annual report materials. Participation
instructions are set fo:th on the enclosed proxy card. When next year's proxy statement and annual report materials are available, you may be sent an e-mail telling you
how to access them electronically. Please note, however, that the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC™) has enacted rules regarding the electronic
distribution of proxy materials on websites, as opposed to being mailed, and we may decide to change our procedures for the distribution of our proxy materials by next
year.

If you elect to access these materials via the Internet, you may still request paper copies by contacting your brokerage firm, bank or Avantair. Your
participation in the ne w Internet program will remain in effect until you cancet your enrollment. You are free to cancel your enrollment at any time.

What vote is requircd to approve each item?

Election of Directors. The seven nominees receiving the highest number of affirmative votes of the votes cast at the meeting, either in person or by proxy,
shall be elected as directors. A properly executed proxy card marked “WITHOUT AUTHORITY™ with respect to the election of one or more directors will not be voted
with respect to the dii ector or directors indicated, although it will be counted for purposes of determining whether there is a quorum,

Ratificaticn of the appointment of J.H. Cohn, LLP.  Stockholder ratification of the selection of J.H. Cohn, LLP, an independent registered public accounting
firm, as our independznt auditor is not required by the Company’s Bylaws or otherwise, However, the board of directors is submitting the selection of 1.H, Cohn, LLP
to the stockholders for ratification as a matter of good corporate practice. The affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the shares of our common stock present in
person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote is required for the adoption of this proposal. For purposes of this vote, a vote 1o abstain (or a direction to your
broker, bank or other nominee to abstain) will be counted as present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the annual meeting, and therefore, will
have the effect of a negative vote, Shares represented by such “broker non-votes™ will, however, be counted in determining whether there is a quorum.

What is the recommendation of the beard of directors?

Unless yo ) give other instructions on your proxy card, the persons named as proxy holders on the proxy card will vote in accordance with the
recommendations of the board of directors. The board of directors recomimends a vote to approve Proposal No. 1, for election of the nominated slate of directors to
serve until the 2010 annual meeting of stockholders or until their successors are duly elected and qualified, as set forth in the notice of meeting on the cover page of this
proxy statement and Proposal No. 2, for the ratification of the appointment of J. H, Cohn, LLP as our independent auditors for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. With
respect to any other matter that properly comes before the meeting, the proxy holders will vote in accordance with their best judgment.

Deadline for Receipt of Stockholder Proposals

Pursuant 1o Rule 14a-8 under the Securities Exchange Act, our stockholders may present proposals for inclusion in our proxy statement for consideration at
the 2010 annual meeting of our stockholders by submitting their proposals to us in a timely manner. Any such proposal must comply with Rule 142-8 and must be
received by the company at the address appearing on the first page of this proxy statement no later than October 30, 2009, !

Stockholders who intend to propose business for consideration by stockholders at an annual meeting, other than stockholder proposals that are included in
the proxy statement, shall give written notice to our Secretary not less than 60 days nor more than 90 days before the date of the annual meeting. If, however, less than
70 days notice or prior public disclosure of the date of the annual meeting is given or made to stockhelders, notice by the stockholders to be timely must be received not
later than the close of business on the tenth day following the day on which notice of the date of the annual meeting is mailed or publicly announced. The written notice
should be sent to our corporate secretary, Allison Roberto, Avantair, Inc., 4311 General Howard Drive, Clearwater, Florida 33762, and must include a brief description
of the business, the teasons for conducting such business, any material interest the stockholder has in such business, the name and address of the stockholder as they
appear on our books .ind the number of shares of our common stock the stockholder beneficially owns.

SEC rules set forth standards for what steckholder proposals we are required to include in a proxy statement for an annual meeting.

Fiscal Year End

Avantair’s fiscal year ends June 30.




PROPOSAL NO. 1

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Nominees

A Board of seven directors (constituting the entire board of directors) are to be elected at the Annual Meeting. The persons named below have been
nominated by the board of directors on recommendation of its corporate governance and nominating committee named herein as candidates. All nominees have
consented to be named and have indicated their intent to serve if elected. If any nominee is unable or declines to serve as a director at the time of the Annual Meeting,
the proxies will be voted for any nominee who shall be designated by the present Board of Directors to fill the vacancy. Avantair is not aware of any nominee who will
be unable or will decline to serve as a director, The term of office of each person elected as a director will continue until the next Annual Meeting of Stockholders and
until a successor has been elected and qualified, or until his or her earlier death, resignation or removal.

The names of Avantair’s nominees for director and certain information about them are set forth below:

Name Age Position

Barry J. Gordon 63 Chairman of the Board

Arthur H. Goldberg ’ 66 Director

Steven Santo 41 Chief Executive Officer and Director
Stephanie A. Cuskley 48 Director

A, Clinton Allen 64 Director

Robert J. Lepofsky 64 Director

Richard B. DeWolfe 64 Director

Barry J. Gordon. Mr. Gordon has been Avantair’s (foermerly known as Ardent Acquisition Corporation) Chairman of the Board since its inception.
Mr. Gorden has nearly 40 vears of experience in evaluating aviation industry securities, including mémbership for 25 years in the Society of Airline Analysts (with 5
years as its president), and over 30 years éxperience in the senior management of a mutual fund specializing in the airline, aerospace and technology industries.
Mr. Gorden served as executive vice president of American Fund Advisors, Inc. from September 1978 until December 1980, as its president from December 1980 until
May 1987 and has been its chairman of the board since May 1987. American Fund Advisors is a private money management firm that manages money for high net
worth individuals, pension and profit sharing plans. Mr. Gordon has been a director of American Fund Advisors since December 1980. From December 1991 to March
2005, he was president, and from December 1991 1o December 1993, he was director, of the John Hancock Technology Series, Inc., an investment company. Since
September 1999, Mr. Gordon has been President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of BlueStone AFA Management, LLC, the general partner of the AFA Private
Equity Fund 1 (formerly BlueStone AFA Fund), a venture capital fund providing equity capital for public and private companies primarity in the technology sector, and
since January 2000, he has been a director of the AFA Private Equity Fund. Mr. Gordon has been Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of North Shore
Acquisition Corp., a blank check company formed in June 2007 for the purpose of effecting a business combination with an operating business, since its inception in
June 2007. Mr. Gordon has also been chairman of the board and Chief Executive Officer of the New Jersey Cardinals, a Class A affiliate of the St. Louis Cardinals,
from February 1990 until April 2006 and the Norwich Navigators, a Class AA affiliate of the San Francisco Giants, from March 1991 until April 2005. He also served
as a director of Winfield Capital Corp., an Over The Counter Bulictin Board listed small business investment company, from Gctober 1955 to October 2005, In 1992,
Mr. Gordon was awarded Entrepreneur of the Year for Long Island in financial services. Mr. Gordon received a B.B.A. from the University of Miami and an M.B.A.
from Hofstra University.

Arthuor H. Goldberg. Mr. Goldberg has been a member of Avantair’s (formerly known as Ardent Acquisition Corporation) Board of Directors since
inception. Mr. Goldberg has served as a member of Corporate Solutions Group since January 2000, From February 1994 to December 1999, Mr. Goldberg served
president of Manhattan Associates, an investment and merchant banking firm. Mr. Goldberg has been a trustee of Ramco-Gershenson Properties Trust (formerly named
RPS Realty Trust), a New York Stock Exchange listed real estate investment trust, since 1998. Mr. Goldberg has been a director of North Shore Acquisition Cotp., a
blank check company formed in June 2007 for the purpose of effecting a business combination with an operating business, since its inception in June 2007.

Mr. Goldberg received a B.S. (cum laude) from New York University Stern School and a J.D. from the New York University School of Law.

Steven Santo. Mr. Santo has served as Chief Executive Officer, President and a Director of Avantair since its inception in Jung 2003 and Skyline Aviation
Services, Inc. since June 2002. Mr. Santo is a licensed, commercially-rated pilot who has been flying for approximately 15 years, From 1995 through 2001, Mr. Santo
practiced law as an attorney in private practice, concluding his law practice in 2001 as a name partner at the firm of Fields, Silver & Santo. From 1992 to 1993, Mr.
Santo served as an Assistant District Attorney in New York working in the office’s major crimes unit. Mr. Santo received a J.D. from St. Johns® University School of
Law and a bachelor’s degree from Villanova University. -

Stephanie A. Cuskley. Ms. Cuskley has served as a member of our Board of Directors since 2007. In addition, Ms. Cuskley has been on the Board of

Directors of Insituform Technologies Inc. (NASDAQ:INSU]} since 2005 and is chair of its audit committee. From 2003 thru 2005, Ms. Cuskley was a Managing
Director and Project Manager with JPMorgan Chase where she headed the Investment Banking Coverage for the firm’s mid-cap clients located in the eastern US.
Ms. Cuskley joined JPMorgan Chase in 1994 and spent 7 years in high yield origination. From 200! to 2003, she led a global culture and leadership development
initiative (LeadershipMorganChase of JPMorgan Chase) sponsored by the firm’s CEO and Executive Commitice, Prior to joining JPMorgan Chase, Ms. Cuskley was an
Executive VP with Integrated Resources, a large NY-based financial services company, and advised on their financial restructuring. She started her investment banking
career in 1985 at Drexel Bumham Lambert as a corporate finance generalist, She is also a commissioner and co-head of the Economic Development committee of the
NYC Mayor's Commission on Women's Issues and a member of the Resources Development Committee for United Way of New York City. Ms. Cuskley received her
MBA from Comell and her BA from the University of Toronto. Most recently, on January 19, 2009, she was appointed to the position of Chief Executive Officer of

, NPower, a nonprofit information technology services network. She alse serves as the Executive Director of NPower NY, an affiliated organization of NPower.”
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A. Clintcn Allen. Mr. Allen has served as a member of our Board of Directors since 2007, Mr. Allen is the CEQ of A. C. Allen & Company, a private
investment banking consulting firm. He is the Lead Director of Steinway Musical Instruments, one of the world's largest manufacturers of musical instruments. He is
also a member of the board of directors of Brooks Automation, Inc., which provides integrated tool and factory automation solutions for the global semiconductor and
related industries, th : board of directors and Executive Committee of LKQ Corporation, the largest nationwide provider of recycled OEM automotive parts and
Chairman of the Bo: rd of Collectors Universe, a high end provider of collectible and gem grading..He served on the board of directors of Blockbuster Entertainment
Corporation from 1986 until its acquisition by Viscom/Paramount in September 994, Mr. Allen graduated from Harvard University and serves on the Executive
Committee of the Friends of Harvard Football, as well as the Harvard Visiting Committee on University Resources and the Harvard Major Gifts Committee. He is a
member of the Board of Directors and the President's Council of the Massachusetts General Hospital. Mr. Allen has eamned an Advanced Professional Director
Certification issued Iy the Corporate Directors Group, an accredited educational organization of RiskMetric ISS Governance Services.

Robert J. Lepofsky. Mr. Lepofsky has served as a member of our Board of Directors since 2007. Mr. Lepofsky has been the President, Chief Executive
Officer and Director of Brooks Automation, Inc., a publicly held producer of automation, vacuum and instrumentation solutions for the global semiconductor industry
since October 2007, Mr, Lepofsky has also been Chairman of Westcliff Capital Group, a private holding company since November 2006. After serving for ten years on
the Board of Directors of Ensign-Bickford Industries, Ine., a broadly diversified, privately-held corporation with business interests ranging from food flavorings,
industrial manufacturing, zerospace defense products and real estate development, Mr. Lepofsky became President and Chief Executive Officer of Ensign-Bickford in
January 2005, a position he held until his retirement in November, 2006. From January 1989 to December 2004, Mr. Lepofsky was President and Chief Executive
Officer of Helix Technology Corporation, a publicly-held producer of innovative vacuum systems for the semiconductor industry. Mr. Lepofsky previously served as its
Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer from 1979 through-1988. From January 2005 Mr. Lepofsky was non-executive Chairman of the Board of Helix, a
position he held until October 2005 when Helix metged with Brooks Automation, Inc. In the not-for-profit sector Mr, Lepofsky is a member of the Board of Overseers
of the Boston Symphony Orchestra and a Life Trustee at the Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center - a major Harvard teaching hospital in Boston. Mr. Lepofsky
received his B.S. degree from Drexel Institute of Technology. o

Richard B. DeWolfe. Mr. DeWolfe was appointed to the Board effective January 29, 2009. Mr. DeWolfe is Managing Partner of DeWo{fe & Company,
LLC, a real estate management and investment consulting firm. He serves as a Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of Manulife Financial Corporation
which is the parent company of John Hancock Financial Services, Inc. Mr. DeWolfe holds a BAS, Marketing and Finance from Boston University. He is also a
director of The Bosten Foundation; Trustee of Boston University; Trustee of the Marine Biological Laboratory; and an honorary director of The Boston Center for
Community and Justice. He was formerly Chairman and CEQ of The DeWolfe Companies, Inc., the largest homeownership organization in New England, which was
previously listed on the American Stock Exchange and acquired by Cendant Corporation in 2602. Mr. DeWolfe was formerly Chairman and Founder of Reliance
Relocations Services, Inc. and was formerly C]}ai.rman of the Board of Trustees, Boston University.

'
Recommendation of the Board of Directors

The seven nominees who receive the highest number of affirmative votes of the shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote for *
them, a quorum beiny; present, shall be elected as directors. Only votes cast for a nominee will be counted, except that the accompanying proxy will be voted for ail
neminees in the absence of instruction to the contrary, Abstentions, broker non-votes and instructions on the accompanying proxy card to withhold authority to vote: for
one or more nominees will result in the respecuvc nominees receiving fewer votes. Abstentions and w1lhheld voles have no effect on the vote

THE BOARD OF BHIRECTORS DEEMS “PROPOSAL NO. 1 — ELECTION OF DIRECTORS” TO BE IN THE BEST INTERESTS OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS STOCKHOLDERS AND RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR* THE ELECTION OF EACH OF THE NOMINEES FOR DIRECTOR.

ol - -5 - . ,




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND BOARD OF DlRECTORS MATTERS
The affairs of Avantair'are managed by the Board of Directors, which is compnscd of at least a majority of mdependent directors. Each member of the Board
of Directors is elected at the annual meeting of stockholders each year or appointed by the mcumbenl Board of Dlrectors and serves until the next annual meeting of

stockholders or until a successor has been elected or approved.

Current Merﬁ_bg_rs of the Board of Directors

'

The members of the Board of Directors on the date of this Proxy Statement, and the committees of the Board of Directors on which they serve, are identified

below:
' b ' ' Nominating and
, © Audit : Compensation Corporate Governance
Director . ’ Committee "' Committee Committee .
Barry J. Gordon ' ’
Arthur H. Goldberg - 4 ’ V S N
Steven Santo ' ' -
Stephanie A. Cuskley . . Chair ) oA
A. Clinton Allen T - P ‘Chair : e
Robert J. Lepofsky = . . o uy ) " Chair
Richard B. DcWolfe C R v t ) ' :
Role of the Board of Directors’ Committees - - L

The Board of Directors has a standing Audit, Compensation and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees.

Audit Committee . The functions of the Audit Committee are described below under the heading “Report of the Audit Committee.” The current charter of
the Audit Committee was revised on September 18, 2008, and is available in the Investors section of Avantair’s website (www.avantair.com). A copy of this charter
may also be obtained upon request from Avamair’s Corporate Secretary, The audit committee consists of three directors, Ms. Cuskley and Messrs. Goldberg and -
Lepofsky each of who are considered independent within the meaning of SEC regulations and the listing standards of the Nasdaq Global Market. Our audit committee
includes at east one member who has been determined by our board of directors to meet the.qualifications of an “audit committee financial expert” (as that term is
defined in the rules promulgated by the SEC pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002). Ms. Cuskley is the independent director who has been determined to be an
audit committee financial expert. The Audit Committee met four times during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, .

- . " P

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. The Nominating and Corporate Govemance Committee is responsible for developing and
implementing policies and practices relating to corporate governance, including reviewing and monitoring implementation of Avantair's Corporate Governance-Charter.
In addition, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee develops and reviews background information on candidates for the Board of Directors and makes
recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding such candidates. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also cvaluates and makes
recommendations to the Board of Directors in connection with its annual review of director independence. The current charter of the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee is available in the Investors section of Avantair’s website (www.avantair.com). A copy of this charter may also be obtained upon request from
Avantair's Corporate Secretary. All of the members of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Commitiee are independent within the meaning of the listing
standards of the Nasdaq Global Market. The members of our corporate governance and nominating committee are Ms. Cuskley and Messrs. Goldberg and Lepofsky.
Mr. Lepofsky serves as chairman of the corporate govemance and nominating committee. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Comumittee met two times the
during fiscal year ended June 30, 2008,

Compensation Commitiee. The compensation committee of our board of directors reviews, makes recommendations to the board and approves our
compensation policies and all forms of compensation te be provided to our executive officers and directors, including, among other things, annual salaries, bonuses,
stock options and other incentive compensation arrangements. In addition, our compensation committee administers our stock plans, including reviewing and granting
stack options, with respect 10 our executive officers and directors, and may from time to time assist our board of directors in administering our stock plans with respect
to all of our other employees. Qur compensation committee also reviews and approves other aspects of our compensation policies and matters. The curent charter of
the Compensation Committee was revised on September 18, 2008, and is available in the Investors section of Avantair's website (www.avantair.com). A copy of this
charter may also be obtained upon request from Avantair's Corporate Secretary. All of the members of the Compensation Committee are independent within the
meaning of the listing standards of the Nasdaq Global Markel. The current members of our compensation committee are Messrs. Allen, Goldberg and Lepofsky,

MTr. Allen serves as chairman of the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee met two times during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

Executive Sessions of the Independent Directors

Our “non-management” directors (as determined under the listing standards of the Nasdaq Global Market) typically meet at each regularly scheduled
meeting of the Board of Directors, in executive session without any of our management present. No single director has been chosen to preside at all of such meetings.
Instead, a director is selected at each such meeting to preside over such meeting. See the section titled “Stockholder Communication with the Board of Directors™ for
the method for interested parties to make their concerns known to an independent director, or the independent directors as a group.
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Selection of Nominces for the Board of Directors

One of the tasks of the Nominating and Corporate Govemnance Cnmmmee is to 1dentlfy and recruit candidates to serve on 'the Board of Qtrectors The
Neminating and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for providing a list of nominees to the Board of Directors for nomination at the a.nnual meeting of
stockhelders. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider nominees for board meémbership suggested by its members and Sthier Board of
Directors members, ns well as management and stockholders. The Nomlnatlng and Corporate Governance Committee may at its discretion retain a third-party executive
search firm to identiiy potential nominees. The Nommatmg and Corporate Governance Committee will evaluate a prospective nominee agamst the standards and
qualifications set ow in the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Charter. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will take into account
many factors in evaluating a prospective nominee, including, among other things, havmg mtegnty and being accountable, being, able to exercise informed judgment,
being financially literate and having high performance standards -

The Nominating and Corporate (Governance Committee will cbqsider nominees recommended by stockholders, The Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee will give consideration to these recommendations for positions on the Board of Directors where the Nominating and Corporate Governance Commiitee has
not determined to re-nominate a qualified incumbent director. For each annual meeting of stockholders, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will
accept for consideration only one recommendation from any stockholder or affiliated group of stockholders. An affiliated group of stockholders means stockholders
constituting a group under SEC Regulation 13D. While the Nommatmg and Corperate Goveérnance' Commntee has not established a minimum number of shares that a
stockholder must own in order to present a nominating recommendation for consideration, or 2 minimum length of time during which the stockholder must own its
shares, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will take into account thejs:ze and duration of a recommending stockholder’s ownershtp interest in
Avantair. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Comm1ttee will only consnder recommendations of nominees who satlsfy the minimum qualifications prescribed
from time to time by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Commlttee or the fulI Board of Directors for board candidates, including that a dtreclor must represent
the interests of all stnckholders and not serve for the purpose of favonng or advancing the interests of any particular stockholder group or other constltucncy

All stockholder nommatmg recommendations must bein wntmg, addressed to the Nominating and Corporate Govemance Committee care of Avantair’s
Corporate Secretary at Avantair’s principal headquarters, 4311 General Howard Drive, Clearwater, Florida 33762, Submissians must be made by mail, courier or
personal delivery. E-mailed submissions will not be considered. If a recommendauon is submltted by a group of two or more stockholders, the information regarding
recommending stoc holders must be submitted with respect io each stockholder in thc group. Acceptance of a recnmmendatlon for consideration does not imply that the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will nominate the recommendcd candidate. In addition to proposing nominees for consideration’ to the Nominating
and Corporate Govemance Committee, stockholders may also directly propose nominees for consideration at an annual meeting of stockholders. The requirements and |
procedures to be foliowed by stockholders for directly nominating directors are discussed on page 3 under “Deadline for Receipt of Stockholder Proposals.”

Ve Lot F v . )

A nominating recommendation must be accompanied by the following information concerning each recommending stockholder:

. ,the nume and address, including telephone number, of the recommending stockhelder; P

. the number of Avantair’s shares owned by the recommending stockholder and the time period for which such shares have been held;

1, + . . - . oon [ . '
+ . . if the recommending stockhelder is not a stockholder of record, a statement from the record holder of the shares (usually a broker or bank) verifying the

holdiags of the stockholder and a statement from the recommending stockhoider of the length of time that the shares have been held (alternatively, the.
stockholder may. futnish a current Schedule 13D, Schedule 13G, Form 3, Form 4 or Form 5 filed with the SEC reflecting the holdmgs of the stockholder,
together with a statement of the length of time that the shares.have been held); and !
L i
. a statzment from the stockholder as 10 whether the stockholder has a good faith intention to continue to hold the reported shares through the date of
Avantair’s next annual meeting of stockholders.

'




A nominating recommendation must be accompanied by the following information conceming the proposed nominee: | .

. the information required by Item 401 of SEC Regulation S-K (generally providing for disclosure of the name, address, any arrangements or

‘ " understanding regardmg nomination and ﬁve-year businéss experiencé of ihe proposcd nominiee, as well as mformatron regarding certain ty’pes of ]egal
proceedings within the past five years involving the nommee)? :

« ' the information required by Item 403 of SEC Rogulatlon S K (generally prov1dmg for drsclosure rogardmg the proposed nominee’s ownership of

'Securmes of Avantarr) )
[ et

<" thé information requ:red by Ttem 404 of SEC Regulation $-K' (generally providing for disclosiire of transactions between Avammr and the proposed nominee

valued in excess of $120,000 and certain other types of business relationships with Avantair);

+ a descr1ptaon of the relatlonsh1ps between the proposed nominge and the recommending stockhoider and any agreements or understandings between the
: recommendmg stockholder arid the nommee regardmg the nomlnanon

+ a descnpnon of all relptronshrps between the proposed nomiriee and any of Avanralr $ compemors customers, suppliers, labor unions or other persons
" . with special interests regardmg Avantau known to the recommending stockholder of director in Avantair’s fitings with the SEC;"

« " astatement supporting the nommatmg stockho]der s view that the proposed nommee possesses the minimum qualifications prescnbed by the
. Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee for nominees pr dlrectors ‘from time 16 time, and briefly describing the contributions that the nominee
would be expected to make to the Board of Dlrectors and to the governance of Avantalr .
. a statement as to whether, in the view of the nommatmg stockholder, the nominee, 1f elected, wouild represent ail stockho[ders and not serve for the
purpose of advancmg or favonng any pamcular stookholder or other consllmenoy of Avantair; and )
R

v the consent of the proposed nommee 1o be mtervrewed by'the Nommatmg and Corporate Govemance Commlttec if the Normnatmg and Corporate
Govemance Committee chooses to do'so in its discretion {and the recommending stockholder must furnish the proposod nominge’s contact 1nforrnatlon‘

. o for this purpose) and, if nommaled and elected, to serve asa direcfor of Avantair, ‘ .
R ' i . RN |

[ 42 . R

Majority Voting for Directors

- Pt . . ‘
T i . . . ) . IR

In contested director elections, the plurallty standard will apply, which means the nominees receiving the greatest numbers of votes w1l] be elected to serve

as directors. Lo L . .o .

To be elected in an uncontested election, the votes “for”.a-director must exceed 50% of the votes actualli' cast with respect to the director’s election. Votes
actually cast include votes where the authority to cast a vote for the director’s election is explicitly withheld and exclude abstentions with respect to that director’s
election, so abstentions and any broker non-votes will have no effect on the election of directors. If an incumbent director is not elected and né successor has been
elected at the meeting, he or she shall promptly tender his or her conditional resignation following certification of the vote. The Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee shall considér the resignation offer and recommend to the Board of Directors whether to accept such offer. The Beard of Directors will endeavor to act on
the recommendation withifi 90 days following the recommendation: Thereafter, the Board of Directors will promptly disclose its decision whether to accept the
diréctor’s resignation offer {and thé reasoris for rejécting the offer, if-applicable) in a Report on'Form 8-K or by a press release. If the'Board of Directors does not accept
the resignation, the director will continue to serve until the next anmual meeting and until a successor has béen elected and qualified or until his or her earlier death,
resignation or removal. If the Board of Directors accepts the resrgnanon then the Board of Dlrectors in its sole discretion, may ﬁll any resultmg vacancy or may
decrease the size of the Board of Directors. ' i o

The election of directors at the Annual Meeting is an uncoatested election and thus the majority voting standard applies.

Determinations of Director Independence

For a director to be considered independent, the Board of Directors must determine that the director does not have any material relationship with Avantair
that falls within the eight categories below. The Board of Directors reviews these categories to assist it in determining director independence, which conform to or are
more exacting than the independence requirements in the Nasdaq Global Market listing standards. As required by the Nasdaq Global Market listing standards, the Board
of Directors will consider all material relevant facts and circumstances known to it in making an independence determination, both from the standpoint of the director
and from that of persons or organizations with which the director has an affiliation. As a result of this review, the Board of Directors determined that the following six
directors will be independent as of the date of the Annual Meeting: Barry J. Gordon, Arthur H. Goldberg, Stephanic A.Cuskley, A. Clinton Allen, Robert J. Lepofsky
and Richard B. DeWolfe.




A director will not be independent if the director fatis within one of the following éategories as determined by the Board of Directors or & committee thereof
based on facts knowm to it in light of the meanings ascribed to those categories under appllcable Nasdaq Global Market guidance, where applicable, and otherwise by
the Board of Directors or a committee thercof within its discretion (deteffninations are based upon relationships dunng the"36 months preceding thé determination):

f
. the mrector is employed by Avantair, or an 1mmed1ate fam1ly member is an executive ofﬁcer of Avantair;
P T I

. * 1 4 f R N o . .

. the director receives more than $100 000 per year in direct compensatlon from Avantair, other than diréttor and commitiee fees drid pensmn or other
. forrrs of deferred compensatlon for prior service (pmwded such compensanon is not contmgem in any way on commued service); - :
Yy ' ' . ’ Y P :

e an unmedlate family member of the director is employed by Avantair and recelves more than $100,000 per year in d1recl compensanon from Avantair;

L \ PR H X ' .

. the girector is affiliated with or employed by Avantair’s independent audltor, or an 1mmedlate farmly miefmber is afﬁhated with or ernployed ina ¢
prof ,ssmnal capacny by Avammr s mdepcndent audltor
- '
. an Avantair exccutive is on the ‘compensation committee of the Board of Dlrectors of a company which employs an Avanta:r director, or an immediate -
family member of that Avantalr director, as an executive officer;
[ . . .
. the director is an executive ofﬁcer or employee, or if an immediate famlly member is an executive officer, of another company that does business with
< +-. " Avantair and the sales by that company to Avantair or purchases by that company from-Avantair, in any smgle fiscal year dunng the evaluatmn period,

- are rnore than the greater of two percent of the armmual revenues of that company or' $§ million; 2ty | L
. it

ot Jo o, P A ' P it !

Al .1 - [ o B (o B

- the director is an executive officer or employee, or an immediate family member is an executive officer, of another company which is indebted for
borrowed money to Avantair, or to which Avantair is indebted for borrowed money, and the total amount of either of such company’s indebtedness to
the'other at the end of the Tast completed fiscal year is more than two percent of the other company’ s total consolidated assets; ot * s C

. “the «irector serves a$ an officer, direttor or trustee of a chantable -organization, and Avantair’s dlscretlonary chantable conmbutlons to the orgamzanon
+ . ate more than two peréent of that organization’s Total annital charitable l‘ECElptS during 1ts last completed ﬁscal year Lo S

.o T N A

Our board of directors has made a subjective determmatlon as to each 1ndependent director that no relat10nsh1ps exist which, in the opinion of our board of
directors, would interfere with the exercise of independent Judgment in carrying out the responsibiliiies of a director..Ilh making these’ determmatlorls, our directors
reviewed and discussed mformann prov1ded by the directors dand us with regard to each dlrector s busmess and personal acuvmes as they may relate to us and our
management. O T N i o

AR : . oot = a4t b .o ! . . ow 1

Board of Director; Meetings during Fiscal 2008

"+ The Bourd of Directors held a total of eight meem‘lgs dunng the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. All directors attended 75% or more of the aggregate
number of Board of Drrectors meetmgs and committee meetmgs The Chalrman of the Board présides over all meetmgs of the Board of D1rectors ;

! L - e e [ . weoop .

v ‘ o [ . 1

Policy Regarding Aftendance at Annual Meetmg of Stockholders - . ‘ .. .

Avantair encourages all directors to endeavor to attend all annual stockholders meetings, absent unanticipated personal or professwnal obligations which
preclude them from doing so. The majority Avantait’s directors attended the 2008 Annual Meeting. . . .

Stockholder Commanrication with the Board of Directors L : C : -

The board of directdrs will give appropriate attention to written communications ‘on issues that are submitted by stockholders and other interested parties,
and will respond if and as appropriate. The chairman of the nominating and corporate governance committee will be primarily responsible for ‘monitoring
communications from stockhelders and other interested pames and will provide COplCS or summanes of such commumcat:ons to the other directors as he considers
appropnme ' N ' - S

’ L L , o . . . . ECL I 1.

Commumcat:ons will be forwarded to all directors if they relate to substantwe matters and include suggestions or comments that the chamnan of the
nommatmg and coiporate governance comrnittee considers to be 1mportant for the ditectors to know \

* *o. f e e PR

v

- Stockholders and other interested parties who wish to send communications on any topu: to the board of directors should address such communications to
chairman of the corporate nominating and corporate’ govemance committee at the address provided on the first page of thiis pfoxy stitement. © - ¢
I " Tk -‘

Code of Conduct and Professional Ethics

Qur board of directors has adopted a code of conduct and professional ethics that applies to all of our d1rectors employees and officers, including our
principal executive officer, principal fi nanclal officer, and principal accounting officer or controller, ar persons performing similar functions. The full text of our code
of conduct and professional ethics is posted on our Web site at www avantair.com under the Corporate Governance section. We intend to disclose future amendments, if
any, to certain proy isions of our code of conduct and professional ethics, or waivers of such provisions, applicable 1o our directors and executive officers, including our
principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions, at the same location on our
Web site identified above and also in a Current Report on Form 8-K within four busmess days followmg the date of such amendment or waiver. The mclusnon of our
Web site address in this proxy does not mclude or mcorporﬂle by reference the mformatlon on’our Web sne into th:s proxy. o
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Pt o, et PROPOSALNOZ

RAT[FICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF [NDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The Audit Committee has selected J.H. Cohn, LLP as the Company’s independent auditors for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009, and has further directed
that management submit the selection of independent auditors for ratification by stockholders at the annua] meeting. Stockholder ratification of the selection of J.H.
Cohn, LLP as the Company’s independent auditors is not required by the Company’s Bylaws or otherwise. However, the Audit Comrmittee of the Board of Directors is
submitting the selection of J.H. Cohn, LLP to the stockholders for ratification as a matter of good corporate practice. If the stockholders fail to ratify the selection, the
Audit Commitiee of the Board of Directors will reconsider whether or not to retain that firm. Even if the selection were ratified, the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors at its discretion may direct the appointment of a different independent accounting flrm at any time durmg the year if the Audit Committee determines that
such a change would be in the best interests of the Company and 1t5 stockholders, L c e ,

J.H. Cohn, LLP has audited the Company s financial statements since August 1, 2006. A represcntatwc of the firm of J.H. Cohn, LLPis expected to be
available at the annuzl meeting and will have an oppoitunity to make a statement if he or she so desires and will be available to respond to appropriate questions,

: AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
,‘ E -A:rantair., Inc.’s Audit Commirtee serves to assist Avantair’s Board in fulfilling the oversight responsibilities it has under the law with respect to financial
reports and other financial information provided by Avantair to the public, Avantair's systems of internal controls regarding finance and accounting that management
and the Board have established and Avantair’s audmng, accounting and financial reporting processes generally.
o a R
The Audit Commlttec is compnsed soIely of independent directors, ag def ned in the hstmg standards of the Nasdaq G!obal Market, as well as other
statutory, regulatory and other. requirements applicable to Avantair: .. . . . .

+.The Audit Commmee operates under a wnttcn charter adopted by the Board, a copy of which is avaﬂable in the Investor Relations section of Avantair’s
website (www avantair.com). The Audit Committee annually reviews and assesses the adequacy of its charter in order to insure early or timely compliance with
- statutory, regulatory, listing and other requirements applicable to Avantair,
Avantair's, management has primary responsibility for the preparation, presentation and inte\gtity'of Avantair’s financial statements and its financial
Teporting process, ingluding internal control over financial reporting. Avantair’s independent registered public accounting firm, J.H.-Cohn, LLP, is responsible for
expressing an opinion on the conformity of Avantair’s financial statements with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The Audit Committee
members are not professional accountants or auditors and their functions are not intended to dupllcate or to certify the activities of management and the mdependent
registered public accounting firm. \

The Audit Committee has the authority and responsibility.to select, evaluate and, when appropriate, replace the independent registered public accounting
fitm. The Audit Committee also has periodic discussions with management and the independent registered public accouqting firm with regard to the quality and
adequacy of Avantair’s internal controls. Management's and the independent registered public accounting firm’s presentations to, and discussions with, the Audit
Committee also cover various topics and events that may have significant financial impact or are thie sub_fect of discussions between management and the independent
regtslcred publ;r:. accounting firm.

In this context, the Audit Committee reports as follows:
1. The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements with Avantair’s management and J.H. Cohn, LLP, .

2, The Audit Committee has discussed with J.H. Cohn, LLP the matters requlred to be discussed by SAS 61 (Cochf' cation of Statements on Auditing
~ Standards, AU §380).

.

"

3. The Audit Committee has received and reviewed the written disclosures and the letter from J.H, Cohn, LLP required by the applicable requirements of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding the independent accountant’s communications with the Audit Committee conceriing
" independence and has discussed with J.H. Cohn, LLP its independence from Avantair. ! .
. ] .
4. Based on the review and discussion referred to in paragraphs (1) through (3) above, the Audit Committee recommended to Avantair’s Board, and the
. Board has approved, that the audited financial statements be included in Avantair’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008,
for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Audit Committee has, also appeinted J.H. Cohn, LLP as Avantair’s independent reglstcred
public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009,

. Submitted by the audit committee:

STEPHANIE A. CUSKLEY
ARTHUR H. GOLDBERG
ROBERT J. LEPOFSKY

1 . ' . * . [

The information contained in the abové Auidit Committee Repart shall not be deemed solwmng material or "ﬂed with the SEC, or subject to the
liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent that we spectf cally mcarporate it by reference mt‘a such filings.
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Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The following table presents fees for professional audit services rendered by I "H* Cohn, LLP for the audit of Avantair’s annual financial statements for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2608 and June 30, 2007, and fees billed for other services rendered by .H. Cohn, LLP during those periods, . ,
’ . L P . . i + . ot fre \

. ' .
. .
‘e R [ i o e

Fee : e
Cateyrory . ) . Fiscal 2008 Fees Fiscal 2007 Fees
. AuditFees e e+ e 8281000 3 230,609,
¢ AuditRelafed Fees SRS . - 98500 T T T 96000
© ' MaxFees - . = -
All Other Fees ’ ‘ — ' e
Total Fees e - - s 379500 § | 316,699
: L i —————
s I A e o oo - . ‘

T o . 1 ot ! ' - . .
Audit Fees. Consists of fees billed for professional services rendered for the audit of Avantair’s consolidated financial statements, and review of the interim
financial statements included in quarterly reports and services that are normally provided by J.H. Cohn, LLP in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or
engagements. '

Audit-Related Fees. Consist of fees for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of our financial
statements in conne :tion with regulatory filings and are not reported under “Audit Fees.”

Tax Fees . Avantair did not incur any additional fees under this category.

All Othes Fees. Avantair did not incur any additional fees under this category.

Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit, Audit-Related and Permissible Non-Audit Services of the Independent Registered Public Accountants

_ The Aucit Committee’s policy is to pre-approve all audit, audit-related and permissible non-audit services provided by the independent registered public
accountants in order to assure that the provision of such services does not impair the auditor’s independence. These services may include audit services, audit-related
services, tax services and other services, Pre-approval is generally provided for up to one year and any pre-approval is detailed as to the particular service or category of
services and is generally subject to a specific budget. Management is required to periodically report to the Audit Committee regarding the extent of services provided by
the independent registered public accountants in accordance with this pre-approval, and the fees for the services performed to date. During the fiscal year ended June
30, 2008, all services were pre-approved by the Audit Committee in accordance with this policy.

Recommendation of the Board of Directors

The affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the shares of our common stock present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote is required for
the adoption of this proposal. If you hold your shares through a broker, bank or other nominee and you do not instruct them on how to vote on this proposal; your broker
will not have authority to vote your shares. An abstention from voting by a stockholder present in person or by proxy at the meeting has the same legal effect as a vote
“*against” the matter because it represents a share present or represented at the meeting and entitled to vote, thereby increasing the number of affirmative votes required
to approve this proposal.

N

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DEEMS “PROPOSAL NO. 2 — RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ TO BE IN THE BEST INTERESTS
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS STOCKHOLDERS AND RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR" APPROVAL OF THIS PROPOSAL.

11




PROPOSAL NO, 3

. TRANSACTION OF SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS MAY PROPERLY COME BEFORE THE ANNUAL
MEETING, INCLUDING ANY ADJOURNMENT THEREOF

The Board does not know of any matter for action by stockholders at the 2009 Annual Meeting other than Proposals 1 and 2. The enclosed proxy card,
however, will confer discretionary authority to the persons named in the proxy card (Allison Roberto and Tom Palmiero, or either of them) with respect to matters
which are unknown at the date of printing this proxy statement and which may properly come before the meeting (including any adjournment thereof). Ms. Roberto and
Mr. Palmiero intend to vote on any such matter in accordance with their judgment on such matter. '

Recommendation of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors believes that it is in Avantair’s best interests 10 authorize Ms. Roberto and Mr. Palmiero to vote on any matters which are unknown
at the date of printing this proxy statement and which may properly come before the 2009 Annual Meeting (including any adjournment thereof).

'

12




OTHER INFORMATION

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of common stock of Avantair as of the Measurement Date by: (i) each of Avantair’s directors and
nominees for director; (i) each of the Named Executive Officers listed in the Summary Compensation Table below; (iii) all current directors and executive officers of
Avantair as a group and (iv) each person known by Avantair to own beneficially more than five percent of the outstanding shares of its common stock. The number and
percentage of share:, beneficially owned is determined under rules of the SEC and the information is not necessarily indicative of beneficial ownership for any other
purpose. Under such rules, beneficial ownership includes any shares as to which the individual has sole or shared voting power or investment power and also any shares
as to which the indi-vidual has the right to acquire beneficial ownership of such shares within 60 days of the Measurement Date through the exercise of any stock option
or other right. Unléss otherwise indicated in the footnotes, each person has sole voting and investment power (or shares such powers with his or her spouse) with respect

. to the shares shown as beneficially owned. A total of 15,306,666 shares of Avantair's common stock were issued and outstanding as of the Measurement Date.

Amount and
Nature of
Beneficial
Name and Addres: of Beneficial Qwner'! N Ownership Percent of Class )
Jomathan Awerbach® o agmsest 25.4%
stevenSame® . ... \woeu 88%
Allison Roberto” LSS 8%,
?aEl So_n:kinm___ e 3247480 0 _ 16.8%
Jeffrey Kirby™ . el __ Be4900 - 4.5%]
Fau]ﬁJ.SqI‘iIA(s’ e . B L o fﬁlﬁ’.g@gﬁ‘tﬁﬂ e %..11:8.%1.
_SeL’hVKlarman”'W e ) e _ 1,156,000 o 6%,
Fred B. Batbara™ 7156426 3.9%
BamylGordon™ 6aza3® _33%,
Richard A, Pytak Jr e S aseet e
ArhurH. Goldberg™ - e . _3amgoo™ o 18%
Stephanie A. Cuskley™ o sgeot oot
A Clinton Allen™® e o 3spo0™ .
Robert J. Lepofsky™ o o o B 300070 o e
Kevin Beitzel e o __}4_,042‘22’. ) L >
Gilder, Gagnon, & Howe & Co.LLC®™® . 1,663,156 o 8.6%
Richard B. DeWolfi®® _ I —— 38000 Lt
All directors and ex zcutive officers as a group (9 individuals) ®* 2,828,992 15.8%

* Less than 1%




(1} Unless otherwise noted, the business address of each of the following is ¢c/o Avantair, 4311 General Howard Drive, Clearwater FL 33762

(2) The business address of Mr. Auerbach is Hound Partners, LLC 101 Park Avenue, 48th Floor, New York, NY 10178. The shares are held by Hound Parmers, LP, and
Hound Parmers Offshore Fund, LP. Mr. Auerbach is the Managing Member of Hound Performance, LLC and Hound Partners, LLC, investment management firms that

serve as the general partner and investment manager, respectively, te Hound Partners, LP and Hound Partners Offshore Fund, LP. Includes 2,170,138 shares of common
stock issuable upon exercise of warrants and 1,941,748 shares of common stock that may be acquired upon the conversion of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. This
information is based on Form 4 filed with the SEC on August 8, 2008 and Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on November 21, 2007 by these persons.

(3) 1,641,650 of the shares are held by Camelot 27 LLC. Each of Steven Santo and Allison Roberto are members of Camelot 27 LLC. Includes 59,361 shares of
restricted stock which were granted to Steven Santo individually, which one third vested on May 18, 2008 and one twelfth of the shares vest every 3 months thereafier,

{4) 1,641,650 of the shares are held by Camelot 27 LLC. Each of Steven Santo and Allison Roberto are members of Camelot 27 LLC. Includes 5,000 shares of’
restricted stock which was granted to Allison Roberto individually which one third vested on May 18, 2008 and one twelfth of the shares vest every 3 months thereafter.

(5) The business address of Mr. Sonkin is 460 Park Avenue, 12th Floor, New York, New York 10022, The shares are held by Hummingbird Value Fund, L.P., The
Hummingbird Microcap Value Fund, L.P. and The Hummingbird Concentrated Fund, L.P. Mr. Sonkin, as managing member and control person of Hummingbird
Management LLC, the investment manager of such entities, has sole voting and dispositive power over such shares.

This information is based upon Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on November 26, 2007 and Form 4 filed with the SEC on November 26, 2007 by these persons.

(6} Includes 1,173,590 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants and 233,010 shares of common stock that may be acquired upon the conversion of
12,000 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, '

(7) The business address of Mr. Kirby is P.O. Box 70458, Reno, Nevada 89570, This information is based upon Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on March §, 2007 by
Mr. Kirby.

(8) The business address of Mr. Solit is Potomac Capital Management, 825 Third Avenue, 33 Floor, New York, NY 10022. The shares are held by Potomac Capital
Management LLC and Potomac Capital Management Inc. Mr. Solit is the Managing Member of Potomac Capital Management LLC and the President and Sole Qwner
of Potornac Capital Management Inc. Includes 430,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of warranis and 776,680 shares of commeon stock that may be
acquired upon the conversion of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. This information is based on the Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on August 28, 2008 by these
persons.

(9) The business address of Mr. Klarman is The Baupost Group, LLC, 10 St. James Avenue, Suite 1700, Boston, MA 02116. The shares are held by The Baupost
Group, LLC. The Baupost Group LLC is a registered investment adviser. SAK Corporatien is the Manager of The Baupost Group LLC. Seth Klarman is the sole
Director of SAK Corporation and a controlling person of The Baupost Group LLC. This information is based on Form 13G filed with the SEC on February 12, 2008 by
these persons,

(10) The business address of Mr, Barbara is BHP Partners LLC, 2300 South Archer Avenue, Chicago, IL 60616. This information is based upon Schedule 13D filed
with the SEC on March 5, 2607 by Mr. Barbara,
(11} The business address of Mr. Gordon is 7808 Talavera Place, DelRay Beach, Florida 33446.

-

(12) Includes 10,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options which vested on February 23, 2008. Includes 3,000 shares of restricted stock which vest
one-third upon each of the next 3 successive annual meetings of stockholders.

(13) Represents 7,500 shares of restricted stock granted to Mr. Pytak which vest one-third on June 30, 2009 and one-twelfth of the shares vest every'3 months
thereafter,

(14) The business address of Mr. Goldberg is c/o Corporate Solutions Group, 175 Great Neck Road, Suite 408, Great Neck, NY 11021,

(15) Includes 125,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants. Includes 10,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options which
vested on February 23, 2008. includes 3,000 shares of restricted stock which vest one-third upon each of the next 3 successive annual meetings of stockholders,

(16) The business address of Ms. Cuskley is 145 West 30th Street, New York, NY 10001.

(17) Includes 10,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options which vested on February 23, 2008. Includes 3,000 shares of restricted stock which vest
one-third upon each of the next 3 successive annual meetings of stockholders.

(18) The business address of Mr. Allen is 7t0 South Street, Needham, MA 02492,

(19) Includes 10,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options which vested on February 23, 2008. Includes 3,000 shares of restricted stock which vest
one-third upon each of the next 3 successive annual meetings of stockholders.

(20) The business address of Mr. Lepofsky is ¢/o Westcliff Capital Group, PO Box 81367, Wellesley Hills, MA 02461.

(21) Inctudes 10,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options which vested on February 23, 2008, Includes 3,000 shares of restricted stock which vest
one-third upon each of the next 3 successive annual meetings of stockholders.

(22) Represents 10,000 shares of restricted stock granted to Mr, Beitzel which one third vested on May 18, 2008 and one-twelfth of the shares vest every three months
thereafter. In addition, 15,000 shares of restricted stock were granted to Mr. Beitzel on June 30, 2008 which one third vests on June 30, 2009 and one-twelfth of the
shares vest every 3 months thereafter.

(23) This information is based on Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on Febnuary 6, 2008 by Walter Weadock, member of Gilder, Gagnon, Howe and Co. LLC.

(24) Includes 499,626 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants. includes 107,054 shares of restricted stock. Includes 50,000 shares of common stock
issuable upon exercise of options.

{25) The business address of Mr. DeWolfe is c¢/o DeWolfe & Company, PO Box 299, Milton, MA 02186."
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Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance .. .

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires Avantair’s executive officers and directors, and persons who beneficially own more than ten
percent of our comtaon stock to file initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership with the SEC. Executive officers, directors and beneficial owners
of more than ten percent of the Company’s common stock are required by the SEC to fumish us with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

.

Based upon a review of the forms furnished to Avantair and written representations from its executive officers and directors, the Company believes that
during fiscal 2008 all Section 16(a) fi f'hng requu'emems applicable to its execunve of'ﬁcers directors and beneficial owners of more than ten percent of our common
stock were complied with. : .

Compensation Coinmittee Interlocks and Insider Participation

No member of the compensation committee of the board of directors was an officer or employee of Avantair during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 or
was formerly our officer or employee. In addition, none of Avantair's executive officers served as a member of another entity’s board of directors or as a member of the
compensation committee of another entity (or other board committee performing equivalent functions) during the fiscal year June 30, 2008, which'entity had an
executive officer se;ving on the board of directors. There are no compensation committee intertocks and no msuier participation in compensation decisions that are
required to be reported under the rules and regulations of the Exchange Act.




MANAGEMENT
Executive Officers - .

The following table contains the names, ages, and positions of our current executive officers:

Name ' Co Age - ‘ ) Position

Steven Santo 41 Chief Executive Officer and Director . '
Richard A. Pytak Ir. 46 Chief Financial Officer Lot . o
Kevin Beitzel 40 Chief Operating Officer

Steven Santo has served as Chief Executive Officer, President and a Director of Avantair since its inception in June 2003 and Skyline Aviation Sér\ilces Inc.

since June 2002. Mr. Santo is a licensed, commercially-rated p1lot who has been flving for approximately 15 years. From 1995 through 2001, Mr. Santo practiced law
as an attomey in private pracncc ‘concluding his law practice in 2001 as a name partner at the firm of Fields, Silver & Santo. From 1992 to-1995, Mr. Santo served as
an Assistant District Attorney in New York working in the office’s major crimes unit. Mr. Santo received a J.D. from St. Johins” University School of Law and a
bachelor’s degree from Villanova University.

Richard Pytak has been the Chief Financial Officer since April 14, 2008. Prior thereto, Mr. Pytak was the Company’s Vice President of Finance since
joining the Company in February 2008. Prior to joining Avantair, Mr. Pytak served as Group Controller of Gibraltar Industries, Inc., from August 2003 to January 2008
and as Treasurer from June 1998 to July 2003. Gibraltar Industries, Inc. is a leading manufacturer, processor, and distributor of products for the building, industrial, and
vehicular markets, with annual sales of aver §1 billion dollars in 2007.

Kevin Beitzel has been the Chief Operating Officer since February 8, 2008. Mr. Beitzel served as the Company’s Executive Vice President of Maintenance
and Operations from September 2007 to February 8, 2008. From December 2005 through August 2007, Mr. Beitzel served as the Company's Vice President of
Maintenance. Prior to joining Avantair, Mr. Beitzel served as Director of Vendor Maintenance at US Airways from February 2005 to December 2005, From July 199%
to February 2005 Mr. Beitzel served as Maintenance Operations Manager at US Airways.



Executive Compeasation
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

. The primary goals of the compensation committee of Avantair’s board of directors with respect to’executive compensation are to attract and retain the most
talented and dediczted executives possible, to tie annual and long-term cash and stock incentives to achlevcmcm of specified performance objcclwcs and to align
executives’ incentives wuh stockholder value creation. ' . '

'
+

To achi:ve these goals, our compensation committee recommends executive compensation packages to our board of directors that are generally based on a
mix of salary, discietionary bonus and equity awards. Although our compensation committee has not adopted any formal guidelines for allocating total compensation
between equity conipensation and cash compensation, we intend to implement and maintain compensation plans that ti¢ a substantial portion of our executives’ overall
compensation to achievement of corporate goals and value-creating milestones such as the development of our products, the establishment and maintenance of key
strategic relationships, reaching sales and marketing targets and the growth of our customer base as well as our financial and operational performance, as measured by
metrics such as revznues and profitability.

We retained compensation consultants to review our policies and procedures with respect to executive compensation. They intend to conduct an annual
benchmark review of the aggregate level of our execul:ve compensatmn as well as the mix of clements used to compensatc our executjve officers.
Our conipensation committee will perform a review based on a survey of execulwe compensation pa:d by peer companies in the fractlonal aircraft industry*
as well as review other industries of similar age and size, as it sees fit, in connection with the establishment of cash and equity compensation and related policies.
vl o

Elements of Compensation

Our compensanon committee cvaluatcs individual exccunve performance wn.h a goal. of semng compensation at levels the commitiee believes are
comparehle with executives in other companies of similar size and stage of development operating in our industry and are competitive and further our objectives of
motivating achieveinent of our short- and long-term financial performance goals and strategic objectives, rewarding superior performance and aligning the interests of
our executives and shareholders. The compensation received by our executive officers consists of the following elements:

R [ [

The corr.pensation reccived by our executive officers consists of the following clements:

. base salary,
. dlscreuonary annual bonus; ' ' N

. equlty—bascd lorig-term mcemwes, mcludmg stock appm:lauon rights and perfom\ance-based restricted slock and

401(k), profit-sharing, welfare and other pcrsonal benefits




Base Salary

3] » A L)
General Considerations . [ LA

Base salaries for our executives.are established based on the scope of their responsibilities and individual experience, taking into account competitive market
cotmpensation paid by other companies for similar positions within the fractional aircrafl industry. Base salaries are reviewed annually, and adjusted from time to time
to realign salaries with market levels after taking into account individual responsibilities, performance and expertence: Since February 2007, thc base salary of our Chief
Executive Oﬁicer has been $416 000. The annual base salary for our other executive ofﬁcers range from $150, 000 to $250,000.

L - T . v i N ' i, .

+. Our compensatton committee believes thm these base salary levels are oornmcnsuratc wnh the genera] salary levels for 51m:lar posmons in compumes ina

similar stage of development in our mdustry N T T P . e . PRI R L
e e, o o . v v . ey B o

s+ . . . s f . T i R | P - L, Aol .,
Annual Incentive Compensation

Discretionary Annuaf Bonus . oot Coiae o s . o P e e i .
' ’ - v g Lo i PN TR N N o N . ) by, P ‘
In addition to base salaries, our compensation committee has the authority to award dlscreuonary annual bonuses to our executwc ofﬁcers The annual
incentive bonuses are intended to compensate officers for achieving corporate goals and for achieving what the committee believes to be value-creating milestones,
' o e T RUI .. . .. . , . '
Long-Term Compensation- 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan '
G T
In February 2007, Avantair’s Board of Directors and stockholders approved Avantair’s 2006 Long Term Incentive Plan {(which we somenmes refer to as the
PIBI‘I). (8 4 1 ey [ . - oot
ot i R R AR L T N ‘. 1 - ‘e : PP U . ).
Purpose SR . . . " : . . Lo - o TR S “ g
IR B ’ . ’ ‘ B LI . " T Ao .
The purpose of the Plan is to further and promote the interests of Avantair, its subsidiaries and its stockholders by enabling Avantair and its subsidiaries to
atfract, retain and motivate employees, non-employee directors and consultants or those who will become employees non-employee directors or consultants, and to

align the interests of those individuals and Avantair’s stockholders. . , . P SHE Ly
Number of Shares -

The maximum number of shares of Avantair common stock as to which awards may be granted under the Plan may not exceed 1,500,000 shares. Shares of
Avantair common stock subject to issuance upon exercise or settlement of awards with respect to stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and restricted
stock units shall count against this limit. Awards of performance units which are paid.in cash are not subject to this.limit and will not count against the number of shares
of Avantair common stock available under the Plan. With respect to awards intending to be “qualified performance-based compensation™ under Section 162{m) of the
Internal Revenue Code (which is referred to as the Code) the maximum amount that can be awarded in any calendar year to any participant is (i) in respect of
performance units, perfermance-based restricted shares and restricted stock units and other awards (other than options and stock appreciation rights), 150,000 shares of
Avantair common stock {or the then equivalent fair market value of such shares), and (ii) in the case of stock options and stock appreciation rights, 150,000 underlying
shares of Avantair common stock, Avantair may grant awards that exceed the 150,000-share limit so long as the armount in excess of such limit is not intended to be
“qualified performance-based compensation™ under Code Section 162(m). The limits on the numbers of shares described in this paragraph and the number of shares
subject to any award under the Plan are subject to proportional adjustment as determined by Avantair's Board o refiect cenain stock changes, such as stock dividends
and stock splits (see “Recapitalization Adjustments™ below),

If any awards under the Plan expire or terminate unexercised, the shares of common stock allocable to the unexercised or terminated portion of such award
shall return to Avantair’s treasury and again be available for award under the Plan.

Administration

The administration, interpretation and operation of the Plan will be vested in the Compensation Committee of Avantair’s Board of Directors. The
Compensation Committee may designate persons other than members of the Compensation Committee to carry out the day-to-day administration of the Plan.

Eligibility

The Plan permits awards to employees and non-employee directors and consultants of Avantair and its subsidiary.

No determination has been made as to future awards which may be granted under the Plan, although it is anticipated that recipients of awards will include
the current executive officers of Avantair. It is not determinable what awards under the Plan would have been received by the executive officers and directors of

Avantair and its subsidiaries.
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Awards under the Plan R
Awards under the Plan may consist of stock options, stock appreciation rights (which are sometimes referred to as SARs), restricted shares, restricted stock
units or performance unit awards, each of which is described below. All awards will be evidenced by an award agreement between Avantair and the individual -
participant and approved by the Compensation Commitice. At the discretion of the Compensation Committee, an eligible employee mdy receive awards from one or
more of the categories described below, and more than one award may be granted to an eligible employee.

' L i : Y w

v won ; T Yoo .

4 SN T

Stock Options and Stock Appreciation Rights

A stock opticn is an award that entitles a participant to purchase shares of Avantair comrtion stock af a price fixéd at the time'the option is granted. Stock
options granted under the Plan may be in the form of incentive stock optiens (which quahfy for special tax treatment) or non-qualified stock opnons and may be |
granted alone or in addition to other awards under the Plan. R .

An SAR entlﬂes a participant to receive, upon exercise, an amount equal to the excess’ of the fair market value Jon the exen:lse date of a share of Avantair
commbn stock, over the fair market value of a share of Avantalr common stock on the date the SAR was granted multlplled by the htimber of shares of Avantair i
comman stock for which the SAR has been exercised.

’ : . . ta oo

The excrcise price and other terms and conditions of stock options and the terms and conditions of SARs will be determined by the Compensation
Committee at the time of grant, and in the case of stock options, the exercise price per share may not be less than 100 percent of the fair market value of a share of
Avantair common ;stock on the date of the grant, In addition, the term of any incentive stock options granted under the Plan may not exceed ten years. An option or SAR
grant under the Plan does not provide the recipient of the option any rights as a shareholder and such rights will accrue only as to shares actually purchased through the
exercise of an option or the settlement of an SAR. .

If stock options and SARs are granted together in tandem, the exercise of such stock option or the related SAR will result'in'the cancellation of the related
stock option or SAR to the extent of the number of shares in respect of which such option or SAR has been exercised.. to

e

Stock otions and SARs granted under the Plan shall become exercisable at such time as designated by the Compensauon Committee at the tlme of grant.

Payment for shares issuable pursuant to the exercise of a stock option may be made either in cash, by certified check, bank draft or ‘money order payable to
the order of Avantair, or by payment through any other mechanism permitted by the Compensation Commlttee, including, if the Compensatmn Committee 50
determines, by delivery of shares of Avantair common stock. . o . P -

In addition, the Compensation Committee, in its sole discretion, may provide in any stock option or SAR award agreement that the rec]pient of the stock
option or SAR will be entitled 1o dividend equivalenis with respect to such award. In such instance, in respect of any such award which is outstandmg on a dividend
record date for Avuntair common stock, the participant would be entitled te an amount equal to the amount of cash or stock dividends that would have pald on the
shares of Avantair common stock covered by such stock option or SAR award had such shares of AVal‘ltall’ common stock beér! outstandmg on the dividend record date.

Restricted Share Awards and Restricted Stock Units

. Restricted share-awards are grants of‘Avantair common stock made to.a participant subject to conditions established by the Compensation Committee in the
relevant award agreement on the date of grant. Restricted stock. units are similar to restricted shares except thatno shares of common.stock are actuaily awardedtoa 1
participant on the date of grant and the common stock underlymg the award will generally be provided to the pam(:lpant after the vesting conditions have been satisfied.

[ B £ BTN s oot ’ ‘ . ST T ' chea, EN
Restricted shares and restricted sr.ock units will vest in accordance with the condmons and vmmg schedule, if any, prowdcd in. the relevant award
agreement. A partizipant may not sell or otherwise dispose.ofirestricted shares or restricted stock units'until the conditions imposed by.the Compensation Committee -
with respect to such shares and/or units have been satisfied. Restricted share awards and restricted stock units under the Plan may be granted alone or in addition to any

other awards under the Plan. Restricted shares which vest will be reissued as unrestricted shares of Avantair common stock. weoe : .

'.  Each participant who receives a‘grant of restricted shares will have the right,to-receive all dividends and vote or execute proxies for such shares. Any stock
dividends granted with respect to such restricted shares will be'treated as additional restricted shares. Participants receiving grants of restricted stock units will not be
stockholders until the common'stock underlying thé-award is provided-to them and they will not enjoy the nghts of stockholders (such as recelvmg dividends and votmg
orexecutmgproxn-s)untllthattune ar R . S Y S N R P L . B P

e ot AP S ‘-n"\

e . H - - . . 0 . ‘. . .
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Pe;formanceUm's v R T TR A R I I SR : o
ot M A L . 1.11" L o ; .
Perforn 12Nce units (wnh each unit representing a monetary-amount designated in advance by the. Compensatlon Commmec) are. awards whlch may be
granted to participants alone or in addition to any other awards granted under the Plan. Generally, participants receiving performance unit grants will only earn such
units if certain performance goals are satisfied during a designated performance period. The Compensation Committec will establish such performance goals and may
use measures such as level of sales, earnings per share, income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting changes, income before cumulative effect of +
accounting changes, net income, earnings before interest and taxes, return on assets, return on equity, return on capital employed, total stockholder return, market
valuation, cash flow, Cash EBITDA, completion of acquisitions and/or divestitures, comparisons to peer companies, individual or aggregate participant performance or
such other measure or measures of performance as the Compensation Committee determines. The participant may forfeit such units in the event the performance goals
are not met. Ifall or a portmn of a performance unit is earned, payment of the designated value thereof will be made in cash, unrestricted shares of Avantair common
stock, in restricted shares or in any combination thereof, as provided in the relevant award agreement.
v BN LR ot LT dea
Performance Gouls for Qualified Performance-Based C‘ompensation
EIERCENE R T .- oo A
Section 162(m) of the Code limits Avantair’s ability 10 deduct compensation paid to its senior executive ofﬁcers unless lhc compensation qualifies as
“qualified perform wce-based compensation;” as defined in‘that section and the regulations promulgated-under that-section: In order to qualify as * quallﬁed‘ ¢
performance-based compensation;” the material terms of the performance goals must be disclosed to Avantair's stockholders and appruved by.the: stockholders Among
the material terms ithe performhance goals are descnpuons of the business cnlena on which the pcrformance poals will be baséd. - 1 . - |
wWe e . ' ot Ma ta .- '
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To the extent possible Avantair intends to have the Plan satisfy the requirements of Section 162(m) so that the Compensation Committee is able to grant
awards satisfying the requirements of “qualified performance-based compensation.” Consequently, Avantair must disclose the following business criteria in establlshmg
performance goals under the plan . . ) ,

. level of sales,
e 4t . . . ‘E . ' « . . ‘ " . B I.
. earnings per share, .
Il ] f
. income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting changes,
o + . .. income before cumulative effect of accounting changes,. . . ' . | - .
oo T .o . S . . )
. ‘net income, . ’ - oo
. 1 o e I .. . ., }
., * . camnings beforeinterest and taxes, . . . ‘
= N a. B N N -t a2 o . ] 4 4
. return on assets, *
* ot o o 2o . T B [ - ' : [N
. return on equity, !
' JUT 1 3 '
Vo TR .. - ' "
* -+ return on capital employed,
.+ +» 1 _total stockholderreturn,, .~ ., - - Lo . e

. market valuation, :
o ; . o

. cash flow, .

b v ’
P G e e e oL ' 5 .. . o . R
. cash EBITDA, , : . . .,
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comparisons'te peer companies, and
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.* . completion of acquisitions and/or divestitures. . .

I ] v HE T E .o . ' ' :

. + - These performance goals will be based on any of the above business criteria, either alone or in any combination, on either a consolidated or business unit or
divisiondl level; as the Compensation Committee may determine. Such business criteria will have any reasonable definitions that the Compensation Committee may
specify, which may include or exclude any or all of the following items: extraordinary, unusual or non-recurring items; effects of accounting changes; effects of .
currency fluctuations; effects of financing activities (e.g., effect on earnings per share of issuing convertible debt securities); expenses for restructuring or productivity
initiatives, non-operating items; acqnisition expenses; and effects of divestitures. Any such performance criterion or combination of such criteria may apply toa
pamc1pant s award opportumty inits entlrety or to any demgnated portion or portlons of the award opportunity, as the Compcnsatmn Commlttee may spec1fy

i

Recapztaltzarron Aajusrmems

Awards granted under the Plan, any agreements evidencing such awards and the maximum number of shares of Avantair common stock subject to ail
awards, as well as the per participant per calendar year limitations described above, shall be subject to adjustment dr substitution, as determined by Avantair's Board of
Directors, as to the number, price or kind of a security or other consideration subject to such awards or as otherwise determined by the Board to be equitable (i) in the
event of changes in the outstanding stock or in the capital structure of Avantair by reason of stock or extraordinary cash dividends, stock splits, reverse stock splits,
recapitalization, reorganizations, mergers, consolidations, combinations, exchanges, or other relevant changes in capitalization occurring after the date of grant of any
such award or (ii) in the event of any change in applicable laws or any change in circumstances which results in or would result in any substantial dilution or
enlargement of the rights granted to, or available for, participants, or which otherwise warrants equitable adjustment because it interferes with the intended operation of
the Plan, Avantair shall.give each participant notice of an adjustment hereunder and, upon notice, such adjustment shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes.
Mergers and Other Similar Events

In the event of any of the following: +

o A. Avantair is merged into or consolidated with another corporation or entity;

B. All or substantially all of the assets of Avantair are acquired by another person; or

C. The reorganization or liquidation of Avantair
" e - P . i + - - o . 1
Avantair’s Board of Directors may cancel any outstanding awards and cause the holders thereof to be paid, in cash, securities or other property (including any securities
or other property of a successor or acquirer), or any combination thereof, the value of such awards as determined by Avantair Board of Directors, in its sole discretion
{e.g., in the case of Stock Options, based upon the excess of the value of a share of Avantair common stock over the exercise price per share). Avantair’s Board of.
Directors may provide that such cash, securities or other property is subject to vesting and/or exercisability terms similar to the award being cancelled.
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Amendment, Suspension or Termination of the Plan

Unless carlier terminated by Avantair's Board of Directors, the Plan shall terminate on the date 10 years after the date the first award is granted thereunder.
The Board may amend, suspend or terminate the Plan {or any portion thereof) at any time. However, no amendment shall (a) materially and adversely affect the rights
of any participant under any cutstanding award, without the consent of such pafticipant (except as described below) or (b) increase the number of shares available for
awards under the P an without shareholder approval. ) ’

' Se_ct'i'én 409A of the Code provides substantial penalties to persons deferring taxable income, unless the requirements of Section 409A have been satisfied.
The Plan provides the ability to issue awards that may be subject to subject to Section 409. The Plan explicitly provides the ability for Avantair’s Board of Directors to
amend the Plan , w:thout participant consent, in any way it deems appropriate, cven if such amcndment would matenally and adversely affecl the rights of pammpams
to sansfy Secnon 409A and the regulations that will be issued ‘thereunder. :

401(k) and Retirement Programs

We have a tax-qualified employee savings and retirement plan, or 401(k) plan, which generally covers our emp]oyces The plan is 1ntended to qualify under
Sections 401(a), 401(k) and 40l(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended, so that contributions, and i income camed thereon, are ftot taxable to employees,
until withdrawn from the plan Under the plan, employees may elect to reduce their current compensation by up to the stitutorily prescribed annual limit ($15,500 in
calendar year 2008) and have the amount of the reduction contributed to the plan. The plan also permits, but does not require, us to make matching contributions and
profit-sharing contributions 1o the plan on behalf of participants. In addition, eligtble employees may elect to conmbute an addmonal amount of their eligible
compensation as a catch-up contribution to the 401(K) plan, provided that such employees are age 50 or older ($5 000 in calendar year 2008). To date, we have not
made any dlscreuonary ot prol' t-sharing contributions to the 40 (k) plan As a tax-qualified plan, we Can generally deduct contributions from the participants pre-tax
compensation when made, and such contributions and their eamnings are not taxable to participants until distributed from the plan Pursuam to lhe terms of the plan,
participants may direct the trustees to invest their accounts in selected investment options.

Nongualified Deferred Comp;.’nsation e . - ,

On December 18, 2008, the Company adopted the Avantalr Leadersh:p Deferred Compensatmn Plan, (wh1ch we somenmcs refer to as the “Deferred
Compensation Plan™") approved by the Board of Directors for a select group of management or highly compensated employees and nen-employee Directors, effective
January , 2009. The Deferred Compensation Plan is comprised of an Adoption Agreement and a Basic Plan Document. The Deferred Compensation Plan is a
nonqualified, unfunded deferred compensation plan that provides specified benefits to a select group of management or highly compénsated employees Specifically,
the Deferred Compensation Plan is intended to: . .
. provide participants with supplemental retirement benefits determined by the Company in its complete discretion (which amounts may vary by participant and

which are subject to a vesting requirement); and

. allow participants to defer compensation in excess of the amounts permitted under the Avantair Inc. 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan & Trust.

r i -

nvestment returns on amounts crednted pursuam to the’ Plan are based on one or more mvestmcnl funds selected by a participant from among those prowded

under the Deferred ¢’ ompensauon Plan. ' * ° . ] =
. . c . . e E

The Deferred Compensation Plan will provide the payments to a participant who separated from service in a single lump-sum or in annual instatlments over
5, 10, or 15 years, as elected by the participant. Payments will be made in a single lump sum due to the participant’s death, disability, or termination of the Deferred
Compensation Plan (under certain conditions).” In addition, in the event of an unforeseeable financial emergency, 'a participant may make a written request to the
Deferred Compensation Plan admlmstrutur fora hardsh]p withdrawal. No income taxes are payable on amounts credited pursuant to the Deferred Compensation Plan
until paid to the part.cipant.

The Company may amend or terminate;the Deferred Compensation Plan at any time.

Welfare and Other Nenefits ' ] : o

We maintain benefit programs l'or our 1J.5.-based employees, mcludmg medical and prescnpnon coverage dental'and vision programs, short and long-term
disability insurance, group life insurance and supplemental life insurance as well as customary vacation, leave of absence and other similar policies. Our Named
Executive Officers ave eligible to participate in these programs on the same basis as the rest of our salaried employees.
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Palicies Relating to Our Common Stock

Insider Trading Policy and Stock Ownership Guidelines T ! .

Our insider tradmg policy prohibits directors, employees and certain of their family members from purchasmg or sellmg any type of security, whether issued
by us or another company, while aware of material non-public information relating to the issuer of the security or from providing such material non-public information
to any person who may trade while aware of such information, We restrict trading by our officers and directors, as well as other categories of employees who may be
expected in the ordinary course of performing their duties to have access to material non-public information, to quarterly trading windows that begin at the close of
business on the second trading day following the date of public disclosure of the financial results for the prior fiscal quarter or year and end on the first calendar day of
the third fiscal month of the fiscal quarter. White we do not have a policy that specifically prohibits our executive officers from hedging the economic risk of stock
ownership in our stock, we discourage our executive officers from entering into certain types of hedges with respect to our securities. In addmon, federal securities laws
prohibit our executive officers from selling “short™ our stock.

Tax and Accounting Considerations
Tax Deductibility of Executive Compensation

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code generally prohibits a public company from deducting compensation paid in any year to Named Executive
Officers in excess of $1 million. Certain compensation is specifically exempt from the deductlon limit to' the extent it qualifies as “performance-based” under the
qualification requirements cstablished under Section 162(m}. In evaluating whether to structuré executive compensation components as qualified pcrformancc -based
compensation and thus, tax deductible, the Compensation Committee considers the net cost to us, its ability to effectively administer executive compensation in the
long-term interest of stockholders, and the specific corporate goal underlying the various items of compensation. Stock option grants and performance share awards
made to executive officers under our 2006 Long- term Incentive Plan and cash payments under our Discretionary Annual Bonus are structured generally 1o be fully
deductible under Section 162(m). The Compensation Committee believes, however, that it is important to preserve the ﬂemb:hly in administering compensaticn
programs in a manner designed to promote corporate goals.

Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code requires that “nonqualified deferred compensation™ be deferred and paid under plans or arrangements that satisfy
the requirements of the law with respect to the timing of deferral elections, timing of payments and certain other matters. In general, it is our intention to design and
administer our compensation and benefits plans and arrangements for all of our employees so that they are either exempt from, or satisfy the requirements of,

Section 409A. We believe we are currently operating such plans in compliance with Section 409A.
+ * - - : . L4

Accounting for Share-Based Compensation

Before we grant share-based compensation awards, we consider the accounting impact of the award as structured and other scenarios in order to analyze the
expected impact of the award.

. . f

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

" The Compensation Committee has reviewed.and discussed with management the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” section of this proxy statement.
Based on its review and discussion, the Compensation Committee has recommended 1o the Board and the Board has approved, that this Compensation Discussion and
Analysis be included in this proxy statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders which is also incorporated by reference in the company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. ‘

By the Compenszitipn Committee

A. Clinton Allen, Chair
Arthur H. Goldberg
‘ Robeit J. Lepofsky

The foregoing Compensation Committee Report does not constitute soliciting material and the Report should not be deemed filed or incorporated by
reference into any other previous or future filings by Avantair under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
except io the extent that Avantair specifically incorporates this Report by reference therein. .

.
[
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The fol owing table summarizes the compensation of our Named Executive Officers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The Named Executive Officers
are our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, along with each of our next two most highly compensated executive officers, based upon their total

compensation as r¢ flected in the table below.

All Other

Salary Bonus Stock Compensation Total
Name and Principal Position Year {5) : (S) Awards ($)(1) {($}(2) ($) i
’Steven Santo 2008 400,000 $ 100,000 $ 94,173 § 74,450 § 668,623
Chief Executive Officer and Director 2007 343,750 200,000 16,190 55670 615,610
Richard A. Pytak Ji. (3) 2008 59,077 50,000 - 37,539 146,616
Chief Financial Oflicer 2007 - - - - -
(As of April 14,2008) - —- - _ el
:r]ohn Waters 2008 222,115 12,500 134,921 183,333 552,86;]
| |
Chief Financial Off cer and Director 2007 195,673 150,000 12,082 22,500 380,255 |
; |
{Qctober 1, 2006 - £,pril 11,2008) R
Kevin L. Beitzel 2008 179,006 50,000 14,933 6,468 250,407
Chief Operating Officer 2007 97,308 - 1,539 528 99,375 |
(As of February 8, 2008) , } I .
}Tracy Chaplin 2008 149,870 5,000 - 69,791 224,661
| 2007 180,709 53,651 8,216 - 242,576

IChief Operating Off cer

!
(anuary 30, 2006 - February 7, 2008)

{1)  The amounts shown reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No. 123(R).

(2)  The following are comprised of automobile allowances to Messrs. Santo and Beitzel and Ms. Chaplin of $25,958, $6,000 and $5,600, respectively; housing
allowances to Messrs. Santo and Pytak of $44,543 and $4,526, respectively; reimbursed moving expenses to Mr. Pytak of $33,013; a payment to Mr. Waters of
$183,333 with respect to his separation agreement with the Company; a payment to Ms. Chaplin of $63,902 in connection with her departure from the Company;
and 401K employer match contributions for Messrs. Santo and Beitzel and Ms. Chaplin of $4,038, $468 and $288, respectively.

(3)  Mr. Pytak was not compensated by the Company in 2007 as his employment commenced in February 2008.
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GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS IN FISCAL 2008
We have granted shares of restricted stock or other plan-based awards and plan to continue to grant shares of restricted stock or other plan-based awards to

executive officers, employees and other service providers. The following table provides information, as of J une 30, 2008, concerning restricted stock granted to our
named executive officers during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008:

All Other Stock Awards: Number of

Name ) Grant Date 7 Shares of Stock or Units (#)(1)
l
Richard A. Pyt Jr. ~  _ _  ____  _ _  _ _____ 6302008 . 700
Kevin Beitzel ' 6/30/2008 15,000
¢} Awards of restricted stock granted under the 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan. One-third of the shares granted to each executive officer vest on June 30,

2009, and one-twelfth of the shares vest every three months thereafter.

The Plan was approved on February 22, 2007, Since the approval, Avantair granted an aggregate of 22,500 and 214,000 shares of restricted stock to its
executive officers and employees in the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
2

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL 2008 YEAR END

The following table provides information concerning outstanding equity awards as of June 30, 2008, by each of our named executive officers:

Number of Shares or Units of Stock " Market Value of Shares or Units of Stock
Name B Date Granted That Have Not Vested - That Have Not Vested
StevenSapto . _  _ 51807 - . . 44,667 . $ 218,868 ;
John Waters e . Snewr L - ) —2) - A ~—
MTracy Chaplin _ .. ____sa&07 . . . ._ —& o s .-,
Richard A. PytakJr. . 6/30/08 B 1500 $ 14,550
I
KevinBeitzed  _ _ _  __ __ 630/08 . ... _2ees s 61,768
oy Awards of restricted stock granted under the 2006 Long-Term I[ncentive Plan. One-third of the share granted to each executive officer vested one year

following the grant date, and one-twelfth of the shares vest every three months thereafier,

(2) Effective April 11, 2008, Mr. Waters employment ended and in connection therewith, Mr. Waters forfeited 16,666 of these shares.
(3) Effective February 7, 2008, Ms. Chaplin’s empleyment ended and in connection therewith, these shares were forfeited. !
{4) M. Beitzel was granted 10,000 shares on May 18, 2007 as well as another 15,000 shares on June 30, 2008. Each grant award contained vesting terms of

one-third of the shares granted to vest one year following the grant date, and one-twelfth of the shares vest every three months thereafter. Therefore, as
of June 30, 2008, approximately two-thirds of the shares granted in 2007 and all of the 2008 shares had not yet vested and are included in the
calculation above.

OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED IN FISCAL 2008

No named executive officer was granted any stock options and there were no options exercised during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. In addition, there
were 76,663 shares of restricted stock that vested and 10,668 that were exercised during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.
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EMPLOYMENT ARRANGEMENT WITH NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Steven lsanto
On September 29, 2006, we entéred into an employment agréement with Mr. Santo, our Chief Executive Officer and a diréctor. The agreement provides that

Mr. Santo will receive an annual base salary of $400,000 afiter the closing of the sale of the company to Ardent Acquisition Carporation and will be eligible to receive
an annual performance bonus, which for 2007 may be 60% of his base salary. Future annual base salary will not be less than $400, 000 with increases approved by the

Compensation Committee and/or the Board of Directors, Mr, Santo is entitled, among other things,to: | - S
. participate in all benefit programs, including thc registered retirement savings plan,-established and made avatilable to its emp]oyees;
. monthly living expenses in the amount of $2,800 through December 31, 2008;
. monthly automobile lease rei_mburscmenl of $1,500; and
. reimbursement for any reasonable out-of-pdcfet éxl;énses inc;lned in the coyrse of 'employniem. : '

The term 3ftheemploymemagreemem is threeycars Voo

We do not have an cmployment agrcement wnh the other narned executive of}'u:ers .

Termination Beneﬁls - ' o ", '

If the agrement is terminated by Mr. Santo voluntarily without good reasor, Avanr.alr shall have no further obligations fol]owmg the cffectwc date of
termination other thar 1o pay the employee for any accrued but unpald salary and relmbursable expenses

If the agrecments are terminated by Avantair without cause or by the cxccutive for good reason or for disability, then Mr. Santo is respectively entitled to:
. any then accrued but unpaid base salary and performance bonus as of the date of termination; and Ve i
. payment of the base salary in éicht at the time of termination and cominuati.g'n of ‘h'eallh insurance for a period of 12 months,

v ’ ' ' . 1

In each agr:ement, “cause” means: S

. employee’s fraud or breach of fiduciary obligations in connection with performance of his duties with Avantair (including but not llmnted to any acts
of embezzlement or misappropriation of funds);

. employee’s indictment for a felony or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to a felony charge or any criminal act involving moral turpitude;

25




. employee’s being under the influence of any drugs (other than prescription medicine or other medically-related drugs to the extent that they are taken in
’ accordance with their directions) or repeatedly being under the mﬂupnce of alcohol, durmg the performance of his duties under his employment
agreement, or, while under the influence of such drugs’ or alcohol, engagirig in grossly ifappropriaté tonduct during the performance of his duties under
his employment agreement;

employee’s refusal 1o substantially perform his duties under his employmem agregment, except in the event that the employee becomes permanently

. disabled; B L T - Cu C I .. L
e " CHY N PO T TR A L : s f A . A
. employcc 's willful misconduct or gross negligence in-connection with-his employment; - " s - - B
e iy e e I LI R W S
. empioyee s materlal violation of any Avantair policies or procedures relating to harassment, discrimination or insider trading; or employee s material

breach of any provision of his employment agreement.

Pt LA Wt ol *a ' AR

In each agreement, “good reason” means: . e T L o N
. Avantair’s willful material breach of any provision of hxs employment ag;eement,
LT T TR v - e a1 . e 4 . . '
. any material adverse change in employee’s position, authority, duties or responsibilities {other than a change due to employee’s permanent

disability or as an accommodation under the Americans With Disabilities Act) which resultsiin: (A) a diminution in any material respect in
employee's position, authority, duties, responsibilities or compensation, which diminution continues in time over at least thirty (30) days, such
that it constitutes an effective demotion; or (B) a material diversion from employee’s performance of the functions.of employee’s position,
excluding for this purpose material adverse changes made with employee’s written consent or due to employee's termination for cause or

termination by employee without good reason; or ) R R h

e

3

L reldcation of Avaritair’s headquancrs andfor emp[oyee s regula: Work address to a iocatlcm whlch requires lhe employee o travel more than
forty (40) miles from employee’s placeé of employmeént on the 'date of his employment agréement. '

" e e N R ‘

In addition, Mr. Santo’s interest in any stock optiofs.or restricted stock will fully vest-on the effective date.of a termination without cause. .

Under the employment agreement with Mr. Santo, if the employrnent agreement had been terminated by the Company without cause or by Mr. Santo for
good reason or for disability, effective June 30, 2008 (the last business day of our fiscal' year of 2008), he would have'béen paid a total of $497,454, including:
(i) $400,000 representing his base salary then in effect, (it} $10,800 representing the continuation of health insurance for a period of 12 months; and (iii) 586,654
representing the acceleration of the vesting of 44,667 shares of restricted stock from the 2006 Long-term Incentive Plan (based on the closing price of $1.94 per share as
of June 30, 2008).

T ' St P L ' v i P . o . :
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Upon the recommendatmn of the compcnsanon committee; the full board of directors approved an annual compcnsatwn arrangement for our independent
directors effective February 23, 2007. Such arrangement is compnsed as follows:
o,
Annual Fee, Each director, other than those directors serving as employees, receives an annual cash retainer in the amount of $40 000, pald quanerly in
arrears. Each director has the option to receive, in whole or in part, such amount in cash or hours flown.in Company aircrafl. The hours flown in Company aircraft will
be valued at estimated fair market value. Mr. Gordon will receive an additional $35,000 in annua) cash compensation for service as our non-Execuive Chairman.

. . . PR e I S 'y . e o o , B . . . i
Audit Committee Chair. The-chair of the audit committee, Ms, Cuskley, receives an additional annual cash compensation of $20,000 as our audit committee,
chair. '

' * E . T S el -l .. - et .

On March 5 2008 Avamalr g'mmed 3,000 shares of resmclcd slock to each of Bany Gordon, Arthur Goldberg, Stephanie Cuskley Robert Lepofsky and A. |
Clinton Allen. The restricted shares granted to the directors vest one third upon each of the next three 3). successwe annual meetings, subject to lhe grantee's continued
service on the Board of Directors.

The following director compensation table shows the compensation we paid in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 to our non-employee directors:

Director Compensation Table

Restricted
R . . . b e o R .Fees Earned or . Stock Awards: )
Name . | L , w4 - _.t 'y _- _Paidin Cash ($}(1) - (82 o «__Total (§)
- o [
. Cliton Allen____ e, %0000 LM 4L
Barry Gordon " _ K s e 75,000 o 1,140 ' © 76,140
. . ——
AtburGoldberg M0 LW a0
Robert Lepofsky o Ll T Tae00. Lo Cang 140
Stephanie Cuskley ——— i 80000 U 1. 5_‘:149.
f v Lt Coe L T e “
(1) The fecs earned by the directors may be paid, at tl';e ditector’s option, in cas;h and/ot in hours Aown in Cdmpany aircraft at estimated fair market value
per hour. Messrs. Allen, Goldberg and Lepofsky have chosen to bg paid in hours flown in company aircraft. . | .
e g ‘
Mr. Gordon and Ms. Cuskley have chosen to be paid in cash.
2 The amounts shown reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R). The balance remaining to be recognized over the remammg vesting period of

the award is $47,627.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related Party Transactions Policy

We have adopted a Code of Conduct and Professional Ethics, applicable to our directors, officers and employees, including our Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer and all of our other executives pursuant to which all directors, officers and employees must promptly disclose to us, any material transaction or
relationship that reasonably could be expected to give rise to an actual or apparent conflict of interest with Avaritair, Inc. In approving or rejecting the proposed
agreement, our audit committee shall consider the relevant facts and circumstances available and deemed relevant to the audit committee, including, but not limited to
the risks, costs and benefits to us, the terms of the transaction, the availability of other sources for comparable services or preducts, and, if appticable, the impact on a
director’s independence. Our audit committee shall approve only those agreemen!s that, in light of known circumstances, are m. or are not inconsistent with, our best
interests, as our audit committee determines in the good faith exercise of its discretion.

Related Party Transactions

The following is a summary of transactions entered into during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, to which we have been a party in and in which any of
our executive officers, directors or beneficial holders of more than 5% of our capital steck had or will have a direct or indirect material interest, other than compensation
armngemenls.

Effective April 11, 2008, the Company’s former Chief Financial Officer departed the Company and resigned his position as a director of the Company. In
connection with the former Chief Financial Officer's departure, on April 14, 2008, the Company entered into a separation agreement pursuant to which the former Chief
Financial Officer will receive (i) a payment equal to eight months salary ($183,333), (ii) reimbursement of premium payments for COBRA benefits until the earlier of a
period of eight (8) months commencing April 14, 2008 or at such time that the former Chief Financial Officer obtains employment providing health benefits and
(iii) pursuant to an amendment to his previously issued restricted stock award, 33,334 shares of common stock. In addition, the former Chief Financial Officer has
agreed not to transfer any shares of the Company’s common stock for a period of six (6) months commencing April 14, 2008, At the end of the six (6) month period, the
former Chief Financial Officer’s unrestricted shares shall be freely tradable in the open market, subject to the Company’s “Right of First Refusal” and in compllance
with applicable securities taw. In addition, the former Chief Financial Officer has agreed to cooperate fully with the Company’s reasonable requests for ass:slance in
transitioning his previous responsibilities for a period of eight (8) months commencing April l4 2008.

On March 5, 2008, Avantair granted 3,000 shares of restricted stock to each of Barry Gordon, Arthur Goldberg, Stephanie Cuskley, Robert Lepofsky and A.
Clinton Allen. Each of these individuals is a director of Avantair. The shares of restricted stock granted to the directors® vest one third upon each of the next 3
successive annual meetings of stockholders, subject to the grantee’s continued service on the Board of Directors.

Annually, Avantair participates as one of the sponsors of the Corporate Dircctors Group, an accredited educational organization of RiskMetric 1SS
Governance Services, of which our director, A. Clinton Alten presides as its chairman. The sponsorship provides the Corporate Directors Group with 23 hours of
aircraft usage annually.in lieu of cash. .
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OTHER MATTERS

The SEC. has adopted rules that permit companies and intermediaries such as brokers to satisfy delivery requirements for proxy statements with respect to
two or more stockholders sharing the same address and the same last name by delivering a single proxy statement addressed to those stockholders. This process, which
is commonly referr :d to as “householding,” potentially provides extra convenience for stockhelders and cost savings for companies. We and some brokers household
proxy materials, delivering a single proxy statement to multiple stockholders sharing an address unless contrary instructions have been received from the affected
stockholders. Once stockholders have received notice from their broker or us that materials will be sent in the householding manner to the stockholder’s address,
houscholding will continue until otherwise notified or untit the stockholder revokes such consent. If, at any tire, stockholders no longer wish to participate in
householding and would prefer a separate proxy statement, they should notify their broker if shares are held in a brokerage account or us if holding registered shares.
We will deliver prumptly upen written or oral request a separate copy of the proxy statement to a stockholder at a shared address to which a single copy of the
document was delivered. Any such notice should be addressed to the Investor Relations Department at the address appearing on the first page of this proxy statement, or
notice can be given by calling Avantair at {(727) 539-0071:

. to receive a separate copy of a proxy statement for this meeting;

. to 1eceive a separate copy of a proxy statement for future meetings; or

. if the stockholder shares an address and wishes to request delivery of a single copy of proxy statements if now receiving multiple copies of proxy
stalements.

Our bear1 of directors knows of no other business that will be presented to the annual meeting. If any other business is properly brought before the annual
meeting, proxies in the enclosed form will be voted in respect thereof in accordance with the judgments of the persons voting the proxies.

Avantair’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, as filed by Avantair with the SEC (excluding exhibits), is a portion of the Annual Report that is being mailed,
together with this Proxy Statement, to all stockholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. However, such Annual Report, including the Annual Report on Form 10-
K is not to be considzred part of this proxy solicitation material.

|
i

[t is important that the proxies be returned promptly and that your shares be represented. You are urged 1o sign, date and promptly return the enclosed proxy
card in the enclosed cnvelope.

On behalf of the boaid of directors,

{s/ Barry J. Gordon
Chairman of the Board
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General and administrative expenses increased 11,7% to $20.7 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 from $18.5
million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, primarily due to:

4

* -an increase of $2.2 million in expenses related to fixed based operations, v '

T SR ‘ , : . . - L
. an increase of $0.6 million in costs associated with being publicly traded;

. 1 Al )

. an increase of $0.2 million in flight center expenses due to increased in salary and purchasing expenses;
. an increase of $0.4 million in pilot training;
» - anincrease of $1.0 million in salary, ﬂayrgll tax and employee benefit expénses;
. an increase in computer expense of $.2 million; and - .
. the above were partially offset by a (iecrease in share-based compensation of $2.4 million. |

Selling expenses increased to $4.7 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 from $4.3 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2007 due to an increase of $0.4 million in advertising expenses and aircraft shows. :

Loss from operations was $16.6 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, a decrease of 12.9% from $19.0 million for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 for the reasons set forth above.

Total other expense was $2.3 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 compared to $2.7 million for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007, primarily due to recognition of a $0.3 million gain on the sale of a non-fractionalized aircraft and a $0.5 million
gain through the sale of its rights to purchase 18 Embraer Phenom 100 aircraft during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, which were
offset by a 7.5% increase in interest expense to $3.7 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 from $3.4 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2007. '

L

Net loss decreased to $18.9 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 compared to $21.7 million for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007 due to the decrease in net loss is the decrease in loss from operations and the decrease in total other expense
discussed above. l '
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Fiscal vear ended June 30, 2007 compared to fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, .. ... . L

Revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 were $76.4 million, an increase of 57.9% from $48.4 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2006. This increase was the result of a 25% intrease in the revenue generated from the sale of fractional aircraft
shares to $29.7 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 from $23.8 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, an increase
of 70.0% in maintenance and management fees to $38.8 miltion for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 from $22.8 million for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 and an increase of 336% in demonstration and charter card revenue to $7.9 million for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007 from $1.8 million for the fiscal year énded June 30, 2006. Revenue from the sale of fractional aircraft shares
increased due to a 48% increase in the number of fractional shares sold to 499.5 through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 from
337.5 fractional shares sold lhrough the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. The increase in revenue from maintenance and management
fees increased due to several prlmary faclors

", . IR - ry

. a price increase in the annutal maintenance and management fees from $7,900 to $8,900; and

. an increase in fleet size. _ o

Demonstration and charter card revenue increased $4.9 million primarily due to (i) an increase in demonstration sales of
$1.5 million or 108.5% due to a 20% increase in the cost charged for such demonstration flights and an increase in the number of
demonstration flights; (ii) an increase in charter card revenue of $3.4 million since’charter cards were not sold during most of the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, (iii) an increase in remarketing fees of $0.78 million, (iv) an increase in rent revenue of $0.28 million,
and (v) fuel revenue of $0.4 mllllon

Operating expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 were 40.3% higher than during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2006, with total expenses of $95.4 million compared to $68.0 million. The cost of fractional aircraft shares sold increased to $24.4
million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 from $19.2 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, due to an increase of 48 ¢
in the number of fractional shares sold to 499.5 fractional shares sold through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 from 337.5
fractional shares sold through the fistal year ended June 30, 2006. The cost of flight operations increased 44.3% to $45.9 million for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 from $31.8 mllhon for lhe fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, prlmarlly due to:

o
. an increase of $24 m:lhon m mdmtenance cxpenses comprlsed prlmanly of an increase in parls expcnse and maintenance
insurance coverage due to an increase in fleet size;

' wr I !

. an increase of $4.1 miilion in fuel prices and flight fees (which includes landing fees, airport fees and ground
transportation fees) borne by ‘Avantair for repositioning flights, demonstration flights and pilot training flights;

ot i

+  anincrease’of $4.9 million in pilot expenSes due to hiring an additional 21 pilots, including’ salanes and related p:lot
expenses, including hotel expenses, pilot airfare and living expenses;

v . PR . oL

. an increase of $1.5 million in chartering expenses; and

. an increase of $1.2 million in aircraft leasing expenses. .

Cost of flight operations (including maintenance expenses, costs related to repositioning, pilot-related costs and charter
expenses) was negatively impacted in all areas by a delay at the FAA in approving a newly designed avionics package in the Piaggio
Avanti 1. This delay caused 6 planes originally scheduled for delivery during the last 6 months of fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 to
be delivered, in part, in September 2006. The greater than anticipated use of Avantair’s existing fleet resulted in increased
maintenance expenses due to accelerated mileage-based maintenance events and periodic refurbishment, and increased pilot-related
costs due to the need to transport pilots to and from various locations in order for the aircraft to operate. Compensation expense
increased primarily due to 474,000 shares of common stock issued to certain officers of Avantair for prior services rendered at a cost
of $3.36 per share.

General and adminisirative expenses increased 58.4% to $18.5 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 from $10.8
million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, primarily due to:

. an increase of $2.4 million in expenses related to fixed based operations;

. ant increase of $0.5 million in legal and accounting salaries and expenses;.and




+  anincrease of $0.8 million in flight center expenses caused by an increase in salary and purchasing expenses. 7/

oo’ AR Y . ! " I Ve oy Tt

e, . -anincrease.of $0.4 million in pilot training; Co- e e
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. an incrcase of $0.3 million in employee benefits;and  ~ ., B .
f] . . . . LI i .
Ly . Ty [T T : . . ' I
. an increase in share-based compensation of $2.8 million. o ! S ) :
. ' . 7 ' L , R

| Selling expenses increased to $4.3 million for:the fiscal year ended Jané 30, 2007 from $3.7 milj‘io_n] for the fiscal year einded
June 30, 2006 due to an mcrease of $0.6 million in advertlsmg expenses and aircraft shows. . o i '

'

Loss from operatrons was $19.0 mllllon for the fiscal year ended Jurie 30, 2007 a decrease 0f3.1% from $19. 6 mllllon for -
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 for the reasons set forth above

Total other expense was $2.7 million for the fiscal year ended June 30 2007 compared to $1.1 million for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2006, primarily due to a 61.4% increase in interest expense to $3.4 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007
from $2.1 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. Interest expense increased due to an increase‘in the interestrate on '
Avantair’s lme of cred1t and an mcrease in the balance outstanding on the Avantarr 3 Ime of credit during most of the year. = ¥

L]

Net loss mcreased to $21. 7 1'1’1111101'1 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 compared t0 $20.8 mllhon for the ﬁscal year
ended June 30, 2006. The primary reason for the increase in the net 1oss -is the loss from operatlons -and the increase in total other
expense d1scussed above. . .. . . S L
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Liquidity and Capital Resources - AN . N P

Avantair’s primary sources of liquidity have been cash provided by operations, cash raised from its equity offering with
Ardent Acquisition Corp., cash provided from its debt facility with CNM, Inc., cash raised in the recent preferred stock offering, and
other asset based borrowing (see Notes 7 and 10 to the Company’s consoclidated financial statements). The Company uses its cash
primarily to fund losses from operations, deposits made on fractional aircraft, leasehold improvements, and to fund the purchase of
core aircraft and aircraft which are to be fractionalized but which have not yet been pre-sold. Cash generated from operations has not
been sufficient to provide for all the working capital needed to meet Avantair’s present requirements. At June 30, 2008 and June 30,
2007, Avantair had a working capital deficit of approximately $30.2 and $8.4 million, respectively, and an accumulated deficit of
approximately $77 million and $58 million, respectively. Certain components of working capital which are comprised of cash and
amounts readily convertible into rights to receive or obligations to pay cash including accounts receivable, accounts payable and
accrued expenses increased to $14.6 million at June 30, 2008 from $8.8 million at June 30, 2007. As of June 30, 2008, cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately $19 million and total assets of $204.5 million, The cash and cash equivalent balance increased
$6.6 million from June 30, 2007 Whlle‘ total assets increased $44 million. The increase in cash and cash equivalents occurred primarily
as a result of the Company taking possession of eleven aircraft during the fiscal year endmg June 30, 2008 and selling 139 shares in
fiscal year 2008 out of 176 available shares relating to these eleven aircraft. At June 30, 2007, the Company had presold eleven
fractional shares. . :

v ) ' ' i o '

. As of June 30, 2008, the Company’s recurring losses resulting in an accumulated deficit of $76,967,468 and a working
capital deficiency of $30,152,512. In order to achieve profitable income from operations before depreciation and amortization,
management currently estimates that the Company will need to have 45 fully fractionalized aircraft. At June 30, 2008, the Company
had 41.3 fractionalized aircraft. Therefore, Avantair’s primary. growth strategy is to continue to increase the number of fractional share
owners and aircraft under management: The Company believes income from operations before depreciation and amortization is useful
to investors as it excludes non-cash expenses that do not directly relate to the operation of fractionalized aircraft. This measure is a
supplement to generally accepted accounting principles {(GAAP) used to prepare the Company’s consolidated financial statements and
should not be viewed as a substitute for GAAP measures. In addition, the Company’s non-GAAP measure may not be comparable to
non-GAAP measures of other companies. “Income from operatlons according to GAAP would include depreciation and amortization
expense, estimated to be approximately $330,000 per month at the time of fully fractionalizing the 45 ™ aircraft. In connection with
future financing of growth, the Company may obtain additional funds through equity financing, including the sale of additional shares
of common stock, assets sales, accelerated payments of maintenance and management fees, debt financing, or a combination thereof.
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the Company raised net proceeds of $14.4 million through an equity offering detailed in
Note 11, $2.5 million from the sale of the Company’s rights to purchase eighteen Embraer Phenom 100 aircraft, and approximately
$6.9 million of cash through accelerated payments of management fees through our incentivization program. With this capital, the
Company has sufficient cash to continue its operations for the forseeable future.

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 compared 1o fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

Net cash used in operating activities was $15.5 million for the year ended June 30, 2008 compared to cash used in operating
activities of $17.2 million for the same period last year. The decrease in net cash used in operating activities is primarily attributable to
a decrease m cash due to the eleven planes delivered to the Company during the year ended June 30, 2008, since a portion of such
planes were not fully fractionalized upon the Company taking possession, partially offset by approximately $2.5 million in cash
received from the sale of the Company’s rights to purchase eighteen Embraer Phenom 100 aircraft and approximately $6.9 million
cash received from shareholders prepaying their maintenance and management fee on an annual basis. At June 30, 2008, the Company
held 26 unsold fractional aircraft shares. For the year ended June 30, 2007, the Company took possession of twelve aircraft and at June
30, 2007 had presold eleven fractional shares.

Net cash used in investing activities was $2.7 million for the year ended June 30, 2008 compared to cash provided by
investing activities of $2.5 million for the same period last year. The cash provided by investing activities during the year ended June
30, 2008 resuited from $2.5 million in proceeds from rights to purchase 18 Embraer Phenom 100 Positions, net of capital expenditures
on leasehold improvements and computer systems at the Florida and California facilities. Cash provided by investing activities for the
year ended June 30, 2007 resulted from the sale of property and equipment.

Net cash used by financing activities for the year ended June 30, 2008 results primarily from net proceeds from the issuance
of a new class of convertible preferred stock of $14.4 million and additional borrowings. On November 14, 2007 and December 5,
2007, the Company entered into a Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement (the “Preferred Stock Agreement™) with certain investors.
Under the Preferred Stock Agreement, the Company agreed to issue 152,000 shares of its newly-created Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock to certain mvestors for an aggregate purchase price of $15.2 million. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the
Company had additional net borrowings under short-term notes payable, comprised of floor plan agreements, of $15.8 million and a
net decrease of long-term notes payable of $4.4 million.
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|
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 compared to fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. . : |

Net cash used in operating activities totaled $17.2 million f(l)r the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 compared to net cash
provided by operating activities of $3.6 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. The increase in net cash used in operating
activities during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 is primarily due to the fact that the Company,patd approximately $10 million for
twao aircraft received in fiscal year 2007, for which the shares were presold in fiscal year 2006. In addition, the Company paid
approximately $3.7 million to vendors, as well as, deposits of approximately $2.9 million for letters of credit to secure fuel purchases
and credit card chargeback’s in fiscal year 2007,

Net cash prov1ded by investing activities was $2.5 million for tﬁe fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 compared to $0.7 million
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. The cash provided by investing activities during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 resulted
from the sale of one of the aircraft held for sale. .

Net cash provided by financing activitics was $25.0 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 compared to net cash
used of $4.2 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, Avantair received an increase
of $43.3 million in proceeds from the issuance of stock, an increase of $11.3 million in borrowings under long-term notes payable, an
increase of $7.6 million in proceeds from borrowmgs under the line of credit, an increase in principal payments made on long-term
notes payable of $13.0 million and an increase in the principal payments made on the line of credit of $22.8 million.

Financing Arrangenients

Avantair’s financing commitments as of June 30, 2008, are descgibed below!'
. Wells Fargo Equipment Finance, Inc.: In February 2005, the Company entered into financing arrangements for
the purchase of three aircraft under various notes payable with Wells Fargo Equipment Finance, Inc. In January
2008, the Company sold one of these aircraft and repaid the outstanding balance on the related note payable.
The notes outstanding at June 30, 2008 in the amount of $3,486,167 are payable in monthly installments ranging
“from $10,644 to $38,480 with interest-ranging from 5.96% to 6.12% per annum, through 2012.

. Jet Support Services, Inc.: On April 24, 2006, Avantair financed an aircrafi maintenance program contract with
Jet Support Services, Inc. (“JSS1”) in the amount of $3.4 miltion. The promissory note provided for seven
‘monthly installments of $145,867 and 53 monthly instaiiments of $45, 867, respectively including interest at 7%
per year. On April 15, 2008, the balance of this note was rolled into a new payment arrangement with JSSI in
the amount of a $5.6 million promissory note. The note matures on Aprll 1, 2011 and bears interest at the rate of
10% per annum, with 35 monthly payments of principal and interest in an amount of $185,127 beginning on
June 2, 2008. The note covers the balance of the aforementioned $3.4 million promissory note as well as other
costs and fees to be paid by the Company under service agreements with JSSI.

o CNM, Inc.: In August 2007, the Company and CNM, Inc. (“CNM”) executed a new note agreement which
converted an outstanding note obligation of approximately $7 million into a term loan payable monthly over
three years and bearing interest at 10% per annum. CNM also assumed a promissory note due to Wells Fargo
Bank for $2,900,000 which was included as part of this new note agreement.
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Midsouth Services, Inc.: On October 3, 2007, the Company entered into a floor plan agreement with Midsouth
Services, Inc. (“Midsouth™) which provides for up to approximately $5.1 million of financing for aircraft to be
acquired from Piaggio America, [nc. extended on a month-to-month basis from April 2008 and repaid on July
2008. Effective March 3, 2008, the Company entered into a second floor plan agreement with Midsouth that
provides for up to $5.3 million of financing for aircraft to be acquired from Piaggio America, Inc. for the six
month period commencing with the first delivery of aircraft under the plan. Each agreement requires a $75,000
monthly facility fee with payment of any outstanding borrowings due in full prior to taking delivery of
additional aircraft. Midsouth also agreed, at the option of the Company, to provide an additional loan in the
amount of $5.3 million, with terms and conditions of the additional loan substantially simildr to the terms of the
March 2008 loan, upon expiration of the October 3, 2007 floor plan agreement. Borrowings outstanding under
these arrangements at June 30, 2008 totaled approximately $10.5 million.

Subsequently, on July 31, 2008, Avantair, Inc. (the "Company™) entered into two new Floor Plan Finarice
Agreements (each, an “Agreement and collectively "the Agreements"), pursuant to which MidSouth Services,
Inc. (the “Lender”) has agreed to extend credit to the Company in an amount not to exceed $5,345,000 under
each Agreement (310,690,000 in total for the Agreements), for an initial term of three (3) months for each
Apgreement. Indebtedness under the Agreements will be used by the Company to fund the purchase of new
Piaggio P-180 aircraft. The Company shall have the sole option to renew the Agreements for three (3)

" consecutive additional one (1) month terms at the expiration of the initial term. The effective dates of the two

Agreements are July 31, 2008, and August 1, 2008, respectively. The Company has agreed to pay to the
Lender a menthly fee of $75,000 under each Agreement.

In connection with the entry into the Agreements, on July 31, 2008, the Company terminated the prior Floor
Plan Finance Agreements dated March 3, 2008 and October 3, 2007 between the Company and the Lender.

.Century Bank, F.8.B.: The Company entered into a Promissory Note (“Note”) with Century Bank, F.S.B.

{“Lender”}, effective May,29, 2008, pursuant to which Lender agreed to provide financing to the company in the
amount of $5,200,000 to be used towards the purchase of a new Piaggio P-180 aircraft. The Company was to
pay the following fees for the Note: (1) 337,500 on the effective date of the Note and (2) $75,000 on the 30th
day of the each month thereafter until repayment in full of the principal amount of the Note (“Term™). The
Pr1nc1pal amount of the Note was to be paid in full within 120 days from the Effective Date of the Note. The
Company was to make partial payments to Lender in $325,000 increments upon the closing of each fractional

‘interest and Lender shall provide partial lien releases as to the respective fractional interests sold. Additionally,
- the Company was 1o pay a fee of $52,000 at the time of repayment in full of the principal amount of the Note,

constititing a fee a 1% of the principal amount. If repayment was made in full within 90 days after the effective

" date of thrs Notc the fee would be reduced to $26,000, constltutmg a fee of 0. 5% of the principal amount.

In July 2008, the Company repaid thé full amount of the Promissory Note (“Note™) with Century Bank , F.S.B.
(“Lender”), which became effective on May 29, 2008.The Company paid the following fees for the Note (0
$37,500 on the effective date of the Note and (2) $75,000 on the 30 th day of the each month thereafter until
repayment in full of the principal amount of the Note (“Term”). Additionally, the Company was to also pay a fee
of $52,000,at the time of repayment in full of the principal amount of the Note, constituting a fee of 1 % of the
principal amount. However, as the Company repaid the note in full in July 2008 (within 90 days after the
effective date of the note), the fee was reduced to 0.5% of the prine_ipal' amount or $26,000.

Midsouth Services, Inc.: On October 10, 2007, the Company entered into a five year lease agreement for one
Piaggio Avanti P-180 aircraft. The aircraft will be used as a core aircraft and not fractionalized. The obligation
is accounted for as a capital lease with lease payments of $89,000 per month. Upon expiration of the term, the
Company will be required to purchase the aircraft from the lessor for $2.3 million.

Wachovia Bank: On October 31, 2007, the Company entered into a financing arrangement for the purchase of
one used Piaggio Avanti P-180 aircraft at a total purchase price of approximately $4.5 million (inclusive of the
value of a charter card of 100 hours). Financing was obtained from a lending institution through a note payable
of $3.9 million. This debt will be repaid monthly over 7 years at an interest rate of the LIBOR rate plus 4.0%.

For additional information regarding these financing arrangements, see Notes 7 and 10 to the Company’s consolidated

financial statements.

The following table represents long-term debt obligations, contractual obligations and aircrafl purchase commitments, each

as of June 30, 2008:
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Long-Term Aircraft

Obligations as of June 30, 2008 Debt Operating Purchase

(In U.S. currency) (1) Obligations Leases(2) 7 Commitmenis(3)
N 0938 3216974 § 39,509,385
2010 . 7,210997 §245§30_ P 50 670,495
boll T Tasie i 340089 T Ts0670495
002 0 . T 7826962 2508376 50,670,495
2013 T T 4538018 T 249858 753,167,995
Aﬁer2013 e o 744,172 - 20,445,019 104 202 4351
Total minimum payment  § 30,504,415 § 35075916 § 348,891,300
Less Obllgatlon Prepayment as of June 30 _g()“(_)&_ — — - 8,000,000
e s 30,504,415 $ 35,075,916 $ 340,891,300 ,

. . ' '
(1) Amounts shown in table are not necessanly representative of, and may vary substantially from, amounts that will actually be

paid in'future-years as Avantair may mcur additional or dlfferent obllgauons subséquent to June 30, 2008
1

(2) Includes hangar,-office and auto leases. .- | ' . .
(3) Includes purchase commitments for 60 Piaggio aircraft

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk . . ,
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Avantair is exposed to various market risks, mcludmg changes in interest rates. Market risk is the potential loss arising from
adverse changes in narket rates and prices, such as interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. Avantair does not enter into
derivatives or other financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. Avantair has also not entered into financial instruments
to manage and reduce the impact of changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates, although Avantair may enter into
such transactions in the future. Iy

Interest Rate Rlisk

Avantair is subject to market risk from exposure to chianges in inferest rates associated with its debt facility with Wells
Fargo Bank and its ebt facility with Wachovia Bank. The current liability, pursuant to which Avantair is obligated to pay Wells
Fargo Bank, has an interest rate that is 1.0% above prime. The current liability, pursuant to which Avantair is obligated to pay
Wachovia Bank, has an interest rate that is equal to the LIBOR rate plus 4, 0% At June 30, 2008, the liabilities of Avantair with
exposure to interest rate risk-were approximately $3 5 million." ' . . . : .

*June 30, 2008 ' "
Expécted Maturity Date ~ ' ' '

R o 2009 2000 2011 2012 2013 - Thereafter =~ _ Total
Liabilities L e o e
 Lomgtenmdebt: o e .l
FixedRate. = § 6 088,090 $ 6,652,868 § 2978045 § 7,268,833 §_3, 979 889 -5 26,967,725

_ Average | 1nterc<trate ) 84%  B4% = 84%  84% ii% ~ B4%
»Vanable Rate % 560,004 $ 558,129 $ 558,129 § 558,129 § 558,129 § 744 172 $ 3536 690

Averate interes! rate 7.3% 7.3% 3%  13% 7:3% 73%
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Avantéir has no off- balance sheet obligations nor guarantces and has not historically used special purpose entities for any’
transactions. .. . . -

'

Ttem 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data \

The financial statements and supplementary, data required by this item are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K ‘
beginning on page F-1. _ ‘

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

. None.

Item 9A(T). Controls and Procedures

Management has made its evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of June 30, 2008, Avantair is aware of the
existence of a material weakness in the design and operation of Avantair’s internal controls over financial reporting that could
adversely affect its ability to record, process, and report financial information consistent with the assertions of management in the
financial statements and concludes that the internal controls are ineffective as of June 3¢, 2008. A material weakness is defined as a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis.

The material weakness evaluation first began with the independent audit of the fiscal years ¢nded June 30, 2004, 2005, 2006
and 2007. The auditors' letter on material weakness states the following;:

+ Avantair’s accounting files for fiscal 2004 were incomplete, wh:ch required signifi cant modlﬁcations of accounting
data for that penod

' L ]
. » Costs of fractional shares and revenue on certain contracts during the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were
not recogmzed properly due to errors made on the electronic worksheets for reporting this information,

« There was an insufficient number of accounting staff with the appropriate level of knowledge, which contributed to
errors and deficiencies in financial reporting and disclosures.

Avantair is addressing the concerns stated in the auditor’s letter on internal controls and making appropriate changes in an
attempt to remedy concerns over internal controls and reduce the'possibility of a misstatement of Avantair’s financial statements. The
actions taken to date include the hiring of a Chief Financial Officer, Assistant Controller, Senior Accountant and a Director of
Financial Reporting and Sarbanes Oxley Compliance, In addition, Avantair has modified its business processes to include enhanced
controls over its core processes, the more significant of which are described below. Avantair continues to educate the senior
accounting staff on the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

+ During fiscal 2008, Avantair.

¢ hired additional accounting personnel with the appropriate level of knowledge to properly record transactions in the
general ledger and prepare financial statements in accordance wnh accountmg prmc1ples generally accepted in the United
States of America. <o . . ;

o and has engaged consultants who are assisting the Company in implementation of a new back-office accounting software
package which will further improve the accounting process and related internal controls.

In fiscal 2009, Avantair intends to achieve sustainable compliance by building an efficient infrastructure that enables
_ repeatable and reliable actions. The compliance infrastructure will entail a control framework which:

e will ensure that relevant information is identified and communicated in a timely manner.
s will develop policies and procedures that help ensure that actions identified to manage risk are executed and timely.
¢ will determine whether internal controls are adequately designed, executed, effective and adaptive.

s will perform evaluations of internal and external factors that impact the organization’s performance.
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The control conscience of the Company is a priority, and mahagement intends to increase due diligence in all areas. This due
diligence will include a review of internal controls, conduct a formal cultural and environmental assessment of the company, and
provide training regarding the COSO framework and the internal control requirements in Sarbanes-Oxley. The Company has taken
steps beginning in fiscal year 2009 by hiring a Director of Financial Reporting and Sarbanes Oxley Compliance. The initial roles and
responsibilities of the position include:

1
i

e assisting department management in understanding and documenting its existing business processes, risks and controls.

" u

assisting management with the development and documentation of its control objectives and related contro! activities.

H L

assisting management in assessing the effectiveness of its controls and provide recommendation for improvement.

assisting management in deploying an internal control self-assessment process.

assisting management with the édoption of technologies to support its documentation, evaluation and monitoring of
controls. '

Because Avantair has not completed its remediation plan, management has concluded that a material weakness in the
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures exists and that controls are ineffective at June 30, 2008. Any failure to effectively
address a material weakness or other control deficiency of Avantair or implement required new or improved controls, or difficulties
encountered in theit implementation, could'disrupt Avantair’s ability to process key components of its results of operations and
financial condition timely and accurately and cause Avantair to fail to meet its reporting obligations under rules of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. ‘ - S ' '

There has been no change in the our internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting. ' e s '

L3 i 1

‘Further, this annual report does not include an attestation report of the company's registered public accounting firm
regarding internal control over financial reporting, Management's report was not subject to attestation by the company's registered
public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the company to provide-
only management's report in this annual report, ' : " ’ '

, ' o .

Item 9B. Other Information

+

e i

i, < Not applicable.
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PART HI

Item 10. Directors, Executwe Ofﬁcers and Corporate Governance : S

Executwe Officers and Directors o I

Our current directors and executive officers are as follows:

P o .. L ' : ot "

Name ' Age Position
Barry J. Gordon ' 63 Chairman of the Board
Arthur H. Goldberg 66 Director

Steven Santo i '
. Chief Executive Officer and
41 Director

Richard A. Pytak Jr. 46 Chief Financial Officer

Kevin L. Beitzel _ 39 Chief Operating Officer
" Stephanie A. Cuskley’ - : " "48 ' Director

A. Clinton Allen 64 Director

Robert J. Lepofsky _ 63 Direct()r

Tt e : ‘ e * i ey ! -

Barry J. Gordon has been Avantair’s (formerly known as Ardent Acqmsmon Corporation) Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer since its mcephon Mr. Gordon has nearly 40 years of experience in evaluating aviation industry securities,
including mem_bershlp for 25 years in the Society of Airline Analysts (with 5 years as its president), and over 30 years experience in
the senior management of a mutual fund specializing in the airline, aerospace and technology industries. Mr. Gordon served as
executive vice president of American Fund Advisors, Inc. from September 1978 until December 1980, as its president from December
1980 until May 1987 and has bcen its chairman of the board since May 1987. American Fund Advisors is a private money

- management firm that manages money for high net worth individuals, pension and profit sharing plans. Mr. Gordon has been a .

director of American Fund Advisors since December 1980. From December 1991 to March 2005, he was president, and from
December 1991 to December 1993, he was director, of the John Hancock Technology Sertes, Inc., an investment company. Since
September 1999,-Mr. Gordon has been President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of BlueStone AFA Management, LLC, the
general partner of the AFA Private Equity Fund 1 (formerly BlueStone AFA Fund), a venture capital fund providing equity capital for

~ public and private compantes primarily in the technology sector, and since January 2000, he has been a director of the AFA Private

Equity Fund. Mr. Gordon has been Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of North Shore Acquisition Corp., a blank
check company formed in June 2007 for the purpose of effecting a business combination with an operating business, since its
inception in June 2007. Mr. Gordon has also been chairman of the board and Chief Executive Officer of the New Jersey Cardinals, a
Class A affiliate of the St. Louis Cardinals, from February 1990 until April 2006 and the Norwich Navigators, a Class AA affiliate of
the San Francisco Giants, from March 1991 until April 2005. He also served as a director of Winfield Capital Corp., an Over The
Counter Bulletin Board listed small business investment company, from October 1995 to October 2005. In 1992, Mr. Gordon was
awarded Entrepreneur of the Year for Long Island in financial services. Mr. Gordon received.a B.B.A. from the University of Miami .
and an M.B.A. from Hofstra University.

Arthur H. Goldberg has been a member of Avantair’s (formerly known as Ardent Acquisition Corporation) Board of
Directors since inception. Mr. Goldberg has served as a member of Cotporate Solutions Group since January 2000. From February
1994 to December 1999, Mr. Goldberg served president of Manhattan Associates, an investment and merchant banking firm.

Mr. Goldberg has been a trustee of Ramco-Gershenson Properties Trust (formerly named RPS Realty Trust), a New York Stock
Exchange listed real estate investment trust, since 1998. Mr. Goldberg has been a director of North Shore Acquisition Corp., a blank
check company formed in June 2007 for the purpose of effecting a business combination with an operating business, since its
inception in fune 2007. Mr. Goldberg received a B.S. (cum laude) from New York University Stern School and a J.D. from the New
York University School of Law.

Steven Santo has served as Chief Executive Officer, President and a Director of Avantair since its inception in June 2003
and Skyline Aviation Services, Inc. since June 2002. Mr. Santo is a licensed, commercially-rated pilot who has been flying for
approximately 15 years. From 1995 through 2001, Mr. Santo practiced law as an attorney in private practice, concluding his law
practice in 2001 as a name partner at the firm of Fields, Silver & Santo. From 1992 to 1995, Mr. Santo served as an Assistant District
Attorney in New York working in the office’s major crimes unit. Mr. Santo received a J.D. from St. Johns University School of Law
and a bachelor’s degree from Villanova University. -

Richard Pytak has been the Chief Financial Officer since April 14, 2008. Mr. Pytak has been serving as the Company’s Vice
President of Finance since February 2008. Prior to joining Avantair, Mr. Pytak served as Group Controller of Gibraltar Industries,
Inc., from August 2003 to January 2008 and as Treasurer from July 1998 to July 2003. Gibraltar Industries, Inc. is a leading
manufacturer, processor, and distributor of products for the building, industrial, and vehicular markets, with annual sales of over $1
billion dollars in 2007.
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Kevin Beitzel has been the Chief Operating Officer since February 8, 2008, Mr. Beitzel served as the Company’s Executive
Vice President of Maintenance and Operations from September 2007 to February 8, 2008. From December 2005 through August
2007, Mr. Beitzel served as the Company’s Vice President of Maintenance. Prior to joining Avantair, Mr. Beitzel served as Director of
Vendor Maintenance at US Airways from February 2005 to December 2005. From July 1999 to February 2005 Mr. Beitzel served as
Maintenance Operations Manager at US Airways.

Stephanie A. Cuskiey has been on the Board of Directors of Insituform Technologies Inc. (NASDAQ:INSU) since 2005 and
is chair of its audit committee. Until her retirement in May 2005, Ms. Cuskley was a managing director with JPMorgan Chase where
she most recently (2003-2005) headed Investment Banking Coverage for the firm’s mid-cap clients located in the eastern US.

Ms. Cuskley joined JPMorgan Chase in 1994 and spent 7 years in high yield origination. Subsequently, from 2001 to 2003, she led a
global culture and leadership development initiative (LeadershipMorganChase) sponsored by the firm's CEO and Executive
Commiittee. Prior to joining JPMorgan Chase, Ms. Cuskley was an Executive VP with Integrated Resources, a large NY-based
financial services company, and advised on their financial restructuring. She started her investment banking career in 1985 at Drexel
Burnham Lambert as a corporate finance generalist. She is also a commissioner and co-head of the Economic Development committee
of the NYC Mayor’s Commission on Women'’s Issues and a member of the Resources Development Committee for United Way of
New York City. Ms. Cuskley received her MBA from Cornell and her BA from the University of Toronto.

A. Clinton Allen has been the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of A.C. Allen & Company, a holding company and
consulting firm, since 1987. In 2002, Mr. Allen became, and is currently, Non-Executive Chairman and Director of Collectors
Universe, a provider of value added services to dealers and collectors. From 1989 to 2002, Mr. Allen served as Vice Chairman of the
Board of Psychemedics Corporation, Inc., a biotechnology company with a proprietary drug testing product, and as Chairman of the
Board of Psychemedics from 2002 to 2003. Mr. Allen was Vice Chairman and a director of the DeWolfe Companies, a real estate
firm, from 1991 urtil it was acquired by Cendant Corporation in 2002. Additionally, he was a director and member of the executive
committee of Swiss Army Brands, world’s leading distributor of Swiss Army products from 1994 until it was acquired by Victorinox
Corporation in 2002. Mr. Allen also provided the original financing for Blockbuster Entertainment, was their founding director, and
served on the Board unti! Blockbuster was acquired by Viacom/Paramount in 1994. Mr. Allen also served as a director of Steinway
Musical Instruments Company, a manufacturer of musical instruments, since 1999 and, since 2003, as its lead director; since 2003, as
a director and member of the executive committee of LK) Corporation, a supplier of recycled OEM automotive parts; and since 2003,
as a director of Brooks Automation, a provider of integrated tool and factory automation solutions for the global semiconductor and
related industries. Mr. Allen received his undergraduate degree from Harvard University.

Robert J. Lepofsky has been the President, Chief Executive Officer and Director of Brooks Automation, Inc., a publicly held
producer of factory automation solutions for the global semiconductor and related industries, since QOctober 2007. Mr. Lepofsky has
been Chairman of Westcliff Capital Group, a private holding company since November 2006. After serving for ten years on the Board
of Directors of Ensign-Bickford Industries, Inc., a broadly diversified, privately-held corporation with business interests ranging from
food flavorings, industrial manufacturing, aerospace defense products and real estate development, Mr. Lepofsky became President
and Chief Executive Officer of Ensign-Bickford in January 2005, a position he held until his retirement in November, 2006. From
January 1989 to December 2004, Mr. Lepofsky was President and Chief Executive Officer of Helix Technology Corporation, a
publicly-held producer of innovative vacuum systems for the semiconductor industry and Mr. Lepofsky previously served as its Senior
Vice President and Chief Operating Officer from 1979 through 1988. In January 2005 Mr. Lepofsky was named non-executive
Chairman of the Board of Helix, a position he held until October 2005 when Helix merged with Brooks Automation, Inc.

Mr. Lepofsky is a director of Moldflow Corporation, a publicly-held provider of software products and services for the plastics
industry and chair of its Corporate Governance and Nominating committee. In the not-for-profit sector Mr. Lepofsky is Vice-
Chairman of the CareGroup Health System, a major Harvard-affiliated healthcare system in Boston and a member of the Board of
Overseers of the Boston Symphony Orchestra. Mr. Lepofsky received his B.S. degree from Drexel Institute of Technology.

Compliance With Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our directors, executive officers and persons who own more than ten percent of a
registered class of our equity securities, to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of the
common stock and other equity securities of our Company. Officers, directors, and greater than ten percent beneficial owners are
required by SEC regulation to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) reports they file.

Based solely upon information firnished to us and contained in reports filed with the SEC, as well as any written
representations that no other reports were required, we believe that all SEC filings of our directors, executive officers and beneficial
owners of greater than ten percent complied with Section 16 of the Exchange Act.
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Corporate Governance and Board Composition

Our board of directors is comprised of at least a majority of independent directors.
Independent Directors

Each of our directors other than Messrs. Gordon and Santo qualifies as an independent director in accordance with the
published listing requirements of the Nasdag Global Market and the other national securities exchanges. In addition, our board of
directors has made a subjective determination as to each independent director that no relationships exist which, in the opinion of our
board of directors, would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director. In
making these determinations, our directors reviewed and discussed information provided by the directors and us with regard to each
director’s business and personal activities as they may relate to us and our managernent.

Board Structure and Commitiees

Qur board of directors has established an audit comimittee, a compensation committee and a nominating and governance
committee. The charter for each of these committees 1s available on our website,_www avantair.com . Qur board of directors and its
committees set schedules to meet throughout the year and also can hold special meetings and act by written consent from time to time
as appropriate. The independent directors on our board of directors also hold separate regularly scheduled executive session meetings
at which only independent directors are present. Our board of directors has delegated various responsibilities and authority to its
committees as generally described below. The committees regularly report on their activities and actions to the full board of directors.
Each member of each committee of our board of directors qualifies as an independent director. Each committee of our board of
directors has a written charter approved by our board of directors. Copies of each charter are posted on our web site at

-www.avantair.com under the Corporate Governance section. The inclusion of our web site address in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K does not include or incorporate by reference the information on our web site into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Audit Committee

The functions of the audit committee and its activities during fiscal 2008 are described in the “Charter of the Audit
Committee.” From July 1, 2007 through fune 30, 2008, the audit committee consisted of three independent directors, Ms. Cuskley
and Messrs. Goldberg and Lepofsky. During such period, the audit committee held four meetings. Ms. Cuskley serves as chairperson
of the audit committee.

Compensation Commitiee

The compensation committee of our board of directors reviews, makes recommendations to the board and approves our
compensation policies and all forms of compensation to be provided to our executive officers and directors, including, among other
things, annual salaries, bonuses, stock options and other incentive compensation arrangements. In addition, our compensation
committee administers our stock option plans, including reviewing and granting stock options, with respect to our executive officers
and directors, and may from time to time assist our board of directors in administering our stock option plans with respect to all of our
other employees. Our compensation committee also reviews and approves other aspects of our compensation policies and matters, The
current members of our compensation committee are Messrs. Allen, Goldberg and Lepofsky. Mr. Allen serves as chairman of the
compensation committee. From July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2008 the compensation committee held one formal meeting and also
met informally periodically ‘over the course of the year.

Nominating and Governance Committee

The nominating and governance committee of our board of directors’ reviews and reports to our board of directors on a
periodic basis with regard to matters of corporate governance, and reviews, assesses and makes recommendations on the effectiveness
of our corporate governance policies. En addition, our nominating and governance committee reviews and makes recommendations to
our board of directors regarding the size and composition of our board of directors and the appropriate qualities and skills required of
our directors in the context of the then current make-up of our board of directors. This includes an assessment of each candidate’s
independence, personal and professional integrity, financial literacy or other professional or business experience relevant to an
understanding of our business, ability to think and act independently and with sound judgment and ability to serve our stockholders’
long-term interests. These factors, and others as considered useful by our nominating and governance committee, are reviewed in the
context of an assessment of the perceived needs of our board of directors at a particular point in time. As a result, the priorities and
emphasis of our nominating and governance committee and of our board of directors may change from time to time to take into
account changes in business and other trends, and the portfolio of skills and experience of current and prospective directors.
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meetings.

Our nominating and governance committee establishes procedures for the nomination process and leads the search for, selcct
and recommend candidates for election to our board of directors, subject to legal rights, if any, of third parties to nominate or appoint
directors. Consideration of new director candidates typically will involve a series of committee discussions, review of information
concerning candidates and interviews with selected candidates. Candidates for nomination to our board of directors typically have
been suggested by other members of our board of directors or by our executive officers. From time to'time, our nominating and
governance committee may engage the services of a third-party search firm to identify director candidates. Our nominating and
governance committee selects the candidates for election to our board of directors. Candidates proposed by stockholders will be’’
evaluated by our nominating and governance committee using the same criteria as for all other candidates. The members of our
nominating and governance committee are Ms. Cuskley and Messrs. Goldberg and Lepofsky. Mr. Lepofsky serves as chairman of the
nominating and governance committee. From July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2008 the nominating and governance committee held two
[ . ' - . . . ' ¥

* ‘ Ll

Policv Regarding Director Attendance o . _ =

The Company encourages members of its board of directors to attend annual stockholders meetings. :

Stockholder Communications with the Board of Directors. .

The board of directors will give apprbpriate ‘attention to written'communications on issues that are submitted by
stockholders and other interested parties, and will respond if and as appropriate. The chairman of the nominating and governance
committee will be primarily responsible for monitoring communications from stockholders and other interested parties and
will provide copies or summaries of such communications to the other directors as he considers appropriate.

Communications will be forwarded to all directors if they relate to substantive matters and include suggestions or comments
that the chairman of the nominating and governance committee considers to be important for the directors to know.

Stockholders and other interested parties who wish to send communications on any topic to the board of directors should
address such communications to chairman of the nominating and governance committee at the address provided on the first page of
this Annual Report on Form 10K. - S - ' ‘

Code of Conduct and Professional Ethics
Our board of directors has adopted a code of conduct and professional ethics that applies to all of our directors, employees
and officers, including our principal exccutive officer, principal financial officer, and principal accounting officer or controller, or
persons performing similar functions. The full text of our code of conduct and professional ethics is posted on our Web site at
www.avantair.com under the Corporate Governance section. We intend to disclose future amendments, if any, to certain provisions of
our code of conduct and professional ethics, or waivers of such provisions, applicable to our directors and executive officers, including
our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controlter, or persons performing similar
functions, at the same location on our Web site identified above and also in a Current Report on Form 8-K within four business days
following the date of such amendment or waiver. The inclusion of our Web site address in this Annual Report on Form 10K does not
include or incorporate by reference the information on our Web site into this Ahnual Report on Form 10K.

vy

Audit Commitiee Financial Expert

Our audit 2ommittee includes at least one member who has been determined by our board of directors to meet the
qualifications of an *‘audit committee financial expert” (as that term is defined in the rules promulgated by the SEC pursuant to the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002). Ms. Cuskley is the independent director who has been determined to be an audit committee financial
expert.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

No membegr of the compensation committee of the board of directors was an officer or employee of us during fiscal year
2008 or was formerly our officer or employee. In addition, none of our executive officers served as a member of another entity’s board
of directors or as a member of the compensation committee of another entity (or other board committee performing equivalent
functions) during fiscal year 2008, which entity had an executive officer serving on the board of directors.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation T : .
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

'Ihe primary goals of the compensation committee of our board of direciors with respect to executive compensauon are to
attract and retain the most talented and dedicated executives p0551ble to tie'annual and long-term cash and stock mcentwes to
achievement of specified performance objectives, and to align executives’ incentives with stockholder value creation.’

To achievc' these goals, our compensation committée recommends executive compensation packages 1o our board of
directors that are generally based on'a mix of salary, dlscretlonary bonus and équity awards. Although our compensation committee
has not adopted any formal guidelines for allocating total compensation between equity compensation and cash compensation, we
intend to implement and maintain compensation plans that tie a substantial portion of our executives’ overall compensation to
achievement of corporate goals and value-creating milestones such as the development of our products, the establishment and
maintenance of key strategic relationships, feaching sales and marketing targets and the growth of our customer base as well as our
financial and operational performance, as measured by metrics such as revenues and profitability.

We have recently retained compensation consultants to review our policies and procedureswith respect to executive
compensation. They intend to conduct an annual benchmark review of the aggregate level of our executive compensation, as well as
the mix of elements used to compensate our cxecutlve ofﬁcers . '

Our compensation committee intends to perform'a review based on a survey of executive compensation paid by peer
companies in the fractional aircraft industry as well as review other industries of similar age and size, as it sees fit, in connection with
the establishment of cash and equity compensation and related policies.

Elements of Compensation . S

Our compensation committee evaluates individual executive performance with a goal of setting compensation at levels the
committee believes are comparable with executives in other companies of similar size and stage of development operating in our
industry while taking into account our relative performance and our own strategic goals. The compensation received by our executive
officers consists of the following elements:

Base Salary. Base salaries for our exccutives are established based on the scope of their responsibilities and individual
experience, taking into account competitive market compensation paid by other companies for similar positions within the fractional
aircraft industry. Base salaries are reviewed annually, and adjusted from time to time to realign salaries with market levels after taking
into account individual responsibilities, performance and experience. Since February 2007, the base salary of our Chief Executive
Officer has been $400,000. The annual base salary for our other executive officers range from $150,000 to $250,000.

Our compensation committee believes that these base saiary levcls are commensurate with the general salary levels for
similar positions in companies in a similar stage of development in our mdustry
' ] '
Discretionary Annual Bonus. -In addition to-base salaries, our-compensation committee has the authority to award
discretionary annual bonuses to our executive officers. The annual incentive bonuses are intended to compensate officers for achieving
corporate goals and for achieving what the committee believes to be value-creating milestones, :
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2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan

T

in February 2007, Avantalr s Board of Directors and stockholders approved Avantair’s 2006 Long Term Incentive Plan
(which we sometimes refer to as the.Plan}.

Purpose

The purpose of the Plan is to further and promote the interests of Avantair, its subsidiaries and its stockholders by enabling
Avantair and its subsidiaries to attract, retain and motivate employees, non-employee, directors and consultants or those who will
become employees, non-employee directors or consultants, and to align the interests of those individuals and Avantair’s stockholders

Number of Shares

The maximum number of shares of Avantair common stock as to which awards may be granted under the Plan may nof
exceed 1,500,000 shares. Shares of Avantair common stock subject to issuance upon exercise or settlement of awards with respect to
stock options, stock: appreciation rights, restricted stock and restricted stock units shall count against this limit. Awards of performance
units which are paid in cash, are not subject to this limit and will not count against the number of shares of Avantair common stock
available under the Plan. With respect to awards intending to be “qualifted performance- -based compensation” under Section 162(m)
of the Internal Revenue Code (which is referred to as the Code) the maximum amount that can be awarded in any calendar year to any
participant is (i) in réspect of performance imits, performance-based restricted shares and restricted stock units and other awards {other
thari options and stock appreciation rights), 150,000 shares of Avantair common stock (or the'then equivalent fair market value of such
shares), and (ii) in the case of stock options and stock appreciation rights, 150,000 underlymg shares of Avantair common stock.
Avantair may grant awards that exceed the 150,000-share limit so long as the amiount in excess of such limit is not intended to be
“qualified performance-based compensation” under Code Section 162{m). The limits on the numbers of shares described in this
paragraph and the number of shares subject to any award under the Plan are subject to proportional adjustment as determined by
Avantair’s Board to reflect cenam stock changes, such as stock dividends and stock splits (see “Recapitalization Adjustments™ below).

If any awards under the Plan expire or terminate unexercised, the shares of common stock allocable to the unexercised or
terminated portlon of such award shall return to Avantair's treasiiry and again be available for award under the Plan.

Administration

The administration, interpretation and operation of the Plan will be vested in the Compensationn Committee of Avantair’s
Board of Directors. The Compensation Committee may designate persons other than members of the Compensatlon Committee to
carry out the day-to-day admmlstranon of the Plan

. . . s

Eligibiliry

The Plan permits awards to employees and non- employee dlrectors and consultants of Avantair and its subs:dlary

’

No determination has been made as to future awards which may be granted under the Plan, although it is ant1c1pated that
recipients of awards will include the current executive officers of Avantair. It is not determinable what awards under the Plan would
have been received by the executive officers and directors of Avantair and its subsidiaries during the fiscal year ended December 31,
2005 had the Plan then been in effect.

Awards Under the Plan

Awards under the Plan may consist of stock options, stock appremat:on rights (which are sometimes referred to as SARs),
restricted shares, restricted stock units or performance unit awards, each of which is described below. All awards will be evidenced by
an award agreemeni between Avantair and the individual participant and approved by the Compensation Committee. At the discretion
of the Compensation Committee, an eligible employee may receive awards from one or more of the categories described below, and
more than one award may be granted to an eligible employee. :

Stock Options and Stock Appreciation Rights . - - S ' .

A stock option is an award that, ermtles a part1c1pant to purchase shares of Avantair common stock at a price ﬁxed at the time
the option is granted. Stock options granted under the Plan may be in the form of incentive stock options (which, qualify for special tax
treatment) or non-qualified stock options, and may be grzmted alone or in addition to other awards under the Plan.

An SAR entitles a participant to receive, upon exercise, an amount equal to the excess of:
the fair market value on the exercise date of a share of Avantair common stock, over

e h

the fair market value of a share of Avantair common stock on the date the SAR was granted,

multiplied by the number of shares of Avantair common stock for which the SAR has been exercised.
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The exercise price and other terms and conditions of stock options and the terms and conditions of SARs will be determined by the
Compensation Committee at the time of grant, and in the case of stock options, the exercise price per share may not be less than 100
percent of the fair market value of a share of Avantair common stock on the date of the grant. In addition, the term of any incentive
stock options granted under the Plan may not exceed ten years. An option or SAR grant under the Plan does not provide the recipient
of the option any rights as a shareholder and such rights will accrue only as to shares actually purchased through the exercise of an
option or the settlement of an SAR.

If stock options and SARs are granted together in tandem, the exercise of such stock option or the related SAR will result in
the cancellation of the related stock optlon or SAR to the extent of the number of sharés in respect of which such option or SAR has
been exercised. ‘

Stock options and SARs granted under the Plan shali become exercisable at such time as dcsngnated by the Compensation
Committee at the time of grant , , , » . .

Payment for shares issuable pursuant to the exercise of a stock option may be made either in cash, by certified check, bank
drafi or money order payable to the order of Avantair, or by payment through any other mechanism permitted by the Compensation
Committee, including, if the Compensation Committee so determines, by delivery of shares of Avantair common stock.

In addmon the Compensation ( Commlttee in its sole discretion, may provide in any stock option or SAR award agrecment
that the rec1p1ent of the stock option or SAR will be entitled to dividend equivalents with respect to such award. In such instance, in
respect of any such award which is outstanding on a dividend record date for Avantair common stock, the participant would be
entitled to an amount equal to the amount of cash or stock dividends that would have paid on the shares of Avantair common stock
covered by such stock.option or SAR award had such shares of Avantair common stock been outstanding on the dividend record date.

Restricted Share Awards and Restricted Stock Units

Resmcted share awards are grants of Avantair common stock made to a participant subject to, condmons established by the
Compensation Committee i in the relevant award agreement on the date of grant. Restricted stock units are similar to restricted shares
except that no shares of common stock are actually awarded to a participant on the date of grant and the common stock underlymg the
award will generally be provided to the participant after the vesting conditions have been satisfied.

Restricted shares and restricted stock units will vest in accordance with the conditions and vesting schedule, if any, provided
in the relevant award agreement. A participant may not sell or otherwise dispose of restricted shares or restricted stock units until the
conditions imposed by the Compensation Committee with respect to such shares and/or units have been satisfied. Restricted share
awards and restricted stock units under the Plan may be granted alone or in addition to any other awards under the Pian. Restricted
shares which vest will be reissued as unrestricted shares of Avantair common stock.

Each participant who receives a grant of restricted shares will have the right to receive all dividends and vote or execute
proxies for such shares. Any stock dividends granted with respect 1o such restricted shares will be treated as additional restricted
shares. Participants receiving grants of restricted stock units will not be stockholders until the common stock underlying the award is
provided to them and they will not enjoy the rights of stockholders (such as receiving dividends and voting or executing proxies) until
that time. - :

Performance Units

Performance units (with each unit representing a monetary amount designated in advance by the Compensation Committee)
are awards which may be granted to participants alone or in'addition to any other awards granted under the Plan. Generally,
participants recetving performance unit grants will only earn such units if certain performance goals are satisfied during a designated
performance period. The Compensation Committee will establish such performance goals and may use measures such as level of
sales, earnings per share, income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting changes, income before cumulative effect
of accounting changes, net income, earnings before interest and taxes, return on assets, return on equity, return on capital employed,
total stockholder return, market valuation, cash flow, Cash EBITDA, completion of acquisitions and/or divestitures, comparisons to
peer companies, individual or aggregate participant performance or such other measure or measures of performance as the
Compensation Committee determines. The participant may forfeit such units in the event the performance goals are not met. If all or a
portion of a performance unit is earned, payment of the designated value thereof will be made in cash, unrestricted shares of Avantair
common stock, in restricted shares orin any combination thereof as prov1ded in the relevant award agreement.

Performance Goals for Qualifi ed Performance-Based Compensation

Section 162{m) of the Code limits Avantair’s ability to deduct compensation paid to its senior executive officers, unless the
compensation qualifies as “qualified performance-based compensation,” as defined in that section and the regulations promulgated
under that section. In order to qualify as “qualified performance-based compensation,” the material terms of the performance goals
must be disclosed to Avantair’s stockholders and approved by the stockholders. Among the material terms of the performance goals
are descriptions of the business criteria on which the performance goals will be based.
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To the extent possible Avantair intends to have the Plan satisfy the requirements of Section 162(m) so that the Compensation
Committee is able to grant awards satisfying the requirements of “qualified performance-based compensation.” Consequently,
Avantair must disclose the following business criteria in establishing performance goals under the'plan: -

. level of sales, : B .
; '

- (-amings-per share,
. income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting changes, . - . ) . - o
. - income before cumulative cfﬁ;ct of accounting changes, | : [ Y . o . o
. net income, . L .
. earnings before interest and taxes,
. r21rm on assets, .

. ) )
- retum on equity, _— ,
. return on capital employed, ' ! '
. total stockholder return, R
. market valuation, . ‘ . Lo

! f
' . cash flow, , . . .. L : . . R . '

. cush EBITDA, . . : ' Iy ) . .
. comparisons to peer companies, and
. Cumpletior'n of acquisitions and/or divéstim}es.l I

These performance goals will be based on any of the above business criteria, either alone ot'in any combination, on either a
consolidated or business unit or divisional level, as the Compensation Committee may determine. Such business criteria will have any
reasonable definitions that the Compensation Committee may specify, which may include or exclude any or all of the following items:
extraordinary, unusual or non-recurring items; effects of accounting changes; effects of currency fluctuations; effects of financing
activities (e.g., effect on eamings per share of issuing convertible debt securities); expenses for restructuring or productivity
initiatives; non-operating items; acquisition expenses; and effects of divestitures. Any such performance criterion or combination of
such criteria may apply to a participant’s award opportunity in its entirety or to any designated portion or portions of the award
opportunity, as the Compensation Committee may specify. . .o oL : ' o :

Recapitalization Adjustiments

Awards granted under the Plan, any agreements evidencing such awards and the maximum number of shares of Avantair
common stock subject to all awards, as well as the per participant per calendar year limitations described above, shall be subject to
adjustment or substitution, as determined by Avantair’s Board of Directors, as to the number, price or kind of a security or other
consideration subject to such awards or as otherwise determined by the Board to be equitable (1) in the event of changes in the
outstanding stock or in the capital structure of Avantair by reason of stock or extraordinary cash dividends, stock splits, reverse stock
splits, recapitalization, reorganizations, mergers, consolidations, combinations, exchanges, or other relevant changes in capitalization
occurring after the date of grant of any such award or (ii) in the event of any change in applicable laws or any change in circumstances
which results in or would result in any substantial dilution or enlargement of the rights granted to, or available for, participants, or
which otherwise warrants equitable adjustment because it interferes with the intended operation of the Plan. Avantair shall give each
participant notice of an adjustment hereunder and, upon notice, such adjustment shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes.
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Mergers and Other Similar Events =
In the: event (lJf any of the following:
A. Avantair is merged into or consolidated with another corporation or entity;
B. Allor substz.mtially all of the assets of Avantair are acquired by ancther person; or
C. The reorganization or liquidation of Avantair

Avantair’s Board of Directors may cancel any outstanding awards and cause the holders thereof to be paid, in cash,
securities or other property (including any securities or other property of a successor or acquirer), or any combination thereof, the
value of such awards as determined by Avantair Board of Directors, in its sole discretion (e.g., in the case of Stock Options, based
upon the excess of the value of a share of Avantair common stock over the exercise price per share), Avantair’s Board of Directors
may provide that such cash, securities or other property is subject to vesting and/or exercisability terms similar to the award being
cancelled.

Amendment, Suspension or Termination of the Plan

Unless earlier terminated by Avantair’s Board of Directors, the Plan shall terminate on the date 10 years after the date the
first award is granted thereunder. The Board may amend, suspend or terminate the Plan (or any portion thereof) at any time. However,
no amendment shall (a) materially and adversely affect the rights of any participant under any outstanding award, without the consent
of such participant (except as described below) or (b) increase the number of shares available for awards under the Plan without
shareholder approval. :

Section 409A of the Code provides substantial penalties to persons deferring taxable income, unless the requirements of
Section 409A have been satisfied. Many awards provided under the Plan could be viewed as deferring income for participants and
may, therefore, be subject to Section 409A. As of the date this report is being prepared, the Internal Revenue Service has not yet
issued final regulations interpreting Section 409A, but they are expected to be issued in the near future. These final regulations, when
issued, may require amendments to be made to the Plan. Consequently, the Plan explicitly provides that Avantair’s Board of Directors
may amend the Plan, without participant consent, in any way it deems appropriate, even if such amendment would materially and
adversely affect the rights of participants to satisfy Section 409A and the regulations that will be issued thereunder.

401(k) Plan

We have a tax-qualified employee savings and retirement plan, or 401{k) plan, which generally covers our employees. The
plan is intended to qualiify under Sections 401 (a), 401(k) and 401{m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, so that
contributions, and income earned thereon, are itot taxable to employees until withdrawn from the plan. Under the plan, employees may
elect to reduce their current compensation by up to the statutorily prescribed annual limit {$15,500 in calendar year 2008) and have the
amount of the reduction contributed to the plan. The plan also permits, but does not require, us to make maiching contributions and
profit-sharing contributions to.the plan on behaif of participants. In addition, eligible employees may elect to contribute an additional
amount of their eligible compensation as a catch-up coatribution to the 401(k) plan, provided that such employees are age 50 or older
(85,000 in calendar year 2008).-To date, we have not made any discretionary or profii-sharing contributions to the 401 (k) plan. As a
tax-qualified plan, we can generally deduct contributions from the participants pre-tax compensation when made, and such
contributions and their earmings are not taxable to participants until distributed from the plan. Pursuant to the terms of the plan,
participants may direct the trustees to invest their accounts in selected investment options.
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Summary Compensation Table "t e ) .

The following table summarizes the compensation paid to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and to our
other two most highly-compensated executive officers whose total annual salary and bonus exceeded $100,000, for services rendered
in all capacities to us during our fiscal year 2008, We refer to these officers as our named executive officers,

4
'

All Other
Salary Bonus Stock Compensation Total

Name and Principal Position Year () (%) Awards (B)(1) ($)(2) (£
Steven Santo 2008 $ 400,000 $ 100,000 § 94,173 § 74450 § 668,623
I_Crh_ief Executive Officer _ 2007 343750 200,000 16,190 55670 615,610
Richard A. Pytak Jr. (3) 2008 59,077 50,000 - 37,539 146,616
Chief Financial Officer 2007 - - - - -
(AsofApril 14,2008)
John Waters 2008 222,115 12,500 134,921 183,333 552,869 .
Chief Financial Officer and
Director 2007 195,673 150,000 12,082 22,500 380,255
(Oclober 1,2006- April 11,2008) S o
Kevin L. Beitzel 2008 . 179,006 50,000 T 14933 6,468 250,407
Chief Operating; Officer 2007 97,308 - 1,539 528 99,375
(As of February 8, 2008) o o ) o L
Tracy Chaplin 2008 149,870 5,000 - 69,791 224,661 |
Chief Operatin;g Officer 2007 180,709 53,651 ; 8216 - 242,576 .

(January 30, 206 - February 7,

2008) _

(1) The amounts shown reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes, in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R).

(2) The following are comprised of automobile allowances to Messrs. Santo and Beitzel and Ms. Chaplin of $25,958, $6,000 and
$5,600, respectively; housing allowances to Messrs. Santo and Pytak of $44,543 and $4,526, respectively; reimbursed moving
expenses to Mr. Pytak of $33,013; a payment to Mr. Waters of $183,333 with respect to his separation agreement with the
Company; a payment to Ms. Chaplin of $63,902 in connection with her departure from the Company; and 401K employer match
contributions for Messrs. Santo and Beitzel and Ms. Chaplin of $4,038, $468 and $288, respectively.

(3) Mr. Pytak was not compensated by the Company'in 2007 as his'employment commenced in S
February 2008.




Grants of Plan - Based Awards for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

We have granted shares of restricted stock or other plan-based awards and plan to continue to grant shares of restricted stock
or other plan-based awards to executive officers, employees and other service providers. The following sable provides information, as
of June 30, 2008, concerning restricted stock granted to our named executive officers during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008:

2008 Grants of Plan-Based Awards

All Other Stock Awards: Number of

Name _ ' Grant Date Shares of Stock or Units (#)(l)
Richard A. Pytak Jr,. S 6/30/2008 ' ) 7,500
Kevin Beitzel 6/30/2008 : 15,000
(N Awards of restricted stock granted under the 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan, One-third of the shares granted to each

executive officer vest on June 30, 2009, and one-twel{th of the shares vest every three months thereafter.

The Plan was approved on February 22, 2007. Since the approval, Avantair granted an aggregate of 22,500 and 214,000
shares of restricted stock to its executive officers and employees in fiscal years 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Outstanding Equity Awards for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

. The following table provides information concerning outstanding equity awards as of June 30, 2008, by each of our named
executive officers: o

[

Stock Awards

: Number of Shares or Units of Stoc'k Market Value of Shares or Units of Stock
Name Date Granted That Have Not Vested (#) That Have Not Vested ($)(1)

Steven Santo _ 5/18/07 ) 44,667 - ) 218,868
John Waters ) _ . SNBAT S - —(2) —
Tracy Chaplin L 5/18/07 ) o —
Richard A. Pytak dr. ~~ 6/30/08 i 7,500 o ) 14,550
Kevin Beitzel . 6/30/08 X 21,667(4) - 61,768
(1) Awards of restricted stock granted under the 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan. One-third of the share granted to cach
' executive officer vested one year following the grant date, and one-twelfth of the shares vest every three months
thercafter, '
2) Effective April t 1, 2008, Mr. Waters employment ended and in connection therewith, Mr. Waters forfeited 16,666 of
" these shares.
3) Effective February 7, 2008, Ms. Chaplin’s employment ended and in connection therewith, these shares were forfeited.
(4) . Mr. Kevin Beitzel was granted 10,000 shares on May 18, 2007 as well as another 15,000 shares on June 30, 2008. Each

grant award contained vesting terms of one-third of the shares granted to vest one year following the grant date, and one-
twelfth of the shares vest every three months thereafter. Therefore, as of June 30, 2008, approximately two-thirds of the
shares granted in 2007 and all of the 2008 shares had not yet vested and are included in the calculation above.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

No named executive officer was granted any stock options and there were no options exercised during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008. In addition, there were 76,663 shares of restricted stock that vested and 10,668 that were exercised during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2008.
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

Upon the recommendation of the compensation committce, the full board of directors approved an annual compensation
arrangement for our independent directors effective February 23, 2007. Such arrangement is comprised as follows:

Annua' Fee. Each director, other than those directors serving as employees, receives an annual cash retainer in the amount of
$40,000, paid quarterly in arrears, Each director has the option to receive, in whole or in part, such amount in cash or hours flown in
Company aircraft. The hours flown in Company aircraft will be valued at estimated fair market value. Mr. Gordon will receive an
additional $35,000 in annual cash compensation for service as our non-Executive Chairman.

Audit Committee Chair. The chair of the audit committee, Ms. Cuskley, receives an additional annual cash compensation of
$20,000 as our audit committee chair.

On March 5, 2008 Avantair granted 3,000 shares of restricted stock to each of Barry Gordon, Arthur Goldberg, Stephanie
Cuskley, Robert Lepofsky and A. Clinton Aflen. The restricted shares granted to the directors vest one third upon each of the next
three (3) successive annual meetings, subject to the grantee’s continued service on the Board of Directors.

The following director compensation table shows the compensation we paid in 2008 to our non-employee directors:

Director Compensation Table

Restricted
. . Fees Earned or Stock Awards
Name Paid in Cash ($)(1) )]V Total (8) ‘
A. Clinton Aller - ) _ 7 40,000 COL140 41,140
Barry Gordon - o 75,000 1,140 76140
Arthur Goldberg, o o . 40,000 1,140 41,140
prert Lepofsky o ) i 40,000 1,140 i 41,140
Stephanie Cuskley o 7 o 60,000 1,140 61,140
(n The fees earned by the directors may be paid, at the director’s option, in cash and/or in hours flown in Company aircraft at

estimnated fair market value per hour. Messrs. Allen, Goldberg and Lepofsky have chosen to be paid in hours flown in
company aircraft.

Mr. Gordon and Ms. Cuskley have chosen to be paid in cash.

) The amounts shown reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal year
endd June 30, 2008, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R). The balance
remaining to be recognized over the remaining vesting period of the award is $47,627.

Pension Benefits

Our named executive officers did not participate in, or otherwise receive any benefits under, any pension or retirement plan
sponsored by us during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. '

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

Our nimed executive officers did not earn any nonqualified deferred compensation benefits from us during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008. ‘
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Employment Arrangements with Named Executive Officers
Steven Santo

On September 29, 2006, we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Santo, our Chief Executive Officer and a
director. The agreement provides that Mr. Santo will receive an annual base salary of $400,000 after the closing of the sale of the
company to Ardent Acquisition Corporation and will be eligible to receive an annual performance bonus, which for 2007 may be 60%
of his base salary. Future annual base salary will not be less than $400,000, with increases approved by the Compensation Committee
and/or the Board of Directors. Mr. Santo is entitled, among other things, to:

. participate in all benefit programs, including the registered retirement savings plan, established and made available to
its emplovees; '

. monthly living expenses in the amount of $2,800 through December 31, 2008;
. monthly automobile lease reimbursement of $1,500; and

. reimbursement for any reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in the course of employment.

The term of the employment agreement is three years.

We do not have an employment agreement with the other named executive officers.

Termination Benefits

If the agreement is terminated by Mr. Santo voluntarily without good reason, Avantair shall have no further obligations
following the effective date of termination other than to pay the employee for any accrued but unpaid salary and reimbursable
expenses.

If the agreements are terminated by Avantair without cause or by the executive for good reason or for disability, then Mr.
Santo is respectively entitled to:

* any then accrued but unpaid base salary and performance bonus as of the date of termination; and
* payment of the base salary in effect at the time of termination and continuation of health insurance for a period of
12 months.

In each agreement, “cause” means:

. employee’s fraud or breach of fiduciary obligations in connection with performance of his duties with Avantair
{including but not limited to any acts of embezzlement or misappropriation of funds};

. employee’s indictment for a felony or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to a felony charge or any criminal act involving
moral turpitude;
. empioyee’s being under the influence of any drugs (other than prescription medicine or other medically-related drugs to

the extent that they are taken in accordance with their directions) or repeatedly being under the influence of alcohol,
during the performance of his duties under his employment agreement, or, while under the influence of such drugs or
alcohel, engaging in grossly inappropriate conduct during the performance of his duties under his employment
agreement;

. employee’s refusal to substantially perform his duties under his employment agreement, except in the event that the
employee becomes permanently disabled;

. employee’s willful misconduct or gross negligence in connection with his employment;




employee’s material violation of any Avantair.policies or procedures relating to harassment, discrimination or insider
trading; or employee’s material breach of any provision of his employment agreement.

I . S

In each agreement, “‘good reason” means:

oy P

-

. Avantair’s willful material breach of any provision of his employment agreement,

. any material adverse change in employee’s position, authority, duties or responsibilities (other than a change due
to employee’s permanent disability or as an accommodation under the Americans With Disabilities Act) which
results in: (A) a diminution in any material respect in employee’s position, authority, duties, responsibilities or
compensation, which diminution continues in time over at least thirty (30) days, such that it constitutes an
effective demotion; or (B) a material diversion from employee’s performance of the functions of employee’s
position, excluding for this purpose material adverse changes made with employee’s written consent or due to
employee’s termination for cause or termination by employee without good reason; or '

I : e

. relocation of Avantair’s headquarters and/or employee’s regular.work address to a location which-requires the
employee to travel more than forty (40) miles from employee’s place of employment on the date of his
employment agreement. -

’

In addition, Mr. Santo’s interest in any stock options or restricted stock will fully vest on the effective date of a termination

without cause. R B ) Coa .

v

Under the employment agreement with Mr. Santo, if the employment agreement had been terminated by the Company

without cause or by Mr. Santo for good reason or for disability, effective June 30, 2008 (the last business day of our fiscal year of -
2008), he would have been paid a\total of $497,454, including: (i) $400,000 representing his base salary then in effect, (if) $10,800
representing the continuation of health insurance for a period of 12 months; and (iii} $86,654 representing the acceleration of the
vesting of 44,667 shares of restrictéd stock from the 2006 Long-term Incentive Plan (based on the closing price of $1.94 per share as

of June 30, 2008).

4. Y.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The following table sets forth 1nf0rmatlon regardmg the beneficial ownershlp of our common stock as of September 18, 2008.

- . s

. ~ each person who, to our knowledge, beneﬁmally owns of more than 5% of our outstanding

shares of common stock;

. " . . . H .
. all of our,executive officers and directors as a group.

'

oo * each of our directors and names executive officers; and

bt

Information with respect to beneficial ownership has been furnished by each diréctor, officer-or beneficial owner of more
than 5% of our common stock. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and generally requires that
such person have voting or investment power with respect to securities. In computing the number of shares beneficiaily owned by a
person listed below and the percentage ownership of such person, shares of common stock underlying options, warrants or convertible
securities held by each such person that are exercisable or convertible within 60 days of September 18, 2008 are deemed outstanding,
but are not deemed outstanding for computing the percentage ownership of any other person.

Unless otherwise indicated in the footnotes to the following table, each person named in the table has sole voting and
investment power and that person’s address is 4311 General Howard Drive, Clearwater, Florida 33762,

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner'"

Amount and
Nature of
Beneficial

Ownership

Percent of Class- -

Jonathan Auerbach®?

Steven Santo®:, e o : 1,702,362
Allison Roberto(“) e _1,646, 650 N
Paul Sonkin® . N ] 3247481°
Jeffrey Kirby” o o §6_429_0!) L
PaulJ Solit? _ o | 2,282.246%

Seth Klarman® o o 1,156,000
Fred | B. Barbara'” L 756,426

Barry J. Gordon'? i 1,017,066
Richard A. PytakJr. _ 1500
Arthur H. Goldberg® e 34800019
Stephanic A. Cuskley®® 13,0007
A. Clinton Allen®? e — .. 3500007
RobertJ. Lepofsky™ 230009
Kevm Beitzel 23,8429
Gilder, Gagnon, & Howe & Co e o 1,663,156

‘All directors and executive officers as a group (8 1nd|v1duals) e 3,170,770
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. 2%
v %

C108%

- 1%
5.7%
14.9%
7.6%
A%
6.7%
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* Less than l%

(1) Unless otherw1$e noted, the busmess address of each of the followmg is c/o Avantalr 431 1 General Howard Dnve Clearwater FL

33762

. .
(2) The business address of Mr. Auerbach is Hound Partners, LLC 101 Park Avenue, 48th Floor New York, NY 10178 The shares
are held by Hound Partners, LP, and Hound Partners Offshore Fund LP. Mr. Auerbach is the Managing Member of Hound
Performance, LLC and Hound Partners, LLC, investment management firms that serve as the general partner, and investment manager,
respectively, to Hound Partners, LP and Hound Partners Offshore Fund, L.P. Includes 2,170,138 shares of common stock issuable
upon exercise of warrants and 1,941,748 shares of common stock that may be acquiired upon the'conversion of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock. This information is based on Form 4 ﬁled w1th the SEC on August 8, 2008 and Schedule I3D filed with the SEC on
November 21, 2007 by these persons.

1

(3) 1,641,650 of the shares are held by Camelot 27 LLC. Each of Steven Santo and Allison Roberto are members of Camelot 27 LLC.
Includes 60,712 shares of restricted stock which were granted to Steven Santo individually, which one third vested on May 18, 2008
and one twelfth of the shares vest every 3. months thereafter.

. ]
s h ! ! f .

(4) 1,641,650 of the shares are held by Camelot 27 LLC. Each of Steven Santo and Allison Roberto are members of Camelot 27 LLC.
Includes 5,000 shares of.restricted stock which was granted to Allison Roberto individually whlch one third vested on May 18, 2008
and one twelfth of the shares vest every 3 months thereafter. ;
{5) The business address of Mr. Sonkin is 460 Park Avenue, 12th Floor, New York New York 10022. The shares are heid by
Hummingbird Value Fund, L.P., The Hummingbird Microcap Value Fund, L.P. and The Hummingbird Concentrated Fund, L.P. Mr.
Sonkin, as managing member and controt person of Hummingbird Management LLC, the investment manager of such entities, has
sole voting and dispositive power over such shares.

This information is based upon Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on November 26, 2007 and Form 4 filed with the SEC on November
26, 2007 by these persons. . e e p

(6) Includes 1,173,590 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants and 233,010 shares of common stock that may be
acquired upon the conversion of 12,000 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock.

(7) The business address of Mr. Kirby is P.O. Box 70458, Reno, Nevada 89570. This information is based upon Schedule 13D filed
with the SEC on March 5, 2007 by Mr. Kirby. _

(8) The business address of Mr. Solit is Potomac Capital Management, 825 Third Avenue, 33 Floor, New York, NY 10022. The
shares are held by Potomac Capital Management LLC and Potomac Capital Management Inc. Mr. Solit is the Managing Member of
Potomac Capital Management LLC and the President and Sole Owner of Potomac Capital Management Inc. Includes 430,000 shares
of common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants and 776,680 shares of common stock that may be acquired upon the conversion
of Series A Convartible Preferred Stock. This information is based on the Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on August 28, 2008 by
these persons. )

(9) The business address of Mr. Klarman is The Baupost Group, LLC, 10 St. James Avenue, Suite 1700, Boston, MA 02116. The
shares are held by The Baupost Group, LLC. The Baupost Group LLC is a registered investment advisor. SAK Corporation is the
Manager of The Baupost Group LLC. Seth Klarman is the sole Director of SAK Corporation and a controlling person of The Baupost
Group LLC. This information is based on Form 13G filed with the SEC on February 12, 2008 by these persons.

(10) The business address of Mr. Barbara is BHP Partners LLC, 2300 South Archer Avenue, Chicago, IL 60616. This information is
based upon Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on March 5, 2007 by Mr. Barbara.

(11) The business address of Mr. Gordon is 7808 Talavera Place, DelRay Beach, Florida 33446.

(12) Includes 374,626 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants. Includes 10,000 shares of common stock issuable
upon exercise of options which vested on February 23, 2008. Includes 3,000 shares of restricted stock which vest one-third upon each
of the next 3 successive annual meetings of stockhelders.

(13) Represents 7,500 shares of restricted stock granted to Mr. Pytak which vest one-third on June 30, 2009 and one-twelfth of the
shares vest every 3 months thereafter.

(14) The business address of Mr. Goldberg is c/o Corporate Solutions Group, 175 Great Neck Road, Suite 408, Great Neck, NY
11021,
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(15) Includes 125,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants. Includes 10,000 shares of common stock issuable
upon exercise of optrons which vested on February 23, 2008. lncludes 3,000 shares of restricted stock which vest one-third upon each
of the next 3 successive aniual theetings of stockholders.

(16) The business address of Ms. Cuskley 1s 180 East 79th Street New York NY 10021

(17) Includes 10,000 shares of common stock 1ssuable upon exercise of options which vested on February 23, 2008 Includes 3,000
shares of restricted stock which vest one-third upon each of the next 3 successive annual meetings of stockholders.

(18) The business address (_)r' Mr..ﬁrllen is 710 South Street, Needﬁam; MA 02492,

(19) Includes 10,000 sllra'res of common stock issuable upon exercise of optiorls which vested on February 23, 2008. Includes 3,000
shares of restricted stock which vest one-third upon each of the next 3 successive annual meetings of stockholders.

" (20) The business address of Mr. Lepofsky is c/o Westcliff Capital Group, PO Box 81367, Wellesley Hills, MA'02461.

(21) Includes 10,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options which vested on February 23, 2008. Includes 3,000
share§ of restricted stock which vest one-third upon each o'f the next 3 succcssive annual meetings of stockholdets.

22 Represehis 10,000 shares of restricted stock granted to Mr. Beitzel which one third vested on May 18, 2008 and one-twelfth of
the shares vest every three months thereafter. In addition, 15,000 shares of restricted stock were granted to Mr. Beitzel on June 30,
2008 which one third vests on June 30, 2009 and one-twelfth of the shares vest every 3 months thereafter.

(23) This information is based on Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 6, 2008 by Walter Weadock, member of Gllder
Gagnon, Howe and Co.LLC.

(24) Includes 499,626 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants. Includes 107,054 shares'of restricted stock.
Includes 50,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options.
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[tem 13. Certain Relationships, Related Transactions and Director Independence .

The following is a summary of transactions since July 1, 2007 to which we have been a party in which the amount involved
exceeded $120,000 and in which any of our executive officers, dlrectors or beneficial holders of more than 5% of our capital stock had
or will have a direct or indirect material interest, other than compensation arrangements.

Effective April 11, 2008, the Company’s former Chief Financial Officer, John Waters, departed the Company and resigned
his position as a director of the Company. In connection with the former Chief Financial Officer’s departure, on April 14, 2008, the
Company entered into a separation agreement pursuant to which the former Chief Financial Officer will receive (1) a payment equal to
eight months salary (8183,333), (ii) reimbursement of premium payments for COBRA benefits until the earlier of a period of eight
(8} months comimencing April 14, 2008 or at such time that the former Chief Financial Officer obtains employment providing health
benefits and (iii) pursuant to an amendment to his previously issued restricted stock award, 33,334 shares of common stock. In
addition, the former Chief Financiat Officer has agreed not to transfer any shares of the Company’s common stock for a period of six
(6) months commencing April 14, 2008. At the end of the six (6) month period, the former Chief Financial Officer’s unrestricted
shares shall be freely tradable in the open market, subject to the Company’s “Right of First Refusal” and in compliance with
applicable securities law. In addition, the former Chief Financial Officer has agreed to cooperate fully with the Company’s reasonable
requests for assistance in transitioning his previous responsibilities for a period of eight (8) months commencing April 14, 2008.

On March 5, 2008, Avantair granted 3,000 shares of restricted stock to each of Barry Gordon, Arthur Goldberg, Stephanie
Cuskley, Robert Lepofsky and A. Clinton Allen. Each of these individuals is a director of Avantair. The shares of restricted stock
granted to the directors’ vest one third upon each of the next three (3) successive annual meetmgs of stockholders, subject to the
grantee’s continued service on the Board of Dlrectors

Policies and Prncedures for Related Party Transactions

We have adopted a Code of Conduct and Professional Ethics, applicable to our directors, officers and employees, including
our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and all of our other executives pursuant to which all directors, officers and
employees mus| promptly disclose to us, any material transaction or relationship that reasonably could be expected to give rise to an
actual or apparent conflict of interest with Avantair, Inc. In approving or rejecting the proposed agreement, our audit committee shall
consider the relcvant facts and circumstances available and deemed relevant to the audit committee, including, but not limited to the
risks, costs and benefits to us, the terms of the transaction, the availability of other sources for comparable services or products, and, if
applicable, the lmpact on a director’s independence. Qur audit committee shall approve only those agreements that, in light of known
circumstances, ire in, or are not inconsistent with, our best interests, as our audit committee determines in the good faith exercise of its
discretion.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Our Audit Committee has selected J.H. Cohn LLP as the principal independent registered public accounlting firm for 2008.
J.H. Cohn LLP has served as our principal independent registered public accounting firm since August {, 2006.

Fees

The following table sets forth the fees billed or to be billed for professional services rendered by J.H. Cohn LLP for audit
services, audit-related services, and all other services in fiscal years 2008 and 2007, respectively.

] _ o 2008 2007 o
Audit Fees (1) 5 21,000 8 230,699
Audit-Related Fees (2) 77,500 96,000
Total Fees $ 288,500 $ 326,699
() For professional services rendered in connection with the audit of our annual financial statements and the reviews of the
financial statements included in each of our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q.
2) For assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of our financial

stalements in connection with regulatory filings.

Policy on Pre-Approval by Audit Committee of Services Performed by Principal Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm

The policy of the Audit Committee is to pre-approve all audit and permissible non-audit services to be perfonned by our
principal indep2ndent registered public accounting firm.
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PART'IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Finiancial Statement Séhedules
(a)  The following are filed as a part of this report.
.~ (1) .Financial Stat.'émenté '

4

Reference is made to the Index to Financial Statements on Page F-1. -

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

2

None. L .

(3) . Exhibits, '
See Exhibit Index.© ‘ ' o
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
Annual Report o be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

September 24, 2008

Avantair, Inc.

By: /s/ Steven Santo

Steven Santo
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Name . ' Title Date

/s/ Steven Santo _ Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal September 24, 2008
: Executive Officer)

Steven Santo

/s/ Richard A, Pytak Jr. Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and September 24, 2008
Accounting Officer)

Richard A. Pytak Jr.

{s/ Barry Gordon . Chairman, September 24, 2008
Barry Gordon

s/ A. Clinton Allen Director September 24, 2008
A. Clinton Allen

/s/ Robert Lepofsky Director September 24, 2008

Robert Lepofsky

/s/ Arthur H. Goldberg Director September 24, 2008
Arthur H. Goldberg

/s/ Stephanie Cuskley Director September 24, 2008

Stephanie Cuskley
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Avantair, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Avantair, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Formerly Ardent
Acquisition Corporation) as of June 3¢, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in
stockholders’ deficit and cash flows for each of the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overal! financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Avantair, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, and their results of operations and cash flows for each of the
years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ JH. Cohn LLP

Jericho, New York ‘
September 24, 2008




Avantair, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(Formerly Ardent Acquisition Corporation)
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets
ot June 30,
y e 2008 2007
CurrentAssets L
) _Cash and cash equlvalems e § 19149777 § 12,577,468

Accounts Receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $213,487 at June 30, 2008
~ and $460,377 at {une 30,2007 . 5692809 5,087,491

[nventory o S 252407 _ 579,517
" Current portlon of alrcraﬁ costs related to fractional sales .. 407203 31895085
~ Current portion ofnoteszegc_zya_lzl_e . 8_32,}()1 0 LoI5163

Prepaid expenses and other current assets e 2,173,992 378,394 -
Total currentassets 68.518,295 51,533,118
Aircraft costs re]audto fractlonal share s sa]es -net of current portlon . N 02,383,071 74,870,704
Propertyand Equqment atcost et - 25,663,264 15,380,698

~ Otherassets km._“,d,ﬁ,,,mV,AAM, ,; I B o B )

. Cash-restricted 2826290 2,942,983
Deposits on alrcraﬁ s Bem92T 9,904,054
Deferred maintenance on aircraft engines 2228509 2,691,539
Notes receivable-net of current portion .~~~ ‘71008 223 ~ 1,327,552
Goodwill S L141,159 1,141,159
Otherassees 2,029,367 698,453

Totalatherassets 17912825 18,705,740
Totabassets % 204477455 $ 160,490,260

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Avantair, Inc. and Subsidiaries,
(Formerly Ardent Acquisition Corporation)
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Deficit

5 a3 | June 30,
. S S 2008 2007
Current Liabilities T
~ Accounts payable .. . 5 4718 355§ 5,765,189
| Accrued liabilites 3528472 _ 3,141,061
Customer deposits + . 1,905,682 612,500
Short-term notes payable I Y 121
_ Current portion of long-term notes payable o ____i__,i 6,648,003 4,412,238
Current portion of deferred revenue related to fractlonal alrcraft sharesales =~ = 47 778900 3.8295_8,_547_1
Unearned management fee and charter card revenues 16,316,044 7,950,636
Total current liabilities JE 98, 670 8064 59,940,221
Long-term notes payable, net of current portion i _‘ .. 23,856.322 18,560,570

Dcferred revenue rclated to fracuona] aircraft share sales, net of current pomon e 96 525 785 92,186,334
Other liabilities o L 2,636,730 1,762,159
Tot_al long-term liabilities o L 123, 018 837 112,509,063
Totg] liabilities e 221,689,643 172,449,284
Commltments and Contmgencnes i s V_A___ o .
Series A convertible peferred stock, $. 0001 par value, authorized 300,000 shares; 152,000
shares issued and ouls@angglg L 14,439,358 -
Stnckholders Deﬁc1t ) » o _"'_ e
Perferred stock, $. 0001 par value authorized 700 000 sharcs noneissued - ) -
Common stock, Class A, $.0001 par value, 75,000,000 shares authorized, 15,286,792
shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2008 and 15,220,817 shares issued and -
outstanding at June 30,2007. - ] 529 1,522
Additional paid-in capital . 45314393 46,124,857
“Accumulated deficit o o e (76,967,468) (38,085,403)
Total stockholders det‘clt . L ) (31 651 546) (11,959,024)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit . ) 204 477 455 $ 160,490,260

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Avantair, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(Formerly Ardent Acquisition Corporation)
v . Consolidated Statements of Operations .. . : ,

Year Ended Year Ended
June 30, - June 30,
2008 2007

Revenue o e o . )
Fractlonal alrcraﬁ shares sold ______ R S & 43,426,696 _' 3 ‘2_9,69511_753_‘
Maintenance and management fees - 58,211,457 38,787,596
Charter card and demonstration revenpe .~ ' o 10,3{33,232 . 6,420,336
FBO and other revenpges L 3,747,598 1,490,125 !
Total revenue_ ,,‘,,: _______ - 115,618,983 76,393.232
Operating expenscs L T - )
Cost of fractional a reraft 3 shares essold _36 637 959 24,370,988
Cost of flight operations .~ 50,058,692 35,665,057
Costof fuel . 16489422 10,192,406

Write- ofTofalrcraft dep051t o e 300,000
_ 20,703,120 18540 610

General and admin:strative expenses

Selling expenses 4670246 - 4333268.
Depreciation and amortization 3,624,710 2,013,530 ,
Total operating expenses ,_ o 132,184,149 95,415,859
Loss from operanons e (16,565,166) (19,022,627)
Other income (expenses) e )

]n(erest income 482,666 444,179
Qtt_\er income_ S 861 662 T 284, 723
Interestexpense = (3 661,227) (3 406, 181)
Total other expenses L @2J16,89%)  (2,677,279)
NetLoss T T gsmoss) @, 699906)
Preferred stock lel_denEi and accretion of expenses ;__ o jl S | o ' 7(903,8’51)7 . -
Net loss attributable to common stockholders 8§ (19785916) § (21,699906)
Loss per common share: e e e .
Basic and diled .} (1.30) § (2.47)

WEIghted- average common shares outstandmg o N S _
Basic and diluted o 15,230,482 8,780,234

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Avantair, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(Formerly Ardent Acquisition Corporation)
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Deficit
Years Ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

Class A
Comman Stock

Class B

Common Stock Paid-In Due From  Accumulated Treasury

Shares Amount _Shares  Amt Capital Stockholder Deficit Stock

Total
Stockholders’
Deficit

Balance, Jung 30, 2006

Advances to Stockholder

Reclassification of stockhotder
advances to treasury stock

Redemptidn of Class A
common stock

Redemption of Class B
shareholders

Sale of common stock at $2.78
per share, net of $450,000 of
_costg .

Issuance of shares to members
of management at fair value of
$5.36 per share

Shares outstanding upon
consummation of reverse
merger

Retirement of treasury stock
upon consummation of reverse
merger e e

Stock redemption in connection
with reverse merger

Issuance of shares to financial
advisor in connection with
FEVerse merger

[ssuance of warrants to
financial advisor in connection
with reverse merger

Issuance of warrants at fair
value of $0.77 .
Issuance of 150,000 stock
options 1o non-employee
directors o o
1ssuance of restricted stock

grants to employee executives
and managers
Net Losék

3237410

. AT

8400000

B Gt SR

3288590 8 329 100 S 10008 6713 (533,986)F (34,498,621)3

e _oL 1833

(7847 A8 652325

S e u skt

e 1632307

e

_QaeTon - e

ooy 4000y o

o _(734,583)

324 8.549676

4L . 2,342,353

. B0 .. 34014961

. .. (1,886,876) 1,886,876

__penne

200545 - 1070890

L

156000

(21,699,906)

(499.986)

- § (35,030,607

. (118,339)
. (500.,000)

(735,483

8,550,000

2,542,400

| 34015801

_(362,132) }

1,070.910 !

64,240

156,000

44946

. 4326
(21,699.906)

Balance, June 30, 2007

15,220,817 $ 1,522 - 3 -§ 46,124,857 § -$ (58,085,403)8

-5 (11,959,024)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Avantair, Inc. and Subsidiaries
{Formerly Ardent Acquisition Corporation)
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Deficit
Years Ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

Class A Class B Total
Common Stock Common Stock Paid-In Due From Accumulated Treasury Stockholders'

Shares __Amount Shares  Amount Capital Stockholder Deficit Stock Deficit
Expenses associated with
issuance of preferred stock ) _ S o8 ey o $ (391,423)
Expenses associated with
registration of shares B _ o ) o
Stock based compensation B 484817 484,817
Dividend on Series A
convertible preferred stock
and accretion of issuance
costs ) ) ) o o (903,851} ) (903,851)
Issuance of shares with
vested restricted stock 65975 I in ) o o _ )
NetLoss - ) (18.882,065) (18,882,065}
;Bal_:_nlce at June 30, 2008 15,286,792 % 1,529 - 8 -§ 45314393 % -$ (76,967 468)3 -3 (31,651,546}

See Notes 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
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Avantair, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(Formerly Ardent Acquisition Corporation)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, Year Ended June 3{,
L 2008 2007
OPERATING ACTIVITIES B o ‘
Net loss ) s (18,882,065) $ (21,699,906} |
__Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities: S o
_ Depreciation and amortization . _ . 3624710 2,013,530
Gainonsaleofassets (31410 -
Provision for bad debts o - ) 21,109 _ -
_Stock-based compensation R . X1 ) 2,784,592
Changes in operating assets and |labllltles o L _ _
| Accountsreceivable o (626427) (2,518,189)
' Accounts receivable from vendor o - 222,974
; _Inventory - 7 b1 § LU (325,984)
Deposits. and other assets L 0 (1,475.223) 2,919,969
__Deferred maintenance agreement on : a1rcraﬁ engines 463030 637961
) Prepaid expenses and other currentassets (1,795,598) (297.975)
_ Notesreceivable o 14252385 2,250,929
____Aircraft costs related to fractmnal shares (26,034,485) (42,310,593)
”Q_th_er assets L Bae) (502,957),
o Accounts payabte 1,642,167 (3,687,102}
L _ Accrued liabilities 0 2,042,629 1,193,723
o Unearned management fees and charter card revenues 8,269,808 4,513,021
X _ Cash-restricted . 16693 (2,942,983)
o _ Customer deposits 1,293,182 o 31L,51
__ Other liabilities e -7 -7 460,656
_ Deferred revenue related to fractlonal aircraft share sales 14,059,804 40,046,766
Net cash used in operating activities__ e (15,537,919 (17,210,057)
INVESTINGACTIVITIES: . _._. _... ‘
| Proceedsfromsaleofdeposits 2,470,000 | -
_ Proceeds from sale of aircraft . _ - 4,200,000
! Capital expenditures (5,195,325) (1,654.951)
2,545,049

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (2,725,325)
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. Borrowings under short- term notes payable

_Principal payments on line of credit

) Proceeds from the sale of prcferred stock—net

_Advances to stockholder

Avantair, lne.‘and Subsidiaries
(Formerly Ardent Acquisition Corporation)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

FI\TANCING AC'I lVlTlES

Borrowings under long-term notes payable

Borrowings under line of credit _

Principal payments on long-term notes payable

... Principal payments on short-term notes payable

-Preferred stock: dividends paid

Proceeds from issuance of stock

Cost of stock redemption/registration

Proceeds from consummation of reverse merger

Proceeds from issuance of warrants to officer

Cost of reasury shares

. Net eash provided by financing actwmes

Net increase in cas1 and cash equivalents

~ Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year

Cash and cast equivalents, end of the year

Interest paid {net of amounts capitalized)

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

E-9

Year Ended June 39, Year Ended June 30,
2008 2007

" 2200000 S 1312277
- 7,581,365 ¢
) 25910842 -
(6,630,674) {12,965,653).

~ {10,135,582) o -

- (22,848,144)

(502,504) C -
- 8,550,000

) 14,384,894 -
- (391,423) - (362,132)

) - 35,150,951
i - 2,000
- _ (118,339)
- (1,235,583);

24,835,553 25,066,742
6,572,309 10,401,734
12,577,468 2,175,734
19149777 § 12,577,468
3,661,227 § 3,610,172




Avantair, Inc, and Subsidiaries
(Formerly Ardent Acquisition Corporation)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

. oA - - - . — RO

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH FINANCING AND

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Accretion of Series A convertlble preferred stoek
Dividends payable on Series A convertible preferred stock
Settlement ‘of note payable through sale of aircraft
Charter card issued as partial consideration of aircraft purchase
Deferred financing costs - _ o
Short-term notes payable- reﬁnanemg

Note receivable on sale of deposits o
Aircraft purchased under long-term note payable _

Issuance of shares in connection with reverse merger

Year Ended June 30,

Year Ended June 30,

Issuance of warrants in connection with reverse merger
Reclassification of stockholder advances to treasury stock
Aircraft purchased under capital lease obligation
Deferred gain on sale and leaseback of asset
Conversion of short-term borrowings to long-term note notes payable
Note payable for purchase of cote aircraft net of deposit ($607,000)

2008
3 54,464 3 -
$ 346,883 § -
$ 457,600 § .
$ 95,600 $ -
S 996,188 $ -
S 2,689,001 $ -
3 750,000 $ -
8 3,906,000 $ -
$ -3 1,070,910
$ - 3 64,240
$ - $ 652,325
3 4,828,642 $ 4,392,163
$ - $ 860.714
$ - $ 7,050,300
$ - 3 2,233,340

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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NOTE 1 - OPERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT’S PLANS

Avantair, Inc. (formerly known as Ardent Ac;]uisition. Corporetion) (“Avantéir”, “At‘dent" or the “Compan;r’;), was
organized on September 14, 2004 as a blank check company whose-objective was (0 acquire an operating business.

On October 2, 2006, the Company 51gned a definitive stock purchase agreement (the “Reverse Merger”) with Avantair Inc.

(“Old Avantair”). The agreement, as amended on December 15, 2006, provided for Avantair to issuc 6,684,822 shares of common

stock to the stockholders of Old Avantair in exchange for all of the isSued and outstandmg shares of Old Avantair (the “Share

Exchange” or “Reverse Merger”). The agreement also provided for the Company to issue to the stockholderq of Old Avanta1r .

additional shares as follows: ‘ .

. At the end of the fiscal year ending June 30, 2007, if Cask Ea‘mmgs Before Interest Taxes Depreciation and
Amortization (Cash EBITDA) (EBITDA + nen cash expenses) was greater than $6,000,000 for the fiscal year
endmg June 30, 2007, the Company would issue an aggregate of 954,975 shares of its common stock to Old-
Avantair stockholders. The Company’s results did not meet the requlrements for the year ended June 30, 2007
and therefore these sharés were not issued.

. At the end of the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008, the Company would calculate (based on its annual audited
consolidated financial statements for such fiscal year) Cash EBITDA. If Cash EBITDA was greater than
$20,000,000 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008, the Company would issue an aggregate of 4,774,873

shares of its common stock to Old Avantair stockholders. The Company’s results did not meet the requirements

for the year ended June 30, 2008 and therefore these shares were not issued.

, - . ‘.

[

. If at any time prior to February 23, 2009, the closing trading price on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board {or
on a national securities market on which the Company’s common stock is then quoted for trading) of the
Company’s common stock for 20 trading days within any 30 trading day period equals or exceeds $8.50 per
share, then the Company will i issue an additional aggregate of 4,774,873 shares of i 1ts common stock to Old
Avantair stockholders. . , . . :
. Where appropriate, additional shares issued as a result of achieving the targets referred to above will be accounted for in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123R, “Share based Payments” (“SFAS 123(R)") where
the fair value of shares issued will be charged to expense when earned and issued.

On February 22, 2007, the stockholders of Avantair voted in favor of the Reverse Merger Subsequent to the. Reverse
Merger, Old Avantair’s business activities were the activities of Avantair. The stockholders and management of Old Avantalr owna
substantial portion of the. equity of the combined company. The Board of Directors is compnsed of three individuals de51gnated by
Avantair’s stockholders and four individuals designated by Old Avantair’s stockhotders, one of which is subject 1o the approval of .

- Avantair’s stockholders. In addition, Old Avantair’s management is responsible for carrying out the Company’s current business plan.

As a result, this transaction has been treated as a Reverse Merger, and a capital transaction, equivalent to the issuance of stock by Old
Avantair for Avantair’s net assets and, accordingly, the historical financial statements prior to February 22, 2007 are those of Old
Avantair. All shares and per share data prior to the Share Exchange have been restated to reflect the stock issuances and the effect of
the closing of the Share Exchange including the recognition of 8,400,000 shares of Ardent common stock outstanding as of the closing
of the Share Exchange. Upon the closing of the Share Exchange, 1,601,593 shares of the Company’s common stock included within
the purchase price have been transferred to an escrow agent to secure indemnification obligations of the Company’s stockholders
under the stock purchase agreement. Such shares will be released from escrow within 45 days of the Company filing this;Form 10-K
for the year ended June 30, 2008. . :

Avantair is engaged in the sale and management of fractional ownerships of professionally piloted atrcraft for personal and
business use. As of June 30, 2008, Avantair operated 49 aircraft (which includes 5 core aircraft), with 60 additional. Piaggio aircraft on
order. Avantair operates fixed flight based operations (FBO) in Camarillo, California and effective August 1, 2008, in Caldwell, New
Jersey. The Company also provrdes aircraft maintenance, concierge and other services to custoimers and services to the Avantalr ﬂeet
from hangars and office locations in Clearwater, Flonda Camarillo, Cahf‘omta and Caldwell, New Jersey. ‘
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The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern. This basis of accounting contemplates the successful recovery of the Company’s assets and the satisfaction of its liabilities in
the normal course of business. As of June 30, 2008, the Company’s recurring losses resulting in an accumutated deficit of $76,967,468
and a working capital deficiency of $30,152,511. In order to achiéve profitable income from operations before depreciation and
amortization, management currently estimates that the Company will need to have 45 fully fractionalized aircraft. At June 30, 2008,
the Company had 41.3 fractmnahzed aircraft. Therefore, Avantalr s primary growth strategy is to continue to increase the number of
fractional share owners and aircraft under management. The Company believes incomefrorm operations before depreciation and
amortization is useful to mvestors as it exclides non-cash expenses that do not directly relate to the operation of fractionalized aircraft.
This measure is a supplement to generally accepted accounting prmc1p]es (GAAP) used to prepare the Company s consolidated
financial statements and should not be viewed as a substitute for GAAP measures. [n addition, the Company’s$ non-GAAP measure
may not be comparable to non-GAAP measures of other companies. Income from operations according to GAAP would include
depreciation and amortization expense, estimated to be approximately $330,000 per month at the time of fully fractionalizing the 45
aircraft. In connection with future ﬁnanemg of growth, the Company may obtain additional funds through equity financing, including
the sale of additional shares of common stock, assets sales, accelerated payments of maintenance and management fees, debt
financing, or @ combination thereof. Durmg the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the Company raised net proceeds of $14 4 million
through an equity offering detailed in Note 11, $2.5 million from the sale of the Company’s righits to putchase eighteen Embraer
Phenom 100 aircraft, and approximately $6.9 million of cash through accelerated payments of management fees. With this capital, the
Company has sufficient cash to continue its operations for the forseeable future.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES S
Principles of Consolidation = -+ : C ST A
) . . i . i
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, and have
been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. All material intercompany

accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates’ - : s S o : N

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements
and accompanying disclosures. These estimates and assumptions are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions that the Company may take in the future. The Company is subject to uncertainties such as the impact of future events,
economic, environmental and political factors and changes in the Company’s business environment; therefore, actual results could
differ from thése estimates: Accordingly, the accounting estimates used in the preparation of the Company’s financial statements will
change as new events occur, as more experience is acquired, as additional information is-obtained and as the Company’s operating
environment changes. Changes in estimates are made when circumstances warrant. Such changes in estimates and refinements in-
estimation methodologies are reflected in reported results of operations; if material, the effects of changes in estimates are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. Significant estimates and assumptions by management affect: the proper recording of revenue
arrangements with multiple deliverables; the allowance for doubtful accounts, the carrying value of long-lived assets, the amortization
period of lorig-lived assets, the provns:on for (beneﬁt from) income taxes and rclated deferred tax accounts certam accrued expenses
and contmgenc1es and ablllty to continue as a going concen.

.

T v -

Cash and Cash Equivalents. ~
~ Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and highly liquid investment grade investments held with financial institutions,

with maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Cash- resmcted , L ,

+

The Company agreed to restrict $2,826,290 in cash at June 30, 2008 and $2,942,983 in cash at June 30, 2007, to secure
letters of credit related to deposits for leases, provide security for credit card charge backs and to secure fuel purchases. Management
beligves that these amounts will be restricted for at least one year and, accordingly, has classified such cash as non-current.

Revenue Recognition SR o T

The Company sells fractional shares of aircraft and the related maintenance and management services that accompany
aircraft ownership. The aircrafts are sold in 1/16th shares or multiples thereof. The purchase agreement grants the customer the right to
the use of the aircraft for a specified number of hours each year the aircraft is in service. When a customer purchases a fractional
share, they are also required to enter into a five-year management and maintenance agreement. Under the terms of the maintenance
and management agreement, the Company agrees to manage, operate and maintain the aircraft on behalf of the customer in exchange
for a fixed monthly fee.
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Fractional Aircraft Snares

The Company does not have objective evidence to determine the fair value and locate fractional share revenue from that
generated from the management and maintenance agreement, and, as a result, has adopted the provisions of the Emerging Issues Task
Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 00-21 “Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables” to account for the sale of
fractional shares of aircraft. Accordingly, as the sales of the fractional shares cannot be separated from the underlying maintenance
and management agreement, fractional share sale revenue is recognized ratably over the five-year life of the maintenance and
management agreement. The period in which revenue is recognized will be evaluated on a periodic basis. Factors that impact
management’s assessment of the most appropriate period of revenue recognition will include, but not be limited to, customer turnover,
terms and conditions of the related fractional share sale, maintenance arrangements as well as any other factor that could impact
revenue.

Referral Incentive Hours

The Company accounts for the additional hours g,ranted under the referral incentive program by expensing costs as they are
incurred which have not been material to date. TR

Management and Muintenance Agreement

Revenue earned in connection with the management and maintenance agreements is recognized ratably over the term of the
agreement or five years. If a customer prepays its management and maintenance fee for a period of one year or longer, the prepayment
is recorded as uneamed revenue and amortized into revenue on a monthly baSlS in accordance WIth the schedule provided for w1thm
each agreement.’ - " ' : . : S

Charter Card and Demonstration Revenue

. , - . ’ . i . b . '

Demonstration revenue. The Company charges prospective new aircraft share owners on an hourly basis for each hour the
prospective share owners are flown to demonstrate the quality and capabilities of the aireraft. The Company recognizes revenue
related to these demonstration flights when the flight is completed.

Charter-Card revenue. The Company sells access to its aircraft fleet through a 25 hour time card for flight time*without the
requirement to purchase an ownership share in an aircraft. The card holder pays the Company the entire amount in advance of access
to the aircraft fleet. The Company defers the entire amount paid and recognizes revenue on an incremental basis as aircraft are flown.

FBO and Other Revenue

FBO and other revenue is comprised primarily of revenue from the sale of fuel at the Company’s FBO facilities and rental of
hangar space at the Company’s operating locations. This revenue is recorded when goods are delivered or services have been
rendered. : Lot . . G

Aircraft Costs Related To Fractional Sales -

The Company reflects aircraft costs related to the sale of fractional aircraft shares. As a result of the adoption of EITF 00-21,
the Company recognizes revenue from the sale of fractional shares as income over the five-year period, The aircraft costs related to
sales of fractional shares consist of the cost of the alrcraft and are recorded as an asset and recogmzed as the cost of aircraft shares
sold over the five-year penod :

Muaintenance Policv ‘ o . o

! LI

The Company uses the dlrect method of accountmg for scheduled non-refurbishment maintenance checks. The
refurbishment portion of the maintenance check is capitalized since the interior of the aircraft is substantially refurbished and the life
of the aircraft is extended. The cost of refurbishment is amortized over a three-year period. The direct method of accounting for
overhaul costs is also used and these costs are expensed as incurr=d.

Accounts Receivable . C -

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount managernent expects to collect from outstanding balances. The Company
provides an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated uncollectible amounts. The Company’s estimate is based on
historical collection experience and a review of the current status of trade accounts receivable. - L

b

F3




Information relatéd to the activity of the allowance for doubtful accounts is as follows:

. _ ' June 30,
o L _ 2008 2007
Beginning balance =~ 38 460,377 % 600,000
Prior year accounts receivable reserved and recovered in ..
current year o ) _ _ (150,000 -
Bad debt expense o ) ) 21,109 -
Writc-offs , o ) (117,999 (139,623)
‘Endmg balance _ . _ $ 213487 § 460,377

Management believes that they have adequately provided for uncollectible receivables in the Company’s allowance for
doubtful accounts,

Prepaid Pilot Training

Beginning in 2008, the costs related to the training of pilots as required by Federal Aeronautic Regulations are capitalized
and amortized over the twelve month certification period. These costs were expensed in prior years. This change did not have a
material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operation as of and for the two years ended June 30, 2008.

Customer Deposits

Customer deposits are cash payments received from customers who have purchased a fractional interest in an aircraft where
that specific aircraft is not avallab]e for dehvery

Advertising Costs )
Advertising costs are cxpensed as incurred and totaled $2,260,782 and $2,040,804 for the years ended June 30, 2008 and
2007, respectively.. .

Inventory
Adrcraft parts inventory is valued at the lower of cost (determined by the first-in, first-out method) or market.
Deferred Rent

The aggregate of minimum annual operating lease payments are expensed on a straight-line basis over the term of the related
leases. The amount by which straight-line rent differs from actual lease payments is recognized as deferred rent totaled $2,034,362 and
'$959,001 at June 30, 2008 and 2007 respectively, and is included in other liabilities.

Income Taxes

- Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes.” Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between
the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilitics and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax
credit carryforwards, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income 1n the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in 1ax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment daie. A valuation allowance is cstabllshed to
reduce deferred tax assets to the amounls expected to be realized. .

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for share-based compensation to employees and directors in accordance with SFAS 123(R) *Share-
Bascd Payment,” which requires the recognition of compensation expense for employee stock options and other sharc-based
payments. Under SFAS 123(R), expense related to employee stock options and other share-based payments is recognized over the
relevant service period-based on the'fair value of each stock option grant. The stock option compensation expense was approximately
$151,000 for the year ended June 30, 2008. The Company issued 22,500 shares of restricted common stock to certain members of its
Executive Officers in June 2008 and 15,000 shares of restricted common stock to the non-employee members of its Board of Directors
in March 2008, One-third (1/3) of the 22,500 shares awarded in June 2008 will vest on the first anniversary date of grant and"then one-
twelfth (1/12) on the date three months after the first anniversary date of the grant and on such date every three months thereafter, such
that 100% of the shares will be vested on the third anniversary date so long as employment with the Company is continuous. One-third
(1/3) of the 15,000 shares awarded in March 2008 will vest on each date of the next three annual shareholders meetings at which
directors are elected and so long as the recipient remains a member of the Board of Directors, Compensation expense related to this
restricted stock is recognized ratably over the three years based on the fair value of the shares at date of grant, which was $1.94 and
$3.95 at June 30, 2008 and March 5, 2008, respectively. The compensation expense from restricted stock was approximately $333,000
for the year ended June 30, 2008. The Company did not issue warrants during the year ended June 30, 2008,




Accounting for Derivative Instruments

The Company accounts for derivative instruments in accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedzing Activities,”-as amended, which establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and
hedging activities, including certain derivative instruments imbedded in other financial instruments or contracts. The Company also
considers the EITF 00-19, “Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to and Potentially Settled in, a Company’s Own
Stock,” which provides criteria for determining whether freestanding contracts that are settled in a company’s own stock, including
common stock warrants,.should be designated as either an equity instrument, an asset or as a liability under SFAS No. 133. The
Company evaluates the conversion feature embedded in its Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (see Note 11 to the audited
consolidated financizl statements) at each reporting period based on the criteria of SFAS No. 133 and E{TF 00-19 to determine
whether the conversion feature would be required to be bifurcated from the Preferred Stock and accounted for separately as a
derivative. Based on management’s evaluation, the embedded conversion- feature did not requtre bifurcation and derivative
accounting as of‘.lum, 30, 2008. t

v
- T e o

Lt ) '

Goodwill and Long-lived A csets _ i Lt

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fair value of net assets acquired through acquisitions. In accordance with SFAS
No. 141, Business Combinations, all business combinations must be accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. SFAS
No, 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, eliminates the amortization of goodwill and certain other intangible assets and
requires an evaluation of impairment by applying a fair-value based test. The goodwill impairment test is a two-step process, which
requires management to make Judgmems in determining what assumptlons to use in the calculation. The first step of the process
consists of estimating the fair value of the Company’s reporting umts based on discounted cash flow models using revenue and profit
forecasts and comparing the estimated fair values with the carrymg values of the Company’s reporting units which include the
goodwill. If the estimated fair values are less than the carrying values, a second step is performed to compute the amount of the
impairment by determining an “implied fair value” of goodwill. The determination of the Company’s “implied fair value” requires the
Company to allocate the estimated fair value to the assets and liabilities of the reportmg unit. Any unallocated fair value represents the

“implied fair value” of goodwill, which is compared to the corresponding carrymg value.

The Company performs its annual goodwill lmpalrmem testing, in the fourth quarter of each year, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that goodwill may be impaired. The Company performed its annual evaluation during
June 2008 by comparing the product of the trading price as of June 3@, 2008 and the Company’s outstanding shares of common stock
on that date.

Application of the goodwill 1mpa|rment test requires significant Judgments including estlmanon of future cash ﬂows which
is dependent on internal forecasts, estimation of the long-term rate of growth for the Company, estimation of aircraft in use, the useful.
life over which cash flows will occur, and determination of cost of capnal Changes in these estimates and assumptions could
materially affect the determmauon of fair value and/or conclusions on goodwill impairment. :

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accoummg for Impalrment or Dlsposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the Company reviews
long-lived assets to be held-and-used for i lmpalnnent whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carTying amount
of the assets may not be recoverable. If the carrying amount of & an asset exceeds its esnmated future undiscounted cash flows the asset
is considered to be impaired. Impairment losses are measured as the amount by which the carrymg amount of the asset exceeds the fair
value of the asset.
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in preparing its impairment analysis the Company derives fair value based on two approaches:

. . -+ Market prices. At June 30, 2008, the quoted market for Avantair’s common stock was $1.94 a share with
o 15,220,817.shares outstanding gwmg the Company a tota] market capltahzauon of apprommately $29.5
Tt mllllon BRI .
: : ' . L L oo .
. : : Cash flow projections. Certain key- asqumptlons used in preparmg the cash flow projections,
o mcluded ‘o b o
., - . The overall basis for management’s cash flow assumptions and conclusions are based on the fact that .
the Company’s revenue is contractual and therefore management can predict future management fee
revenues with some certainty. The model is based on the premise that for every plane sold the
Company will increase management fees by an agreed upon amount per plane.-When the Company
gets to a certain aircraft fleet size, the management fee income will then exceed all fixed and variable
costs.

e

J " The Company has a commitment from 1ts alrcraf't manufacturer for the dellvery of 9 planes in the
' " next 12 months and management beheves it will f:ully sell the fractional shares with respect to those
planes prior to or contemporaneous with the receipt of the planes which would produce a cash flow
improvement. 1 :

\ . B N ‘l
I .t ‘ ' ' ) ’ : 1
‘ ' ' R I
As a result of the ana]y51s no impairment charges were requlred for long-lwed assets durmg the years ended June 30, 2008

and 2Q07

. N

Loss Per Share"

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing loss available to common stockholders by the weighted average common
shares outstanding for the period. Diluted eamings per share reflects the potential dilution that could oceur if securities or other
contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock or resulted in thé issuance of common stock that then
shared in the earnings of the entity. Since the effect of outstanding options and warrants is antidilutive due to the losses incurred by the
Company, they have been excluded from the Company’s computation of nét loss per share for all years presented. A total of
14,496,834 of potentially dilutive securities were excluded from the calculation of diluted loss per share for the year ended June 30,
2008 and were comprised of 14,146,000 warrants to purchase one share of” the Company s common stock 200,834 shares of restricted
stock and 150, 000 outstandmg options. The total number of potentially dilutivé sécutities excluded from the calculation of diluted loss
per share for the year ended June 30, 2007 was 14,510 ,000 which were comprised 0f'14,146 000 warrants to purchase one share of the
Company’s common stock, 214,000 shares of restricted stock and 150,000 outstanding optiotis.

Property and Equipment

‘ Property and equipment is recorded at cost and consists principally of aircraft purchased which are not fractionalized and
which provide additional capacity to the Company to meet customer demand. Depreciation and amortization is computed usmg the
straight-line method over the following useful lives: »

Aircraft ) 7 years

Office equipment and furniture and fixtures 5 - 7 years
Flight management software/hardware 5 years
Vehicles 5 years
Improvements Lesser of estimated useful life

or the term of the lcase

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs of property and equipment are expensed as incurred. Major improvements are
capitalized.
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The Company capitalized interest costs relating to borrowings made for the acquisition of aircraft. The amounts capitalized
are as follows;

¢ LY . ' i e

. o S S o 2008 ) 2007 )
Total interest costs_ I L8 3661227 % 3,952,087
Less: amount capitalized . ) — 545,907 :
Interest expense R S _$ 3,661,227 § 3,406,180 |

Recently Issued Prenouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” This statement establishes a single
authoritative definition of fair value, sets out a framework for measuring fair value, and requires additional disclosures about fair-
value measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value as “the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date”, For the Company, SFAS No. 157 is effective for the
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2008. Management is currently evaluating this standard to determine its impact, if any, on our
consolidated financial statements. :

On February 15, 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities - Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” This standard permits an entity to measure financial mstruments
and certain other items at estimated fair value. Most of the provisions of SFAS No. 159 are elective; however, the amendment to
FASB No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity-Securities;” applies to all entities that own trading and
available-for-sale sccurities. The fair value option created by SFAS No. 159 permifs an entity to measure eligible items at fair value as
of specified election dates. The fair value option (a) may generally be applied instrument by instrument, (b) is irrevocable unless a
new election date occurs, and (c) must be applied to the entire instrument and not to enly a portion of the instrument. For the
Company, SFAS No. 159 is effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2008 Management is curremly evaluatmg the impact of
SFAS No. 159, if any, on our consolidated ﬁnancml statements.. & Co .t . "

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS 'No. 141 (rev1sed 2007y, "Busmess Combmatlons" (“SFAS 141”) SFAS 141
requires an acquirer to measure the identifiable assets acquired, the, liabilities assumed and any non- controlling interest in the acquiree
at their fair values on the acquisition date, with goodwill being the excess value over the net 1dent1ﬁable assets acquired. SFAS 141
also requires the fair value measnrement of certain other assets and llabllltles related to the. acqu151t10n such as, confingencies. SFAS
141 applies prospectwely to business combinations and is effective for fiscal 'years beginning on or after December 15, 2008,
Management is curcently evaiualmg the impact that SFAS 141 will have on the accounting for future acquisitions and our consolidated
financial statements. . S . B

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, "Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated ‘Financial Statements™
(“SFAS 1607™). SFAS 160 requires that a non-controlling interest in a subsidiary be reported as equity in the consolidated financial
statemnents. Consolidated net income should include the net income for both the parent and the non-controlling interest with disclosure
of both amounts on the consolidated statement of income. The presentation provisions of SFAS 160 are to be applied retrospectively,
and SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15; 2008. Management is currenlly evaluatmg the impact
that SFAS 160 will have on our consolidated financial statements. "

No other pronouncements have been recently issued that Avantair believes will have a material impact on‘Avantair’s
financial position and results of operations.

NOTE 3 - CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK

a2

The Company acquires all of its aircraft from one supplier and is dependent on that supplier for timely delivery of its
airplanes. Any dlsruptlon in the delivery of these airptanes would cause the Company to incur significant costs without the benefit and
the cash flow it reczives from its customers.

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principalty of cash and
cash equivalents, The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposits, the balances of which, at times; may exceed
federally insured limits. Exposure to credit risk is reduced by placing such deposits in high credit quality financial institutions. At
June 30, 2008, the Company had cash and cash equivatents-in excess of federally insured limits of $23,550,357.
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NOTE 4 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT . -

Property and equipment, stated at cost as of June 30, 2008 and 2007 consisted of the following:

e } - o ) 2008 2007
Atrcraft _ L o 3 27,300,707 % 16,824,050 .
Leasehold 1mprovements‘ B . o . - 4,235476 ‘ 12,267451
Furniture, fixtures and equrpment o X ) 1,199,528 1,357,037 !
Fltght management software/hardware o 1,516,826 541,649 i
Vehicles 50,823 44817
Towl o e . 34303360 . 21035004
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (8,640,096) (5,654, 306)
- A Lo 8251663064 ° 8

15,380,608~

¢

Deprecranon and ariortization expense for the years ended June 30 2008 and 2007 was $3,624,710 and $2 013,530,
respectively.

NOTE 5~ RELATED > PARTY TRANSACTIONS B T
1] . l ° .

The followmg isa summary of transactions entered into durmg the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, to which we have
been a party in and in which any of our executive officers, directors or-beneficial holders of more than 5% of our capital stock had or
will have a direct or indirect material interest, other than compensatlon an‘angements -

) I

Effective April 11, 2008 the Company s former Chlef Ftnancnal Off' icer departed the Company and resn,ned his position as
a director of the Company. In connection with the former Chief Financial Officer’s departure on April 14, 2008, the Company entered
into a separation agreement pursuant to which the former Chief Financial Officer will receive (i) a payment equal to eight months
salary ($183,333), (ii) reimbursement of premium payments ‘for' COBRA benefits until the carlier of a period of eight (8) months
commencing April 14, 2008 or at such time that the former Chief Financial Officer obtains employthent providing health benefits and
(iii) pitrsudnt to an amendment to his previously issued restricted stock award, 33,334 shares of common stock. In addition, the former
Chief Financial Officer has agreed not to transfer any shares of the Company s common stock for a period of six (6) months
commencing April 14, 2008. At the end of the six (6) morith period, the former Chief Financial Officer’s unrestricted shares shail be
freely tradable in the opén market, subject to the Company’s “Right of First Refusal” and in compliance with applicable securities law.”
In addition, the former Chief Financial Officer has agreed to cooperate fully with the Company’s reasonable requests for assistance in
transitioning his previous responsibilities for a period of eight (8) menths.commencing April 14, 2008.

On March 5, 2008, Avantatr granted 3, 000 shares of restrtcted stock to each of Barry Gordon Arthur Goldberg, Stephanie
Cuskley, Robert Lepofsky and A. Clinton Allen. Each of these individuals is a dtrector of Avantair. The shares of restricted stock

- granted to the directors’ vest one third upon each of the next.3 successive annual meetings of stockholders, Sl.lb_]CCl to the grantee’s
continued service on the Board of Directors.

NOTE 6 — INCOME TAXES

The difference between income tax benefit provided at the Company’s effective rate and the statutory rate at June 30, 2008
and 2007 are as follows: :

el L2008

2007 )
Income tax benefit at statutory rate 3 6,608,723 § 8,194,626.
’State tax benefit, net of Federat beneﬁtr . L §62,373 648,484 .

Increase in valuation allowance
Other

©(7,123,389)

@1.70m

(8,843,110)

Totals . 7 ) 5

- §
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets-and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company $

deferred tax assets (liabilities) at June 30, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

Deferred tax ligbilities
Goodwill
Depreciation

- Other -

Deferred tax assets

W

Deferre 1 revenues, net of amortized aircraft costs related to fractional

share sales
Other B

Net operating loss canyforwards

Less valuation allowance

Net deferred tax assets

2008 2007
S (144547) $  (115637)
N _(1,798,582) (826,738)
o (75,792) . . -
(2,018,921) {942,375) -
o A3TLT90 6579939
e M190382 0 ST2.876
) 25,653,733 15,863,155
31,215,905 . 23,015,970
) (29,196.984) (22,073,595)
. 2,018,921 942,375
3 - -

The Company considers that the cumulative losses incurred create a rebuttable presumption that a full valuation allowance
| continues to be required for its déferred tax assets. Therefore, the Company has offset the deferred tax assets attributable to those
‘ potential benefits through a valuation allowance in 2008 and 2007 and, accordingly, the Company did not recognize any benefit from
| income taxes in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. At June 30, 2008, the Company had net operating loss

 carryforwards of approximately $67.5 million which begin to expire in 2019.

‘ Upon the completion of the Reverse Merger, the Company became subject to Section 382 of the IRS Code relating to a
- change in ownership. Accordingly, utilization of the net operating loss carryforward will be subject to substantial annual limitation
due to the ownershp change limitations provided by the IRS Code of 1986, as amended, and similar state provisions. The annual
limitation will result in the expiration of the net operating loss before utilization.

Effectwe July 1, 2007, the Company adopted the provisions of the FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty .
in Income Taxes-an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48”). There were no unrecognized tax benefits as of July 1,
2007 or as of Junz 30, 2008. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and a measurement attribute for the financial statement
recognition and me¢asurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, For those benefits to be recognized, a tax
position must be more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. The Company has identified its federal

tax return and State of Florida tax return as “major” tax jurisdictions, as defined in FIN 48. The Company evaluations were performed
for tax years ended 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008. The Company .believes that its income tax positions and deductions would be

penalties were incurred at June 30, 2008 and 2007.

4

Information rclated to the activity of the valuation allowance is as follows:

June 30, a :

sustained on audit and does not anticipate any adjustments that would result in a material change to its consolidated financial position.
The Company recognizes accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax beneﬁts as income tax expense..No interest and

B _ o o i 2008 i 2007
Begmmng balance o ) 3 22073595 § 13,230,485
Increase in valuation a]]owance o o B 7,123,389 8,843, 110 _‘
Ending balance ' 3 29,196984 § 22,073,595
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NOTE 7 - COMMITMENTS AND C()NTINGENCIES
Lease Commitmenis

"The Company conducts a major part of its operations from leased facilities, which include airplane hangars and
administrative offices. The 15 year hangar lease in Clearwater, Florida expiring in 2020 is classified as an operating lease. The lease
provides for rent allocation credits for the first three years. These credits have been netted in rental expense on a straight line basis
over the term of the lease. The Company also has a 15 year lease for its fixed based operation in Camarillo, California expiring in
2021, which is cl_assiﬁed as an operating lease. '

Most of the operating leases contain an option to renew at the then fair rental value for periods of five to ten years. These |
options enable the Company to retain use of facilities in desirable operating areas.

In addmon, the Company leases transponatlon equipment and data processing equipment under operating leases expiring
during the next three years.

Total rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 was $2,665,797 and $2,420,466, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments on these leases are:

Year Ended June 30, Tl S -
2009 , , ' , . $ 3216 974
2010 . PR S 3,245,430
2011 e - 3240259
2012 _ _ ~ 2508376
2013 e 2M19888
Thereafter _ - S ' 120,445,019

§ 35075916

Purchase Commitment

On June 20 2008, Avantalr aSS|gned its nghts and obligations to purchase twenty Embraer Phenom 100 aircraft positions to.

Share 100 Holding Co., LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Avantair. On the same date, Avantair entered into a membership interest
purchase agreement with Executive Air Shares Corporation (EAS), in which EAS purchased the Class A membership of Share 100
and Avantair retained the Class B membership. EAS, as Class A member, has the rights and obligations to purchase the Phenom 100
aircraft with positions one through eighteen and to fund payment due in connection with these aircraft. EAS paid Share 100
approximately $2.47 million in connection with these transactions and will make an additional $750,000 capital contribution to Share
100 on or before December 1, 2008, all of which has or will be, respectively, immediately distributed to Avantair. Avantair, as Class B
member, has the rights and obligations to purchase aircraft positions nineteen and twenty-and to fund payment due in connection with
these aircraft. EAS has the option to purchase air¢raft nineteen and twenty, which must be exercised by October 1, 2010; if exercised,
EAS shall reimburse Avantair for all payments made relative to these aircraft and provide all remaining funds required. In the event

that EAS does not exercise the optionto purchase aircrafts nineteen and twenty by Gctober 1, 2010, Avantair will have the right and
" obligation to purchase the nineteenth and twentieth aircraft. 1f EAS defaults under its obligations to purchase the aircraft positions,
EAS will forfeit all deposits paid for the undelivered aircraft, including the funds distributed to Avantair. Avantair will then be
responsible for the rights and obligations of the remaining undelivered aircraft. If Avantair defaults under its obligations to purchase
the last two aircrafl positions, any deposits paid by Avantair in connection with the undelivered Class B Aircraft w1|l be forfelted

As of June 30, 2008, the Company has agreed to purchase 60 additional Avanti Il P-180 aircraft from Plagglo America. The
total commitment is approximately $349 million to be delivered through fiscal 2013.
Litigation !
From time to time the Company is party to various legal proceedings in the normal course of business involving principally
commercial charter party disputes. It is expected that these claims would be covered by insurance if they involve liabilities that arise
from collision, other casualty, death or personal injuries to crew, subject to customary deductibles. Those claims, even if lacking
merit, could result in the expenditure of significant financial and managerial resources. At June 30, 2008, there were no legal
proceedings which outside counsel anticipates'would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.
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NOTE 8 - CAPITAL LEASE TRANSACTIONS

The Company entered into a sale and leaseback agreement, dated August 11,2006, with IMMS, LLC. Under the sale and
leaseback agreement, the Company sold 100% of its interest in a core-aircraft for $4.2-million and leased back 68.8% of the-aircraft
for a five year term. The proceeds of the sale and leaseback arrangeiment were used to pay down the line of credit with CNM, Inc. In~
March 2007, the Company amended the lease agreement to include a provision for the Conipany to buy back the aircraft at the
expiration of the term, As a result of the amendment, the Compan¥ has accounted for the salé and Icaseback transaction as a'finance
lease in accordance with SFAS Nos. 13 and 98 “Accountmg for Leases A -

On October 10, 2007 Avantair acquired a'core aircraft under a capital Iease obligation wnh eMldSOUll‘l Serv:ces Inc. -Under
the lease agreement, Midsouth provided funding for the $4.7 million purchase of a pre-awned Piaggio. P-180 aircraft and holds title to
the Aircraft. Midsouth leases the Aircraft exclusively to Avantair on a five year lease at 15% interest per annum. The monthly lease
payments for the term of the lease are $89,000. At the end of the five year lease, Avantair shall purchase the Aircraft from Midsouth
at the guaranteed resiclual value in the amount of approximately $2.3 million. Avantair also has the Option to purchase the Aircraft
anytime during the lease term at the then current guaranteed residual value as set forth on the amortization schedulc without penalty.

The Capltal lease obhganon 1§ compnsed of the fol]owmg

2009 - - ] o ) % - 1,542,000

2010 I e e i o 1,542,000
2011 L L N ' ) 1,542,000
2012 o o . S o _ 5,347,000
2013 . ) L o 2,736,693
Total mlmmum payments o 7', L .;_ __ o _'I L _‘ i o ) 12,709,69_3‘
Less amount presentmg interest o o 7 _ o 3,739,569 .
Present value of minimum lease payments . - Lo g 8,970,124

’ ' o

The capital lease obliga'tion is included in notes pé_yable in the_accémpanying consolidated balance sheets.

NOTE 9 - SHORT-TERM NOTES PAYABLE

CNM, Inc. : AR B

On October 2, 2006, the Company and CNM and its principal stockholders entered into a revolving credit agreement (the
“Agreement”) that provides for the Company to borrow $7,600,000 from CNM. This borrowing was conditional on the execution of a*
definitive stock purchase agreement with a public company, which eccurred on October 2, 2006, The parties also agreed that upon the
completion of the stock purchase agreement and approval of.the proposed acquisition by the.public company shareholders, the
Company would repay a minimum of $19,000,000 of the borrowmgs under the revolving credit agréement. Per the terms of the
Agreement, upon the: completion of the Reverse Merger the Company repaid approximately $19,000,000 of the borrowings under the
revolving credit agreement with CNM.

In addition, upon the execution of the stock purchase agreement, the outstanding balance after repayment of the
$19,000,000, which may be no more than $10,000,000, will be converted into a term loan payable quarterly over three years and
bearing interest at 1% per annum. The borrowings under the arrangement were collateralized by a first priority lien and security
interest in all of the Company’s assets.

Under the agreement, the Company also has agreed to provide the principal stockholder of CNM 100 hours of use of its
aircraft over the three-year period. The fair value of aircraft usage of approximately $200,000 was accrued and will be amortized to
interest expense over the term of the remaining debt under a method that will produce a constant periedic rate of return. ln the year
ended June 30, 2008, CNM used approximately 45 hours at an internal cost of $47,250.

In August 2007, the Company and CNM executed a new note agreement which converted an outstanding note obligation of
approximately $7,000,000 into a term loan payable monthly over three years and bearing interest at 10% per annum. CNM also
assumed a promissory note due to Wells Fargo Bank for $2,900,000 which was included as part of this new note agreement. The
Company accounted for this conversion in accordance w:th EITF Issue No. 98-14, “Debtor’s Accounting for Changes in Line-of-
Credit or Revolving-Debt Arrangements.”
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Midsouth Services, Inc

On October 3, 2007, the Company entered into a floor plan agreement with Midsouth Services, Inc. (“Midsouth™) which
provides for up to approximately $5.1 million of financing for aircraft to be acquired from Piaggio America, Inc, extended on a
month-to-month basis from April 2008 and repaid on July 2008..Effective March 3, 2008, the Company entered into a second floor
plan agreement with Midsouth that provides for up to $5.3 million of financing for aircraft to be acquired from Piaggio America, Inc.
for the six month period commencing with the first delivery of aircraft under the plan. Each agreement requires a $75,000 monthly
facility fee with payment of any outstanding borrowings due in full prior to taking delivery of additional aircraft. Midsouth also
agreed, at the option of the Company, to provide an additional loan in the amount of $5.3 million, with terms and conditions of the

. additional loan substantially similar to the terms of the March 2008 loan, upon expiration of the October 3, 2007 floor plan agreement.

Borrowings outstanding under these arrangements at June 30, 2008 totaled approximately $10.5 million.

- Subsequently, on July 31, 2008, Avantair, Inc. (the '.’Company"j entered into two new Floor Plan Finance Agreements (each,

an “Agreement” and collectively "the Agreements"), pursuant to which MidSouth Services, Inc. has agreed to extend credit to the
Company in an amount not to exceed $5,345,000 under each Agreement ($10,6%0,000 in total for the Agreements), for an initial term
of three (3) months for each Agreement. Indebtedness under the Agreements will be used by the Company to fund the purchase of
new Piaggio P-180 aircraft. The Company shall have the sole option to renew the Agreements for three (3) consecutive additional one
(1) month terms at the expiration of the initial term. The effective dates of the two Agreements are July 31, 2008, and August 1, 2008,
respectively. The Company has agreed to pay to the Lender a monthly fee of $75,000 under each Agreement.

In connection with the entry into the Agreements, on July 31, 2008, the Company terminated the prior Floor Plan Finance

- Agreements dated March 3, 2008 and October 3, 2007 between the Company and Midsouth.

Century Bank, F.S.B.

‘On May 29, 2008 the Company entered into a Promissory Note (*Note™) with Century Bank, F.S.B. (“Lender”), pursuant to
which Lender agreed to provide financing to the company in the amount of $5,200,000 to be used towards the purchase of a new
Piaggio P-180 aircrafi. The Company paid the following fees for the Note: (1) $37,500 on the effective date of the Note and (2)
$75,000 on the 30th day of the each month thereafter until repayment in full of the principal amount of the Note (“Term™). The
Principal amount of the Note was to be paid in full within 120 days from the Effective Date of the Note. The Company was to make
partial payments to Lender in $325,000 increments upon the closing of each fractional interest and Lender shall provide partial lien
releases as to the respective fractional interests sold. Additionally, the Company paid a fee of $52,000 at the time of repayment in full
of the principal amount of the Note, constituting a fee a 1% of the principal amount. If repayment was made in full within 20 days
after the effective date of this Note, the fee was to be reduced to $26,000, constituting a fee of 0.5% of the principal amount.

In July 2008, the Company repaid the full amount of the Promissory Note (“Note™) with Century Bank , F.S.B. (“Lender”).
The Company paid the following fees for the Note: (1) $37,500 on the effective date of the Note and (2} $75,000 on the 30 th day of
the each month thereafter until repayment in full of the principal amount of the Note (“Term”). Per the terms of the agreement, the
Note was Lo be paid in full within 120 days from the Effective Date of.the Note. Additionally, the Company was to also pay a fee of
$52,000 at the time of repayment in full of the principal amount of the Note, constituting a fee of 1 % of the principal amount.
However, as the Company repaid the note in full in July 2008 (within 90 days after the effective date of the note), the fee was reduced

.to 0.5% of the principal amount or $26,000.
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NOTE 10 — LONG TERM NOTES PAYABLE

Long-term r.otes payable consists of thé following as of June 30, 2008 and 2007:

Weils Fargo Equipmet Finance, Inc. N o L % 3488042 § 7267244
CNM, Inc. o S o i - 6,968,036 2,10i,969;
{Je_t-_Support Services, Inc. ) S o 5461540 2,043,727
Bank'of America * v ' Lt T 2,176,040
JMMS, Inc. o o L . 4347058 4383878
Cenwry Bank, FSB L o 2,082804 - -
WachoviaBank . . %sasia 0 —
Midsouth Services, I R A L S 4,622,121 o —
v oL o305044ts 22,972,858
_ Less current portion - - o o i ' (6,648,093) (4,412,288)
vch)ng—tf,r‘m debt e e e e e e b 23,856,322 § 18,560,570

Wells Fargo Equipment Finance, !ﬁc._. ‘ , ) - : . a e I . .

In February 2005, the Company entered into financing arrangements for the purchase of three aircraft under various notes
payable with Wells Fargo Equipment Finance, Inc. In January 2008, the Company sold one of these aircraft and repaid the outstanding’
balance on the related note payable. The notes outstanding at June 30, 2008 in the amount of $3,488,042 are payable in monthly
installments ranging fiom $10,644 to $38 480 with mterest rangmg from 5 96% to 6. 12% per annum, through 2012. The notes are
coliateralized by the aircraft. '

CNM Inc

In August2007, the Company and CNM, Inc. (“CNM”) exécuted a new note agreement which converted an outstanding
note obligation of approximately $7 million into a term loan payable monthly over three years and bearing interest at 10% per annum.
CNM also assumed a promissory note due to Wells Fargo Bank for $2,900,000 which was included as part of this new note
agreement. CNM, Inc paid off the 32,500,000 promissory note to Wells Fargo Bank on December 7, 2007. The Company accounted
for this conversion in accordance with EITF Issue No. 98-14, “Debtor’s Accounting for Changes in Line-of-Credit or Revolving-Debt.
Arrangements.” No adjustments to the consolidated financial statements were necessary as a result of such modification.

Jet Support Services, Inc

On April 24, 2006, Avantair financed an aircraft maintenance program contract with Jet Support Services, Inc. (“JSSI”) in
the amount of $3.4 million. The promissory note provides for seven monthly installments of $145,867 and 53 monthly installments of
$45,867, respectively, including interest at 7% per year. On April 15, 2008, the Company entered into a payment arrangement with
JSSI by means of a $5.5 million promissory note. The note matures on April 1, 2011 and bears interest at the rate of 10% per annum,
with 35 monthly payments of principal and interest in an amount of $185,127 beginning on June 2, 2008. The note covers the balance
of the aforementioned $3.4 million promissory note, other costs and fees to be paid by the Company under service agreements with , .
JSSI and related deferred financing costs of approximately $1.0 million which will be amortized over the life of the note using the
effective interest method. Tn connection with the parties entering into this payment arrangement and the $5.5 million promissory note,
the parties terminated the airframe maintenance contract and have agreed to apply the unamortized prepayment under the airframe
maintenance contract to the engine mamtenance program and will amortize thlS amount over the remammg 37 month term of that
program. - : .

In addition, the C;)mpany entered into another payment arrangement with JSSI by means of a $525,000 promissory note
dated July 31, 2008 with five monthly payments of $105,000 commencing August 1, 2008. The note constitutes payment of the
purchase of airframe parts inventory by the Company from JSSI. .
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- Bank of America, Inc.

i

In Jamuary 2007, the Company assumed a term loan totating $2,290,640 from Bank of America in connection with the
acquisition of the outstanding interest in Aircraft Support . The term loan provided for monthly installments of $9,550 plus interest at
LIBOR plus.2% through July 1, 20t 1. The Company subsequently repaid the full amount of the term loan with the execution of a new
note agreement with Century Bank on August 2, 2007 and is detailed below.

| I R .

JMMS, Inc.

On August 11, 2006, the Company entered into a sale and leaseback agreement with IMMS, LLC. The lease transaction has
been accounted for as finance lease under SFAS 13 and provides for monthly payments of $39,500 through .luly 11,2011 (See Noie
&). .

Century Bank, F.S.B.

_ In August 2007, the Company and Century Bank F.S.B executed a $2.2 million note agreement for the purchase of one
aircraft. The note outstanding at June 30, 2008 in the amount of $2,082,805 is payable in monthly mstallments of $27,175 with interest
of 8.25% per annum, through Juiy 1, 2011. The note is collateralized by the aircraft.

Wachovia Bank

On October 31, 2007, the Company entered into a financing arrangement for the phrchase of one used aircrafi at a total
purchase price of approximately $4.5 million (inclusive of the value of a charter card of 100 hours). Financing was obtained from
Wachovia through a note payable of $3.9 million. This debt will be repaid monthly over 7 years at an interest rate of the LIBOR rate
plus 4.0%.

I I R . - R

Midsouth Services, Inc s ‘ : . . .
On October 10, 2007, _t'he Company entered into a sale and leaseback agreerhent with Midsouth Services, Inc. The lease

transaction has been accounted for as finance lease under SFAS 13 and provides for monthly payments of $39,500, through October 1,
2021 (See Note 8).

Future minimum payments on notes payable in years subsequent to June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Year Ended June 30, = . . ) . ' ‘-

000 % 6648093 )

0100 )L .;’__,,‘_.wr,wiw_ﬁ_gM_*_____-___;“_, 7,210,997 .

2010 3536073 |

2002 L 1m0902
B _4SB0I8 e -

T_}frgafter' o _ , L o _ L L 744,172 ’

- s 30504415

NOTE 11 ~ CAPITAL STOCK

General: Qur authorized capital stock will consist of 76.million shares of all classes of capital érock of which 75 million are shares of
common stock, par value, $0 0001 per-share, and 1 million are.shares of preferred stock; par value of $0.0001 per share.

Units: Each unlt consists of'one share of common slock and two warrants, which started trading separately as of the opening
of trading on March 9, 2005. Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of common stock at an exercise pnce of $5.00 per
share. ) . .
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Commen Stock: The holders of shares of our common stock are entitled to one vote for each share on dll matters submitted
to a vote of stockholders and do not have cumulative voting rights. Subject to the preferences and rights, if any, applicable to the
shares of preferred stock, the holders of the shares of common stock are entitled to receive dividends if and when declared by the
Board of Directors. Subject to the prior rights of the holders, if any, of the preferred shares, the holders of our shares of common stock
are entitled to share ratably in any distribution of our assets upon hquidauon dissolution or wmdmg up, aﬂer satlsfactlon of all debts
and other liabilities. ; . ‘

As of June 30, 2008, we have outstanding 15,286,792 shares of common stock. There ate 14,146,000 shares aré reserved on
our books and records for issuance upon the exerdise of outstanding warrants and i issuance of the securities underlying the outstandmg
unit purchase options, if exercised. In addition, 2,951,457 shares are reserved on our books'and records for issuance upon the
conversion of outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock. The rémainiing shigres of authorized and unissued common-stock will be
available for future issuance without additional stockholder approval (subject to applicable securities taws and thé rules of any
securities market or exchange on which our common stock is quoted at the time). While the additional shares are not designed to deter
or prevent a change of control, under some circumstances we could use the additional shates'to create voting, nmpedlmems or to

frustrate persons secking to effect a takeover or otherwise gain control by, for example, lssumg those shares in private placements to .

purchasers who might side with our Boatd of Directors in opposmg a hiastile takéover b1d

Registration of shares: The Company s registration statement on Form S-1 to register 4,540,381 shares sold in connection
with a private placement raising $9 miilion in proceéds and 346,000 warrants and 346,000 shares underlying the warrants issued in
connection with the reverse merger, went effective in October 2007. Costs associated with that registration statement in the amount of
$391,423 were charged to paid-in capital,

Sale of Series A Convertlhle Preferred Stock : On November 14, 2007, the Company entered into a Preferred Stock
Purchase Agreement (the “Preferred Stock Agreement™) with certain investors. Under the Preferred Stock Agreement, the Company
agreed to issue 152,000 shares of its newly-created Series A Convertible Preférred Stock to the Investors for an aggregate purchase

~ price of $15.2 million, which was received in two tranches of $11.2 million and $4 million on November 14, 2007 and December 5,

2007, respectively. The proceeds were used predominantly to fund business operations and to acquire fractional shares in two aircraft
delivered on December 28, 2007. The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock will not be registered under the Securities Act of 1933, but
the Investors will have registration rights (including an obligation by the Company to have a “shelf” registration statement declared
effective with the Securities and Exchange Commission‘within nirie months of the issuance of the shares of Series A Convertible

~ Preferred Stock) with r2spect to shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the shares of Series A Convertible Preferfed
Stock (“Conversion Shares™). The Investors will be subject to restrictions on the number of Conversion Shares they may sellin the °

open market within six months and one year of such issuance. The térms of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock are set forth in a
Certificate of Designations filed November 14, 2007 with the State of Delaware. Pursuant to such Certificate of Designations, the
shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (a) will rank senior to all currently outstandmg classes of stock of the Company with
respect to liguidation and dmdends (b) will be entitled to receive a cash dividend at the annual rate of 9.0%, payable quarterly (with
such rate being subject to increase up to a maximum of 12% if such dividends are not timely paid), (é) will be convertible into shares
of the Company’s common stock at any time at the option of the Invesmrs based on a conversion pricé of $5.15 per share (subject to
adjustment), (d) may be redeemed by the Company following the seventh anniversary of the issuance of the shares of Series A
Convertible Prefeired Stock, (¢) may be redeeied by the Company in connection with certdin changé of contfol or acquisition

. transactions.at a price per share equal 1o the sum of 105% of the Series A Issue Price and any accrued dividends, (f) will be redeemed

by the Company following the ninth anniversary of the issuance of the shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, upon receipt of
the written consent of the holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock at a price per
share cqual to the sum of'100% of the Series A Issue Price and any accrued dividends (g) will vote on an as-converted basis with the -
Company’s Common Stock and (h) will have a separate vote over certain material transactions or changes which the Company may
wish to effect. The Company paid its investment adviser 5% of the cash raised on this preferred financing.
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NOTE 12 — STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION -
Stock Options ' : T . oL - L.

The Company i issues stock-based compensauon to its ofﬁcers dlreetors employees and consultants under its 2006 Lon;,
Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). There are 1,500,000 shares authorized under the Plan, The term of stock options granted are
determined by the Compensation Committee not to exceed 10 years. Additionally, the term of the stock grants is limited to five years
if the grantee owns in excess of 10% of the stock of the Company at the time of the grant. The vesting provisions of individual options
may vary but in each case will generally prov1de for vesting of at least 33% per year of the total number of shares subject to the
option. The exercise pnce and other terms and conditions of stock options will be determined by the Compensanon Committee at the
time of grant. The exercise price per share may not be less than 100 percent of the fair market value of a share of the Company’s
common stock on the date of the grant,

. : i i
At o + PR . ' - :

Upon adopt:on of the Plan in February 2007 the’ Company granted 150,000 stock opnons to certain non-employee members
of the board of directors which resulted in $151,339 and $44,946 of stock-based compensation expense durmg the years ended
June 30 2008 and 2007, respecnvely, included in general and admlmstratlve expenses on the accompanymg consohdated statement of
operations. All options granted under the Plan are accounted for in accordance 'with SFAS 123R.

A summary of options activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 is presented below:

Weighted Average =~ Weighted Average

. e Shares N Exercise Price Fair Value _
OpthIlS Oulstandmg as ofJulyl 2007 . _ls0000 5 534 5 1.54
_Granted . ,_'__‘ Tt = .
— ExerclSEd - R _ - T T s L T e - 4._ .- - - -
 Forfeited and Explred L ' o — — —
Options Outstandmg, June 30 2008 T 150,000 % 534 8§ 1.94
Expected to vest, June 30,2008 * 135000 § U 534 S 1.94
Exercisable, June 30,2008 . 50,000 3 534 § 1.94
) 'Stocl\ Options Outstandmg ' . T 7 Stock Options Excrcis-able' )
) Welghted A o ' Weighted )
) Average Weighted Lo . Average  Weighted
Yo Remaining  Average  Aggregate’ ~ Remaining Average Aggregate
. ' Contractual  Exercise =~ Intrinsic C Contractual Exercise Intrinsic
Exercise Prices Shares ~ _ Life(Years)- _ Price ~ Value - - Shares " Life (Years) Price ) Value

$s534  ___ 150000 825 § 534 8 — — Lo =3 =8 =

2 ¢

The falr_ value of each stock option grant to employees is estimated on the date of grant. A Black-Scholes option-pricing
model, applying the following weighted average assumptions; was used to estimate the fair value for employee stock options issued:

Year ended June 30,

- - e - e i I R - — . C e - C oo - - - - 2007
Dividend yield R 0.00%
Expected volatility L L ) 60.68%
Risk-free rate L s ) 7 4.67% ;
Expected life of options ‘ 6 years |

Due to the Company’s limited history as a public company. the Company has estimated expected volatility based on the ‘
historical volatility of certain companies as determined by management. The risk-free interest rate assumption is based upon observed
interest rates appropriate for the expected term of the Company’s employee stock options. The dividend yield assumption isbased on |
the Company’s intent not to issue a dividend under its dividend policy. The expected term is based on the simplified method in '
accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 on Share Based Payment. |

As of June 30, 2008, there was $239,684 of total deferred compensation cost related to options issued to non-employee |
board members that will be recognized in expense over the remaining vesting period of 1.67 years. |
: l
|
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Restricted Shares

|

The Company expenses restricted shares granted in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123(R). The fair value of the
restricted shares issued is amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of three years. The expense associated with the
awarding of restricted shares for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 is $333,478 and $32,942, respectively, which is included in
general and administrative expense on the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. As of June 30, 2008, $446,076 of
deferred compensation cost related to restricted stock will be charged to operations over the next three years.

The following table summarizes information concerning restricted shares:

Nonvested*

Restricted Weighted Average
‘ . L . o Shares Fair Value .
Balance at June 30,2007 o o 214p00 08 490
Granted o S 37,500 o 2,61
Forfeited/cancelled L (50,666) L. 49
Batance at June 30, 2008 ' 200,834 o

NOTE 13 - WARRANTS

We currently have warrants outstanding to purchase 14,146,000 shares of our common stock, which entitle the registered
holder to purchase one share of our common stock at a price of $5.00 per share. The warrants will expire on February 23, 2009, at
5:00 p.m,, Eastern Standard time. We may call the warrants for redemption in whole and not in part, at a price of §.01 per warrant at
any time after the warrants become exercisable, upon not less than 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption to each warrant holder,
if, and only if, the last reported sale price of the common stock equals or exceeds $8.50 per share for any 20 trading days within a 30
trading day period ending on the third business day prior to the notice of redemption to warrant holders.

The warrants are issued in registered form under a warrant agreement between Continental Stock Transfer & Trust
Company, as warrant agent, and Avantair, Inc.

The exercise price and number of shares of common stock issuable on exercise of the warrants may be adjusted in'certain
circumstances including in the event of a stock dividend, or Avantair’s recapitalization, reorganization, merger or conselidation.
However, the warrants will not be adjusted for issuances of common 3tock at a price below their respective exercise prices.

The warrants may be exercised upon surrender of the warrant certificate on or prior to the expiration date at the offices of the
warrant agent, with the exercise form on the reverse side of the warrant certificate completed and executed as indicated, accompanied
by full payment of the exercise price, by certified check payable to Avantair, for the number of warrants being exercised. The warrant
holders do not have the rights or privileges of holders of common stock or any voting rights until they exercise their warrants and
receive shares of commion stock. After the issuance of shares of common $tock upon exercise of the warrants, each holder will be
entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters to be voted on by stockholders.

No warrants will be exercisable unless at the time of exercise a prospectus relating to common stock issuable upon exercise
of the warrants is current and the common stock has been reg,lstered or qualified or deemed to be exempt under the securities laws of
the state of residence of the holder of the warrants. Under the terms of the warrant agreement, we have agreed to meet these conditions
and use our best efforis to maintain a current prospectus relating to common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants until the
expiration of the warrants. On November 2, 2006, we entered into a Warrant Clarification Agreement, dated as of February 24, 2005,
with Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as Warrant Agent, to clarify the terms of the warrant agreement, The Warrant
Clarification Agreement clarified, consistent with the terms of the warrant agreement and the disclosure contained in our prospectus, -
that if the prospectus relating to the common stock issuable upon the exercise of the warrants is not current or if the common stock is
not qualified or exempt from qualification in the jurisdictions in which the holders of the warrants reside, we will not be required to
net cash settle or cash settle the warrant exercise, the warrants may have no value, the market for the warrants may be limited and the
warrants may expire worthless. As discussed above, the foregoing clarification was based on the disclosure set forth in the warrant
agreement and the final prospectus. Such clarification is entirely consistent with the terms of the warrant agreement and the disclosure
contained in our prospectus.
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On June 17, 2008, the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission a post-effective amendment on Form §-
3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-121028). Upon effectiveness of the amendment, the registration
statement will be available for the issuance of shares of common stock upon exercise of the Company’s outstanding publically traded
warrants. The Company also approved a warrant retirement program, pursuant to which it will offer the holders of its 13,800,000
publically traded warrants the opportunity to exercise those warrants on amended terms for a limited time, The Company is modifying
the 13,800,000 warrants to reduce the per-share exercise price from $5.00 to $3.00. In addition, for each warrant exercised by a holder
at the reduced exercise price, the holder will have the option to engage in a cashless exercise by e\cchangmg ten additional warrants for
one additional share of common stock. Warrants tendered for cashless exercise may only be tendered in groups of ten and no
fractional shares will be issued for odd lots of nine or less. The Company has filed a Tender Offer Statement on Schedule TO and
related materials as a pre-commencement communication. The Tender Offer has not commenced and the Company and its agents are
not currently accepting tenders at this time. The Company wiil issue a press release announcing the commencement of the tender offer
once it has begun.

No fractional shares will be issued upon exercise of the warrants. If, upon exercise of the warrants, a holder would be entitled
to teceive a [ractional interest in a share, we will, upon exercise, round up to the nearest whole number the number of shares of
common stock to be issued to the warrant holder.

No changes have been made to our warrant position in fiscal year 2008.

NOTE 14 - RETIREMENT PLAN

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has a 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan (the “401(k) Plan”) available for substantially all employees. Employees
may contribiite up to the annual Intemal Revenue Service dollar limit. Company contributions to the 401(k) Plan are at the discretion
of the Company. The Company has not made any discretionary profit sharing employer contributions to the 401(k) Plan to date.

NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS o

In July 2008, the Company repaid the full amount of the $5.2 million Promlssory Note (“Note™) with Century Bank, F.S.B.,
as discussed in Note 9.

On July 31, 2008, Avantair, Inc. entered into two new Floor Plan Finance Agreements (cach, an *Agreement” and
collectlvely "the Agreements"), pursuant to which MidSouth Services, Inc. has agreed to extend credit to.the Company in an amount
not to exceed $5,345,000 under each Agreement (10,690,000 in total for the Agreements), for an initial term of three (3) months for
each Agreement. Indebtedness under the Agreements will be used by the Company to fund the purchase of new Piaggio P-180 aircraft.
The Company shall have the sole option to renew the Agreements for three (3) consecutive additional one (1) month terms at the
expiration of the initial term. The effective dates of the two Agreements are July 31, 2008, and August 1, 2008, respectively. The
Company has agreed to pay a monthly fee of $75,000 under each Agreement.

. lnlé:::;nnection with the entry.into the Agreements, on July 31, 2008,'the Company terminated the prior Floor Plan Finance
Agreement dated March 3, 2008 between the Company and Midsouth,

On July 31, 2008, the Company entered a $525,000 promissory note arrangement with JSSI for the purchase of airframe
parts. The note is payable in five monthly ‘installments of $105,000 Comme'ncing August 1, 2008.

Effective August 1, 2008, Avantair, Inc, entered into Leasc Agreement (““Lease”™) and Operating Agreement for Fueling
Service (“Fueling Agreement”) between Essex County lmprovement Authority (“ECIA”) and the Company. The Lease provides the
Company with a hangar located at Essex County Airport that is approximately 17,752 square feet, which includes hanger space, shop
space and office space. The Lease will be month to month until it is approved by the Essex County Board of Chosen Freeholder, and
once the Lease is approved, ECIA and the Company shall enter into a ten-(10) year lease term. The annual rent for the Lease is
$230,776, payable in monthly installments of $19,231. The annual rent shall be adjusted on the first day of each new year of the ten
(10) year lease term by adding the product of the current annual rent multiplied by the percentage change of the CPI index for the
preceding 12 months. The Fueling Agreement shall be in force and effect while the Company is in lawful possession of the property
pursuant to the Lease, but it shall not extend beyond the term of the Lease. The Lease and the Fuelmg Agreement will allow the
Company to aperate a full service FBO at Essex County Airport.

On August 4, 2008, the Company terminated the month- to- month Jease agreement for the principal property located at 135
Passaic Avenue, Fourth Floor, Fairfield, New Jersey, which offered 100 square feet of office space.
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v ot o . e - - ] - .
10.6 Letter Agreement among the Registrant, EarlyBirdCapital, Inc. and Philip Goodman. (5) -
. o : ’ . g ’ . f - . L
10.7 Letter Agreement among the Registrant, EarlyBirdCapital, Inc. and Alan J. Loewenstein. (5) '
' ' I Tl ] ‘ . RS - ' . ! ' -l
10.8 Letter Agreement among the Registrant, EarlyBirdCapital, Inc, and Robert Sroka. (5) - .
B e . ', L ' Sy O i ¥ L e
10.9 Form of Investment Management Trust Agreement between Contmental Stock Transfer & Trust Company and

the Registrant. (5)
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10.10

10.11
1012
1013
10.14

10.15
10.16

10.17

14.1

311

312

32.1
322
99.1
99.2
99.3

M

@)

3)

(4)

(6)

Form of Stock Escrow Agreement between thé Reglstrant Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company and the
Initial Stockholders. (5)

Form of Letter Agreement between American-Fun Advisors, Inc. and Registrant regarding admin. support. (5)
N v ' oL " Co

L . ‘-

Promissory Note, dated October 31, 2004, in the principal amount of $70,000 issued to Barry J. Gordon. {5)
' Regis?f‘atiblll Rights Agre'emént afnong the Registrant and the Initial Stockholders. (5)

Form of Warrant Purc_hase Agreement among Earl)_rBirdCapital, Inc. and each of the Initial Stockholders. (5)

Investors Rights Agreement, entered into as of October 2, 2006 between Avantair, Inc and certain equity
investors, (1)

’

Loan Agreement, entered into as of October 2, 2006 by and among Avantalr Inc., CNM, Inc. and Ardent
Acquisition Corporation. (1)

Amended and Restated Promissory Note, dated June 1, 2007, made ]Jy Avantair, Iné. to CNM, Inc. (4)

Code of Conduct and Professional Ethics for directors, ofﬁcers and emp'loyées, }nclixcjing our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer. (7)

_ Chlef Executive Officer Certlficatlon pursuant to Rule 13a- l4(a) or lSd l4(a) of the Securltles Exchange Act of
1934

Chief Fihar{gial Officer Certification pursuant to Rule l3a-14(a) or iSd-I4(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934

3

Chief Executive Officer, Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

]

Chief Financial Officer Certification pursuant to lS}J.S.C. Section 1350
Charter for the Audit Committee of the Board. (8)
Charter for the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee. of the Board. (9)

C'h_arter fo; the Compénsation Committee of the Board.(8)

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, ﬂled with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on October 4, 2006, ! ‘ o st

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8- K fi ted with the Securltles and Exchange
Commission on-December 20, 2006. i .

Incorporated by reference to Reglstrant s current report on Form 8-K, ﬁled with the Secunnes and Exchange commission
onMarch 15,2007, + -+ 0 .

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-1 (SEC File No. 333-142312).
Incorporated by reférente to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (SEC File No.333-121028).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8 K, filed with the Securmes and Exchange
Commission on March 23, 2007,




M

(8)

©)

Re-fited to reflect the final versions of the documents as adopted by the Registrant’s Board of Directors. Since adoption,
the accurate version of each document has been pubhcly avallable on the Registrant's website.

Re-filed to reflect the revised versions of the documents as adopted by the Registrant's Board of Directors on September
18, 2008.

?

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 10-KSB, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on April 6, 2007. -

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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: CODE OF CONDUCT
e .o - AND PROFESSIONAL ETHICS

AVANTAIR

b ‘l_L. . S L et

L INTRODUCTION

Al Applicability

’

fu '

This Code of Conduct and Professional Ethics (the “Code”) applies to all Directors and employees of Avantair (collectively
“employees”).

B. Purpose and Commitment

The Company has a reputation for uncompromising integrity in its service and performance to its customers in the fractional
airline industry. That reputation is based on an expectation of ethical conduct on the part of all of the Company’s employees at all
times. We must adhere to the highest ethical standards to earn trust and confidence in all facets of our operations. Accordingly, as an
employee you are expected to behave ethically and with integrity, and to comply with all appllcable laws and regulations. Failure to
do so will result in disciplinary action, including possible termination of employment.

Please read this Code carefully and sign the attached Acknowledgement where indicated. 1f you have any questions, or if
you need clarification either before you sign the Acknowledgement or in the future, please contact Company Counsel.

C. Required Disclosures to the Company

The Code requires you to disclose certain information to your manager, who will convey these disclosures, as warranted, to
the appropriate senior executive. Authorization to proceed with certain activities as a result of such disclosures is subject to applicable
laws and regulations, and the Company’s policies, and will be documented for official records.

Your manager may not be the person to whom you directly report. For example, you may report to a first line supervisor
who, in turn, reports to a manager. In that case, your disclosure should be made to your supervisor, your manager, and a representative
of Human Resources. If you are unclear as to the identity of your manager, please consult with your direct supervisor or with Human
Resources,

You also have a duty to report all suspected or actual violations of the Code or of any applicable laws and regulations. You
can report them to your manager or to C.ompany Counsel. Managers are required to report to Company Counsel all concerns raised
about compliance. .

D. Revisions to the Code

The Company may revise or supplement this Code at any time. The Company will distribute promptly any such
meodification, and at that time, you will be required to sign a new acknowledgement to reaffirm your agreement to adhere to this Code.
You have a continaing obligation to fam:hanze yourself with any such revisions and to ensure that you comply with all of the
Company’s policies and with the Code .

iL GENERAL OBLIGATIONS

The Company expects you to use professional, honest, and ethical judgment in all your responsibilities. You must conduct
yourself in a way that serves the public interest, honors the public trust, and demonstrates your commitment to a high level of
professionalism.

The Employee Manual also sets forth policies to guide your behavior. As the Company’s employee, you are required to be
aware of, and to comply with, the current versions of all policies that relate to your job performance.

The Company observes a “zero tolerance” policy for misconduct involving fraud, deceit or dishonesty, or that affects the
integrity of our work. Any employee who is determined to have engaged in any such misconduct will be terminated from employment
with the Company immediately.




III.  CONFLICTS OF INTEREST nt

The Company expects you to be free ‘of any actual, pérceived, or potential interest, activity, or influence that may conflict
with or harm the Company's interests in any way or deprive the Company of your complete loyalty, unimpaired efficiency, and best
professional judgment in performing all of your employment duties. Employees have an obligatién to conduct -business within
guidelines that prohibit actual or potential conflicts of interest as established by the Employee Minual. The purpose of those
guidelines is to provide general direction so that employees may seck further-clarification on issués related to the subject of acceptable
standards of operation. Contact Human Resources or Company Counsel for more information or questions about conflicts of interest. *

.

Examples of situations that may create an actual or perceived conflict of interest, include, but are not limited to:

*  accepting, agreeing to accept, or soliciting money or other tangible or intangible benefits in exchange for
preferential treatment toward any person or entity who has conducted, is conducting, or might conduct
business with the Company, . e . C e

®  accepling employment or compensation,, or engaging in any, business or professional activity that might
require or involve use or disclosure of the Company's confidential information or trade secrets or impair your
ability to perform satisfactorily your job duties for the Company; | . Lo

¢  directing business to a supplier or contractor owned or managed by, or which employs, a relative or friend. -

! Nothing in this Code is intended to alter at-will relationships between'the Compa'ny and its érﬁployeeé ‘In the United States and
certain other countnes the Company can tennmate those employment relat10nsh1ps at any time, Wlth or w1thout cause, and wnh or
without notice. :

¥ T D C

B. = Outside Employment/Conflicts of Interest
The Company recognizes that employees engage in activities ottside of their employment which are private in nature, and

the Company does not seck to interfere with those activities as long as they do not pose a conflict, or the appearance of a conflict, with
the Company’s interests. You are required to familiarize yourself and abide by the Company’s policy regarding outside employment
as established by the Employee Manual. , , ., ,
In order {o prevent any COHﬂlCt of interest or the appearance of conflicted conduct, under no circumstances may an employee

be compensated, directly or indirectly, to serve as a consultant, adv1sor independent ' contractor speaker or employee for any company
engaged in, associated with, or otherwise’ involved i in, the av1at|on 1ndustry, mcludmg but not hmlted to the fractional alrcraft mdustry,
without the approval of the Company’s CEQ, CFO, or Board of Diréctors. ‘ .

oo N B

C. Outside Financial Interests , )

If the Company becomes involved in a potential or actual business transaction with a third party with whom you or your
immediate family member is affiliatéd or has a material financial intérest, you must disclose the affi hatlon or interést to your manager
and to a representative of Human Resources within ten (10) days of learning of the transaction. You must not attempt to influencé the
association between the Company and your family member in any way. This influence inchides, but is not limited to, percewed ot
actual requests for contracts, solicitations, or contributions. Examples of S|tuat|ons that may £vnolate this sectlon 1nclude but are not
limited to:

o ‘ speeulatmg or dealing in matenals products, real estate or services of the type purchased produced utilized,
or sold by the Company; ) o . L L o

w acqumng a specml interest in any business' opportunity or ‘other property wuh know]edge that the Company
has an interest in such opportunity or property; and

« entering into a business relationship (i.e., a  landlord-tenant relationship) with~any of the '‘Company’s
employees for whom you have supervisory or decision-making authority or over whom you may have
influence without prior disclosure to your manager and a representative of Human Resources.




IV.  GIFTS, GRATUITIES, AND FAVORS

The. reputation of the Company must not be- tainted by any perception that favorable treatment was sought, or in fact
obtained, in exchange for busingss or personal courtesies such as gifts, gratuities or favors. The Company therefore prohibits any
employee from accepting or soliciting any gift, gratuity, or favor valued in excess of $100 (excludmg meals and entertainment from
already existing vendors or customers of the Company). You must report any offer of a gift, gratuity, or faver made by any person or
entity who sought to gain an improper, privilege or benefit from you. Questions regarding the application of this policy should be
directed to a representative of Human Resources. - .

V., DOING BUSINESS WITH OTHERS -

All purchasing decisions must be made based on the best value received by the Company. When appropriate, obtaining competitive
bids, verifying quality and service claims, 'and confirming the financial condition of the supplier are a]l important steps in a good
purchasing decision. (See section on Conflict of Interest).

The Company requires that ‘all sales, marketing and -promotion matérials must always be honest and accurate. Neither deceptive
advertising nor ‘questionablé promotional activity can ever be justified. Vlolatlons of these standards not only erode consumer
confidence, but could subject the Company to legal action.

VI. { COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS"* '

As a Company employee, you.are required to conduct business for the Company in accordance with all applicable laws and
regulations. You are prohibited from using corporate -funds, services, assets, or information for any unlawful.or improper purpose.
You also may not obtain privileges or special benefits through unlawful or otherwise i improper concessions or payments, Failure to
comply with relevant laws and regulations may subject you to civil or criminal liability as well as discipline from the Company.

It is very important to be mindful of all legal obhgatlons concerning patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade sccrets,
confidentiality or privacy agreements, and other intellectual property rights.

Because it is the Company’s policy to comply at all times with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, if such a law now
imposes or later imposes a legal obligation on the Company that conflicts with any provision of this Code, the Code is superseded for
that purpoge and with respect to the applicable employees only.

A Antitrust

H .ot N

" Confidential information includes all non-public information that might be of use to competitors, or harmful to the Company
or our customers, if disclosed. Examples of confidential information include, but are not limited to the followmg detailed financial
ﬁgures new product or, marketmg plans;, techmcal information; information about litigation, potential acquisitions, divestitures,
contracts and alliance agreements and personal information about the Company’s employees and customers. Employees must not
disclose or reveal any confidential information entrusted to them by the Company, except when disclosure is authorized by Company
Counse! or required by laws or regulation,

B. Environment

The Company is dedtcated to the protectmn of our natural environment. It is our strict pollcy, therefore, to fully comply with
all apphcable local, state and federal environmental laws and regulations. Employees are required to comply with these standards
when performing their assigned duties and must report any violations of these standards to their supervisor or to Company Counsel.

C. ' Foreign Corrupt Praetices Act (“FCPA”)

The FCPA prohibits any employee, agent or representative of the Company from directly or indirectly oftering or promising
to pay, or authorizing the payment of money or anything of value to foreign government officials, political parties, or candidates for
public office, or any of their family members or close personal friends, for the purpose of influencing their acts or decisions. The fact
that bribery may be an accepted local practlce 1n a country does not relieve the Company s employees agents or representatives from
complymg with the FCPA.

B - D .
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reason for receiving such information, constitutes a violation of this policy. : '
N | N * ool . <. ! L A R

D. Aviation Regulations, International Trade and Anti-Boycott Regulations

United States laws govern the Company’s conduct in international trade. Employees involved with international trade should
review the resources listed, and ‘consalt with Company Counsel if they have any questions or concerns. The Company’s employees
and its agents may not by law cooperate in any way with an unsanctioned forelgn boycott of countries friendly to the United States.
The Company’s operations worldwide must comply with aviation, export, and travel regulations and restnctions imposed by the
United States, as well as applicable laws of countries where the Company conducts business.

The civil and criminal sanctions that may be imposed for violations of applicable regulations' and restrictions are very
severe. Employess with responsibility for relevant activities should consult frequently with Company Counsel regarding these matters.

o o '

E. Insider Tradmg

Using non-public mformatlon to trade in securities, or prowdmg a famlly member friend or any other person with a “tip” is
illegal. All non-public information should be :considered-inside mformation-and should never ‘be used for personal gain. You are
required to familiarize yourself with and abide by the Company’s Insider Tradmg pollcy You may contact Company Counsel with

any quesuons abcut your ability to’buy-or sell securmes

vy '1--‘\ i P . . ¥

COMPL[ANCE WITH lNTERNATlONAL LAW. ' ' : S

When engaging in mtemauonal activity, the Company inevitably wnll encounter laws that differ from those of the United
States. Local customs and practices with regard to business and ‘social dealings also may vary from place to ptace. To ensure a
business is in compliance with any appllcabie forelgn laws you should consult with Company Counse] pnor to operating in any
foreign ]Ul‘lSdlCtlon ‘
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VIIl. COMPANY RECORDS v ' ‘

i I , g . .oy

. Al Creatlon of. Records and AlldltS . . . ‘ . ,

The Company has designed and 1mplemented a comprehensive system of internal controls and procedures to safeguard the
Company's assets, properly record all transactions in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and ensure
compliance with requirements of outside authorities.. All corporate records for which employees are responsible must be true, accurate
and complete and must present falrly the nature and purpose of the activity recorded. No false, misleading, or inaccurate records shall
be made for any reason. You must adhere to these controls and procedures at all times when conducting business on behalf of the
Company. Violation of this section, like all others herein, will be grounds for termination of employment with the Company.

You also must not improperly’ influence, manipulate, or undermine’ any authorized audit, or interfere with or mislead any
auditor engaged to perform an internal or independent audit of the Company’s books, records, processes, or internal controls.

B. Company_Regor:Qs . '

All of the Company’s books ano'feoorﬂs (“Records™) must be f'rue, ‘acciirate and complete, and must comply with all
applicable provisions of the Records Retention Policy. You are required to preserve the confidentiality of all of the Company’s
Records. Disclosure of any of the Company’s Records to persons in or outside of the-Company who do not have a legitimate business

vt e [ ' I ' ‘ [

"C.  Fetention
The Company also seeks to preserve various categories of documents to ensure that all records requlred to fulfilt gur
obligations to custoraers, employees, and vendors are maintained and are available when needed, and to ensure’ compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. Accordingly, all corporate materials must be retained for the time period specified in the Company’s

Record Retention Pohcy To the extent you deal WIth Company records in-any way, you should fam1har12e your self with the Records
Retention Po];cy o e 3 S N .

[ L R ‘ ' ot R s . 1

Documents including those that are stored in hard copy, electronic, magnetlc or film format, relevant to any pending,
threatened, or anticipated litigation, investigation or audit shall not be destroyed or altered for any reason until destruction is expressly
authorized by Company Counsel or his or her designee.




IX. WORK ENYIRONMENT e T et

The Company ] Employee Manual, mcludes a number of' pOllClCS govemlng employee conduct including but not limited to
those concerning Alcohol and Drug AbuSc Security and Confi dentlahty, and Prevention of Harassment and Discrimination. By
executing the attached Acknowledgement you are affirming that it is your respon51b1hty as a Company employee to read and comply
with all of the Company’s pohcxes that apply to you

e ' . . e .

X. COMPANY ASSETS

¢ . o e oL F o v, . . .
A, Confidential Infermation

A ]

While employed by the Company, you may become aware of, or have access to, confidential and/or proprietary information
relating to the Company’s business. You must rhaintain strict confidentiality-of such information and not share such information with
anyone — even a co-worker who does not have access- to it — absent a legitimate business purpose. Trade secrets .and confidential
information include, without limitation, procedures_used, in the research/development processes, internal, policies, internal telephone
lists and directories, passwords, organizationa] charts, financiat data, any data pertaining to; actual or potential customers of the
Company, and information concerning the attributes, features, and design of aircraft owned or operated by the Company. By executing
the atiached Acknowledgement, you will confirm that you have entered into a confidentiality.agreement with which you shall comply
fully.

.

B. Protection and Propet‘ Use of Company A,ssets‘f _

The Company’s assets, both tangible and intangible, are to'bé uséd only for legitimate businéss purposes and only by
authorized employees or consultants. You should be alert to situations or incidents that could lead to the loss, theft or misuse of the
Company’s or its clients’ property and report all such situations to your manager and a representative of Human Resources.

You are prohibited from misusing, or otherwise destroying property, records, or other materials that belong to the Company
or its clients, customers, or employees. Examples of situations that constitute a violation of this'section, include, but are not'limited to:

L usmg Company resoulces (equ1pment supphes* contacts orfunds) for pcrsonal bcncf' t
. chsclosmg or using any propnetary information, haterials, or undisclosed “inside™ information relating to
' Company activities, for your own ot another $ advantage : ' Lo B ‘

]
. . 5
Pl i

‘e ' possessing of removing Company property, ificluding internal Company polities, or the 'property of a
Company client, customer, employee, or guest without express authorization;
P . [ o6, Lo -

L .ot o - L -t M oY s LI B . . : .
‘s disclosing the contents of, Or answers to, qu1zzes,’ tests or'examinations given by the Company: and

e filming, photographing, or releasing confidential information about the Corﬁpan)?’s'security systems, alarms,
assets, aircrafl, or procedures without prior written Company authorization. , .

. ° e, ) . . AR .
C. Software T

a0 i

In general, the only software that should be loaded onto your computcr is that which the Company has approved and
purchased. In many cases, it is illegal to copy, download or distribute software for other materials because they are protected by
copyright.
XI. ' MEDIA INQUi'RI_Es R S | "_1

B " e K [P !

. From tlme to ttme you may be approached by rcportcrs or other medla representauvcs To cnsurc that the Company speaks
with one voice and provides accurate information regarding its business, you should direct all media inquiries to the CEO or COO.
You are not permitted to discuss Company matters with any reportcrs or othcr media representatives without the express written
consent of the CEO or CFQ. . . . oo . . o

|
i




XIll. ENFOECEMENT OF THE COMPANY’S COMPLIANCE POLICIES .

This Code is based on the Company’s core values, its commitment to best businéss practices, and applicable laws and
regulations. Its existence does not, of course, ensure compliance. Accordingly, it is the responsibility of every Company employee to
adopt and cultivate a policy of integrity and compliance, grounded on the notions of self-policing and self-reporting.

Al Compliance

You arz expected to become familiar with, understand, and abide by the requirements of this Code and all relevant policies
of the Company. _

Managers in particular have a responsibility to create an open and supportive environment whére employees feel
comfortable raising ethics concerns, and to emphasize the importance of this Code.

+

B. Internal Reporting/Duty to Report

If you bacome aware of any issue or practice involving a pdtential or actual violation of this Code, or any Company policy
or applicable law or regulation, you_must report the matter immediately to your manager and/or to a represemattve of Company
Counsel.

Several key questions can help you identify situations that may be unethical, inappropriate or illegal. Ask yourself:

¢ Does what | am doing comply with the letter and spirit of the Company’s policies?
e Have | been asked to misrepresent information or deviate from normal procedure?
»  Would I feel comfortable describing my decision at a staff meeting? )

»  How would this conduct appear if it were disclosed to the Company’s clients, vendors and/or other members
of the public?

C. I'nternal Investigation

When an alleged violation of this Code is reported, the Company shall take prompt and appropriate action in accordance
with the law and otherwise consistent with best business practices. If the suspected violation or concern involves the Company’s
financial disclosures, internal accounting controls, questionable auditing or accounting improprieties, the manager is required to notify
Company Counsel. If the suspected violation involves any director or executive officer or if the suspected violation concerns any
fraud, whether or not material, involving management or other employees who have a significant role in the Company’s internal
controls, any person whao receives such report should immediately report the alleged violation to Company Counsel, In each such case
Company Counsel shall assess the situation and determine the appropriate course of action, including the initiation of an investigation
and the need for corrective action.

Employees are expected to cooperate fully with Company representatives who are conducting an internal investigation,
audit, inquiry, or other review,

D. .Disciplinary Action

Managers must ensure that this Code is enforced through appropriate disciplinary measures. Any employee violating this
Code, any other Company policy, or applicable laws shall be subject to discipline, up to and including termination. The Human
Resources Department is responsible for ensuring that the disciplinary process and the sanctions are enforced in a fair and consistent
manner, The Company may refer for criminal prosecution any employees or former employees who have violated applicable laws and
regulations, The Company may institute a civil action in response to such violations to, among other things, enforce its legal and
equitable rights, and to obtain restitution, contribution, and damages.

E. Non-Retaliation

Employees, including managers and supervisors, may not retaliate, directly or indirectly, or encourage others to do so,
against any employee who reports a violation of this Code. If you believe that retaliation has occurred, you should report the conduct
to Company Counsel immediately. The Company will not permit retaliation of any kind against good faith reports or complaints of
violations to this Code or other illegal or unethical conduct.




Note to Employees: Return enly this page to Company Counsel and retain the Code for your files and periodic review.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT

1 hereby acknowledge receipt of the Company’s Code of Conduct and Professional Ethics. [ understand that my compliance
with this Code and all relevant policies of the Company is a condition of my continued employment with the Company. | understand
that the Company expects the highest degree of professional ethics and integrity in connection with my employment. 1 acknowledge
that it is impossible for the Company to identify and list every possible action that may violate this Code and that the Company
reserves the right to impose discipline for any conduct it deems inappropriate. . :

The Code does not constitute nor is it intended to constitute a contract of employment. Nothing in the Code is intended to
alter the Company's policy of at-will employment or any at-will employment agreement.

‘l -
I have carefully read and I understand fully the foregoing Code. [ support these professional standards for the Company, and
for myself, and [ will act in accordance with them. .

Throughout this document, I have been asked to disclose certain information in writing to my manager and a representative
of Company Counsel, who will convey these disclosures, as warranted, to the appropriate Company officer. Consistent with that

requirement, I hereby state:
(Check one:)

I have nothing to disclose.

I would like to make the following disclosures. (List and briefly explain below even if disclosed previously.)

I understand and agree that if, during the course of the year, additional or new circumstances arise that require disclosure, 1
will disclose such matters in writing to my manager and a representative of Human Resources.

Print Name:

Signature: B Date:

Department:




Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Steven Santo, Chief Executive Officer,
pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Steven Santo, Chief Executive Officer of Avantair, Inc., certify that:

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Avantalr Inc;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any.untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under whtch such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge, the ﬁnancial statements, and other.financial information inctuded in this-report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report

The reglstrant s other certlfymg officer and I are responsible for establishing and mamtamlng disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15({¢)) for the registrant and have:

(2) Designed such disclosure eontrols and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be desagned under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, mcludmg its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others withi m those entmes particularly dunng the period in whlc‘n this report is belng prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectweness of the registrant’s dlsclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusmns
about the effectivzness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such .
evaluation; and

. . '
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(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performmg the equivalent functlons)

(a) All s1gn1ﬁcant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

{b) Any fraud, whether or not matertal that involves management or other employees who have a srgmﬁeant role in the regtstram 5
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 24, 2008

/s/ Steven Santo

Name: Steven Santo
Title: Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Richard A. Pytak Jr., Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a)
and 15d-14, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Richard A. Pytak Jr., Chief Financial Officer of Avantair, Inc., certify that:
| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Avantair, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements. made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made; not misleading
with respect to the pertod covered by this report;. '

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report; -

The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures ‘(as deﬁned_ in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(g)).for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities,-particularly during the period in which this report is-being prepared;

3
v

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedurés, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and -+ . : , '

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internai control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent ¢valuation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions): s R '

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

) N

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting. : ' : : K '

Date: September 24, 2008
/s/ Richard A, Pytak Jr.

Name: Richard A. Pytak Jr. -~
Title: ' Chief Financial Officer '




Exhibit 32,1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection vrith the Annual Report of Avantair, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), on Form 10-K for the period ended
June 30, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the, date hereof (the “Report™), I, Steven Santo, Chief
Executive Officer (principal executive officer) of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U S.C. Sectlon 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:- . . .

- (1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act.of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all materlal respects, the financial condmon and results of
operations of the Company : - e

Date: September 24, 2008

/s/ Steven Santo

Name: Steven Santo
Title: Chief Executive QOfficer
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Exhibit 32.2

Certification of Chief Financia! Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Avantair, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), on Form 10-K for the period ended
June 30, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, John Waters, Chief
Financial Officer (principal financial officer) of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

(1) theReport fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

(2) the information contamed in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects the financial condmon and tesults of
operations of the Company.,

Date: September 24, 2008

/s/ Richard A, Pytak Jr,

Name: Richard A. Pytak Jr.
Title: Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 99.1

CHARTER OF THE S
AUD]T COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
! OF . . . M o
AVANTAIR,INC. - - B ' i g
p (Revised September 18, 2008) L R E 1
Statement of Policy - . o . o : ,

This Charter governs the operations of the Audit Committee (the “Committee”} of the Board of Directors (the “* Board ™) of Avantair,
Inc. (the “ Company ™). The Charter shail be reviewed and reassessed, at least annually, by the Committee and shall be approved by
the Board.

The purpose of the: Commlttee is to a351st the Board in fulﬁlhng its overs:ght responsibilities by revnewmg the ﬁnanc1al information,

which shall be provided to the stockholders and others, the systems of internal controls, which the Company’s management (*

Management "} and the Board have established, and the Company’s audit, financial reporting and the legal and compliance process. In
so doing, it is the responsibility of the Committee to maintain free and open communication with-Company’s independent auditors
(the *“ Independent Auditors ™), internal corporate accounting and financial reporting staff (the *“ Internal Auditors **) and Management.
In discharging its oversight role, the Committee is empowered to investigate any matter brought to its attention with full access to all
books, records, facilities, and personnel.of the Company and the power to retain independent counsel and/or other experts with
sufficient funding ro pay such counsel and/or experts. The Committee shall have such functions as are provided by listing rules of The
NASDAQ Stock Market, as amended from time to time (“ NASDAQ. ”) the- Securltles and Exchange Commission, as amended from
time to time (the “SEC™) and the federal securities laws, .

by ' ' . A

Membership * '
The Committee shall consist of no less than three (3) members, each of whom is an’independent director of the Board, and shall be )}
appointed by the Fioard in compliance with Section 3.10 of the Company’s by-laws (the “ By-Laws ") at, or. immediately following,
the annual organizational meeting of the Board and shall serve until the later of the Board’s next annual organizational meeting or
until his or her respective successor shall be duly elected and qualified. The Board shall also designate one of its members as the
chairman of the Committee (the “ Chairman ).

' ' ! v . - ) ) . . -+ » ) -
Members of the C'ommittee shall be considered independent if; in the opinion of the Board, they have no relationship that shall
interfere with the exercise of their independence in carrying out-the responsibilities of directors on the Board and such' directors meet
the standards for independence set forth in Section 10A(m) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the © Exchange Act
"), the rules promulgated by the SEC and NASDAQ Rule 4200(a), as' amended. Thé composition and responsibilities-of the
Comm:ttee also shall be consistent w1th SEC guidance, and in pamoular with the SEC Order set forth in- Release No. 34- 37538

' 4

~All members of the Committee shall meet the expertise requirements of NASDAQ and at least one menibeér shall be a “financial
' expert”, as such term is defined in rules promuigated by theé SEC. In-addition, pursuant to NASDAQ rules (i) all members of the
Committee shall bs able to read and understand fundamentl financial statements, including a balance sheet, incotne statement and
cash flow statemnent, and (ii) at least one member of the Committee must have past employment experience in finance or accounting,
requisite professional certification in accounting or any other comparable experience or background that results in the individual’s
financtal sophisticatiod, including service as a chief executive officer, chief financial officer or other sénior officer with financial
oversight responsibilities or otherwise satisfy standards for financial expertise required for audit committees of companies hsted -on
NASDAQ. The existence of the “financial expert” shall’ be dlsclosed in penodlc filings as requnred by thé SEC : “. s
One director who is not independent under applicable rules and regulations and is not a current officer or employee of the Company or
a family member of such officer or employee may be appointed to the Committee, if the Board, under exceptional and limited
circumstances, determines that membership on the committee by the individual is required in the best interests of the Company and its
stockholders, and the Board discloses; 'in the next annual proxy statement subsequént-to such determination, the nature’ of the
relationship and the reason for the determination. A member appointed under this exceptlon shall not serve longer than two
consecutive annual terms and shall not be the Chairman. - ! N




Meetings

A majority of the members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The Committee shall act only
upon approval of a majority of its members. The action of the'Committee.at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of
the Committee. The Chairman shall set the agenda of each meeting and arrange for the distribution of the agenda, together with
supporting material, to the members of the Committee prior to each meeting. The Committee shall keep a separate book of minutes of
their proceedings and actions. The Chairman shall also cduse a draft of the minutes from each meeting to be prepared and circulated to
the Committee to ensure an accurate final record, and the minutes shall be approved at a subsequent meeting of the Committee and
shall be distributed periodically to the Board. The Committee shall report regularly to the Board as to its activities and make such
recommendations and findings as it-deems appropriate. The: Committeée may form one or more subcommittees, each of which shall
take such actions.as shall be delegated by the Committee. - .. - - o

The Committee shall meet at least three (3) times annually, or more frequently as circumstances dictate: (i) at least once to review the
internal control program and procedures, (ii) at least once to review the audit plan of the outside auditors and (iii) at least once to
review the post-audit findings, the audit report of the outside auditors and the audited year- -end-financial statements prior to the filing
of the year-end audited financial statements with.the SEC. The Committee may meet via telephone conference calls with all members
or act by unanimous written consent of its members b

The. Commntee shall also meet at least four (4) times annually to confer w1th the outszde auditors and Management to review -the
Company’s interim financial statements and reports prior to the public announcement of financial results and the filing of the reports
with the SEC; these meetings may be held simultaneously with the meetings required in the immediately preceding paragraph. The
Commiittee shall also hold any special meetings as may be called by.the Chairman or any other member of the Audit Committee, or
the Board of Directors. The Internal Auditors, Independent Auditors or Management may also request the Chairman or any other
member of the Audit Committee or the Board of Directors to hold a special meeting of the Audit Committee. Independent Auditors or
the senior members of Management or others may attend meetings of the Committee at the invitation of the Committee and shatl
prov1de pemnent information as necessary. The Committee shall meet with the outside auditors, the Internal Auditors and
“Management in separaté executive sessions to 'discuss any mattérs that the Commitiee or these groups believe should be discussed
privately wrth the Committee. . o ~ . : -

Scope of Powers and- Functions R . i

The primary responsibility of the Committee is to oversee the Company’s financial reporting process on behalf of the Board and report
the results of these activities to the Board. The Committee, in-carrying out its responsibilities, believes its policies and procedures
should remain flexible, in-order to best react to changing conditions and mrcumstances

The Committee does not have the duty to plan or conduct audits or to determine, that the Company’s financial statements and
disclosures are complete and accurate and are in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and applicable rules and
regulations. The responsibility to plan and conduct audits is that of the Independent Auditors. Management has the responsibility to
determine that the Company’s disclosures and financial statements are complete and accurate and in accordance with generally
accepted accountmg principles, It is also not the duty of the Commlttee to assure the Company’s compliance with laws and regulations
or compliance  with.any.code(s) of conduct adopted by the Company.. The primary responsibility for these matters rests with
Management. : . .

The following shall be the principal recurring processes of the Commiitee in carrying out its responsibility. The processes are set forth
as a guide with, the understanding that the Committee may supplement them as appropriate. Additionally, the Committee shall have
such other functlons as are provided by NASDAQ, the SEC and the federal securities laws. The I‘eSpOI‘lSlblll[lBS and processes of the
Committee shall be consistent with the Exchange Act and the rules and regulatlons adopted by the SEC.

. " - : C oy i " . . . - N -

- Management and the Internal Au_(_litors .

1. Management shall review and discuss -with the Committee all matters relevant to the Audit Committee and have free and open
access to information deemed necessary by Management to perform their assessment. The Internal Auditors shall report directly to the
Committee and have free and open access to information deemed necessary by the Internal Auditors to perfonn their assessment.

2. The Committee shall discuss with the senior members of the Internal Auditors the overall scope and plans for their audit, including
the adequacy of staffing, budgets and other factors that may affect the effectiveness and timeliness of such audits. In this connection,
the Committee shall discuss the Company’s major risk exposures (whether financial, operating or otherwise), the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and the steps Management has taken to moniter and control
such exposures, among other considerations that may be relevant to the internal audit.




3. The Committe: shall discuss with Management and the Internal Auditors the effect of unconsolidated subsidiaries and the corporate
ownership structure and any off-balance sheet finance or special purpose vehicles on the Company’s financial statements. The
Committee also shall review periodically with.Management, the general counsel and, if necessary, the Independent Auditors, all legal-
and regulatory mutters and accounung initiatives that could have a 51gmﬁcant effect on the Company s financial statements.

4. The Commlttce shall review the interim ﬁnancml statements and earnings releases prior to the ﬁlmg with. the SEC of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or Form 10- QSB or any release to the public or investors. Additionally, the Committee
shall review with Management the financial statements to be included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K or Form 10-
KSB (or the annual report to the stockholders if distributed prior to the filing of Form 10-K or Form 10-KSB) and the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q or Form 10-Q8B, including Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations (the “ MD&A ™} disclosures, its judgment about the quality, completeness and accuracy, not just the acceptability, of the
Company’s accounting principles, the reasonableness of significant judgments and the clarity of the disclosures in the financial
statements. The Committee should discuss in advance edch release or issuance of guidance. <+ - 1 “

The Independent Auditors o e i B
5. The Committee shall have a clear understanding with Management and the Independent Auditors that the lndependent Auditors are
ultimately accountable to the Board and the Committee a$ représentatives of the Company’s- stockholders but the Independent
Auditors shall report dlrectly to the Committeé. - . .o :

IR Ry . v : " ' o v .
6. The Committee shall have the final authonty and responsibility to select, evaluate and replace where appropriate the Independent
Auditors {or to nominate the Independent Auditors to be proposed for stockholder ratification in any proxy statement), detefmine
compensation and oversee the work of the Independent Audifors (including resolution of disagreements between Management and the
Independent Auditors regarding financial reporting) for the purpose of preparing or issuing an audit report or related work. In' making
such decisions, the Committee shall review the experience and qualifications of the senior members of the Independent Auditors.
Additionally, the Committee shall require the rotation of the lead -(and coordmatmg or rev1ew1ng) audit partner on a regular bas:s in
accordance Wlth the requirements of the Exchange Act. :

"y _ ,

7. The Committee shall pre-approve all audit and non-audit services, other than de minimis non-audit services, provided by the
Independent Auditor and shall not engage the Independent Auditor to perform the specific non-audit services proscribed by law or
regulation. Alternatively, the Comrnittee 'may adopt pre-approval policies -and procedures detailed’as to particular services and
delegate pre-approval authority to a member of the Committee. The decisions of any Committee member to whom pre-approval
authorny 15 delegated must be presented to the full Commlttee at |ts next scheduled meetmg
8. The Comm:ttee shall dlSCUSS with the senior members of the Independent Auditors the overall scope and -plans for their audlt :
including the adequacy of staffing, budgets and other factors that may affect the effectiveness and timeliness of such audits. In this
connection, the Committee shall' discuss the ‘Compdny’s major risk exposures (whether financial, operating’ or otherwise), the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and the steps the Management has taken to
monitor and control such exposures, among other considerations that may be relevam to the internal andn

iv tet \ [ R N

9. The Committee is responsible for ensuring its receipt from the lndependent Audltors at least annually of a formal written statement
delineating all relationships between the Independent Auditors and the Company, consistent with the Independence Standards Board
Standard 1. The Committee shall actively engage in dialogue with the Independent Auditors with respect to any disclosed relationship
or service that shall 1mpact the objectwlty and the appropnale actlon to oversee 1ndependence of the Independent Auditor.

16. The Committee shall-obtain and'review a report from thé Independent AUdltOl’S at least annually as to (a) all critical accounting
policies to be used, (b} all alternative treatments of financial information that have been discussed with Management_under the
applicable standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (the “ PCAOB ™) or applicable law or listing
standards, the ramifications of the use of such alternative disclosures and treatments and the treatment preferred by the Independent
Auditors, (c) other material written communications between the Independent Auditors and the Company, including management
letters and schedules of unadjusted differences and (d) the critical policies and procedures of the Company.

11. The Committee shall annually meet with the Independent Auditors, with and without Management present, to discuss the results of

~ their examination. The Committee shall review any significant difficulties encountered during the course of the audit or review

including any restrictions on the scope of the Independent Auditors’ work or access to reviewed information. The Committee shall
discuss with the Independent Auditors the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company s intemal controls, disclosure controls and
procedures.




12: The Committee shall review the interim financial statements and earnings releases with the Independent Auditor prior to the filing
of the Company’s. Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or Form 10-QSB or any release to the publi¢ or investors. Additionally,- the
Comnmiittee shall review with the Indeperident Auditor the financial statements.to be included in the Gompany’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K or Form 10-KSB (or the annual report to the stockholders if distributed prior to the filing 'of Form 10-K or Form 10-KSB)
and Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or Form 10-QSB and any other matters required to be communicated to the Committee by the
Independent Auditors under applicable standards of the PCAOB or applicable law or-listing standards, including the MD&A
disclosures, their judgment about the -quality, completeness and accuracy, not just the acceptability, of accounting principles, the !
reasonableness of significant judgments and the clarity of the disclosures in the financial statements. The Committee should discuss in |
advance each re]ease or issnance of gurdance S : . S
Other T
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13 The Committee shall review any drsagreements between Management and the lndependent Auditors:

14. The Committee shall approve guidelines for-the Company’s hiring of former employees of the Independent Auditors which shall
meet the requirements of the rules and regulations of the SEC and NASDAQ.

: . 1 \ ) . o o .
15. The Committee shall conduct.an appropriate review of all related party transactions for potential conflicts of interest and approve
all such related party transactions consistent with the rules applied to companies listed on NASDAQ. The Committee shall review
existing policies concerning related party transactions and conflicts of interest between Board or senior members of Management on
the_one hand, and the Company, on the other hand, and recommend any.changes to such policies. A “related party transaction” refers
to iransactions requrred to be disclosed pursuant to SEC Regulation S-K, ltem 404 or SEC, Regulation S-B, Item 404. Generally, these
are transactions between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any director, executive officers or a holder of ﬁve percent (5%) ot
more of the Company’s stock, as well as, for directors and transactions with entities related to them. o
16. The Commrttee shall estabhsh procedures for, have responsrbrhty for,and oversight of the. recelpt retention,rand treatment of
complaints received by the Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters and the confidential,
anonymous submission by employees of the Company of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters. All such
relevant submissions must be reported to the Committee. - e |
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17 The Commmee shall mvesttgate any other matter brought to-its attention w1thm the scope of its duties whlch it deems appropnate
for investigation.. - e, :

. . i ' 1
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18. The Committee shall review reports of attomeys or others with respect to evidence of materlal vrolauons of secuntres laws or
breaches ofﬁducrary duty. | o P ¢ R Tl

19 The Commrttee shall submit the minutes of all meetrngs of the Commrttee .to or dlSQUSS the matters discussed at each Commttlee l
meeting with, the Board. . . . ¢
Loh . : N ) t :

20. The Committee shall revrew ' the Company’s disclosure in the proxy statement for 1ts annual meeting of stockholders that descrlbes
whether the Committee has satisfied its responsibilities under this Charter for the prior year. ... - . / 1
21. The Committee shail perform an annual self-evaluation performance appraisal.

' oo s . L . ' o o
22. The Committee will consult with Management to review overall corporate policy relative to financial reporting, sound business
risk management practices and ethical behavior, and to make recommendations relative to the appropriateness thereof as needed.

I
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e . ’ : : - Exhibit 99.3

CHARTER OF
THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
H : : . . OF ! v
. AVANTAIR, INC. ‘ . -
(Revised September 18, 2008)

Statement of Policy

This Charter governs the operations of the Compensation Committee (the “Committee™) of the Board of Directors (the.“.Board ) of
Avantair, Inc. (th2 “_Company ™). The Charter shall be reviewed and reassessed, at least annually, by the Committee and shall be
approved by the Board. . ‘
The purpose of the Comnittee is to dlscharge the Board’s responsibilities relating to compensatton of the Company s executive
officers and to produce an annual report for inclusion in the Company’s proxy statement and other disclosure as reqmred by appllcable
law, : ‘

Membership

. . L LI, N I T too .
The Committee shall consist of no fewer than two (2) members, each of whom is an independe'nt director of the Board and-shall be
appointed by the Board in compliance with Section 3.10 of the Company’s by-laws (the “_By-Laws "} at, or immediately following,
the annual organizational meeting of the Board and shall serve until the later of the Board’s next annual organizational meeting or
until his or her respective successor shall be duly elected and qualified. The Board of Directors shall also designate one of its members

" as the chairman of the Committee {the “ Chairman ™},

Each member of the Committee shall b'e, to the extent required by the board, (i) a “non-employee director” within the meaning of Rute
16b-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “_Exchange Act ) and (ii} an “outside director” within the

A'fneaning'of Section 162{m) of the Internal Revenue Code. In addition, each member shall be “independent” within the meaning of the

applicable listing rules of The NASDAQ Stock Market, as amended from time to time (“_NASDAQ ). The composition and
responsibilities of the Committee also shall comply with all applicable rules, regulations and guidance of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, as amended from time to time (the * SEC ™).

Meetings v

* \ L . . ' . R

The Committée shall meet at least one (1)'time per vear and shall hold any additional meetmgs as may be called by the Chairman of
the Board or the Chief Executive Officer (the *“_CEO ') of the Company. The Committee may meet via’telephone -conference calls
with all members or act by unanimous written consent of its members. A majority of the members of the Committee shall constitute a
quorum for the transaction of business. The Committee shall act only upon approval of a majority of its members. The action of the
Committee.at a meeting at which a guorum is present shall be the act of the Committee. Senior members of management of the
Company or others may attend meetings of the Committee at the invitation of the Committee and shall provide pemnent information
a8 NeCessary.

The Chairman shall set the agenda of each meetmg and arrange for the distribution of the agenda, together with supporting material, to
the members of the Committee prior to each meeting. The Committee shall keep a separate book of minutes of their proceedings and
actions. The Chairman shall also cause a draft of the minutes from each mieeting to be‘prepared and circulated to the Committee to
ensure an accurate final record, and the minutes shall be approved at a'subsequent meeting 'of the Committée and shall be 'distributed
periodically to the Board. The Committee shall report regularly to the Board as to its activities and make such recomimendations and
findings as it deems appropriate. The Committee may form one or more subcommittees, each of which shall take such actions as shall
be delegated by the Committee.

Scope of Powers and Functions

The Committee’s powers and functions shall, at a minimum, include the following, as well as any functions as shall be required of the
compensation committees by NASDAQ Listing Standards:

1. to review and recommend to the Board approval of all compensation and benefit plans for officers and staff of the Company;
Ty \“’ R
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to review and approve corporate goals and objectives relevant to the CEO compensation, and evaluate the CEQ’s performance
in light of those goals and objectives, and to set the CEQ’s compensation level based on this evaluation.
A .t L3 . ,
. ' ,-! .
to review and approve corporate goals and objectives relevant to senior executive compensation, evaluate senior executive
performance in light of those goals and objectlves and to set the senior executive compensation levels based on this
gvaluation; el \

to make recommendations to the Board with respect to mcentlve compensauon plans and equity-based plans mcludmg wnthout
limitation the Company ] stock options plans; T ' ‘

. X oo, .

to administer all plans entitled to exemption under Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act, including any of the Company’s 2006
Long-Term Incentive Plan, stock option, restricted stock and deferred stock plans and grant stock options or other awards
pursuant to such plans. The Commmee will provide the Board thh quarterly reports on the distribution of such equity awards
under such plans;

to annually review plans for development, retention and replacement of key executives of the Company and to periodically
review executive succession plans and executive education and development plans;.

o ' R - LTI . . " . '

to review and recommend, upon reques'f, direct and-indirect compensation plans for the Board and the committee members;

T

, to evaluate its own performance at least annually and report on such performance to the Board;
' M et . o T o Kl v
to review and approve or recommend to the Board for approval changes to or adoption of retirement plans of the Company and
approve -periodically funding guidelines developed by the Comm:ttee mcludmg any matching contributions under the
Company’s 401(k).plan, if any; ) C e : .

< “le ok r

to create and approve an annual report of the Committee to be included in the Company’s Form 10-K or proxy statement
which states the Committee has reviewed and recommended the Compensation Discussion and Analysis required by Item 402
of Regulation S-K be, included in the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K or the Company’s proxy statement and other
disclosure as required by applicable law; - : - ‘ .

! . . . . )
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to approve employment agreements severance agreements or change of control agreements between the Company and its
senior executive officers and to have such.other powers and functions as may be assigned to it by the Board from time to time;

and

to have the sole authonty to retain and lermmate any compensatlon consultant or consulting . ﬁrm to assist in the evaluation of
dlrector CEO or senior executive compensation, .including sole authority to-approve the consultant’s fees and other retention
.terms., The Commxttee may also, at lts discretion, engage outside legal counsel or other advisers as it deems necessary to carry
out 1ts functions. :
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